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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A Bi l l  for an Act relating to primary election bal lot access and el ig ib i l ity for minor pol itical 
parties; and relating to political party committee organization. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on SB 2369. 

Robert Harms, Treasurer, North Dakota Republican Party: Testified in  support of b i l l  

and to exp lain the b i l l .  (4: 1 5) In summary, i t  takes out of the code the mandatory detailed 

d i rections on how the state parties operate and al low that decision to be up to the state 

parties themselves in their own bylaws, and secondly it maintains the current structure that 

we have for statewide political organizations. A minimum 5% in presidential elections for 

petitioning  and sets up this th i rd mechanism that if al l  of us wanted to start our own party 

we would s imply fi le our bylaws with the Secretary of State , meeting those min imum 

qual ifications and we would have statewide recognition.  I have spoken with the leadersh ip 

i n  both houses and parties, and there is  no opposition to the bi l l .  

(5:30) See Attachment #1 for an amendment to place an emergency clause. 

(6:20) Senator Cook: How long has that been a part of state code? 

Robert Harms: I bel ieve it has been a couple of decades. I bel ieve i n  the 80's sometime. 

Essential ly what J im and I did was we thought it was easier to repeal that chapter and then 

construct a new chapter rather than try to construct these new provis ions. 
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Senator Cook: The first political event I went to was in  1 992 and the first th ing I d id was 

look at th is chapter. I would argue that what we are doing here is shifting a lot of power 

from the normal citizen of the state to a pol itical party. I give this to a nyone who is 

interested in getting involved . I would argue that one presidential candidate that defin itely 

motivated a lot of young people understood that section of code better than anyone. I am 

curious that maybe the way that he was able to util ize the rights g iven to the people in code 

caused a l ittle gray hair amongst a lot of us old-timers that have been long establ ished in  

the party and i t  is one of the reasons this is being brought forward . 

Robert Harms: I was waiting for the question .  

Senator Cook: There were a whole lot of citizens in  the last election cycle ful ly 

understanding that section of code and they knew what camp they were in I welcomed 

them . They tried to take over our d istrict committees and they had the law on thei r  side. It 

just forced us to follow along . I don't see any problem with that and I certa in ly am reluctant 

to take that tool away from them. 

Robert Harms: I would agree with your sentiment with the regard to the activity that 

occurred during the last presidential election cycle and that activity is  the kind of activity 

that I th ink SB 2369 is designed to promote. Two things I wou ld offer i n  response to your 

comments: number one, the problem that we have with the current code a nd the structure, 

is that we have a law in place that says one thing and then we have d istricts around the 

state that have a set of bylaws that d iffer from the code. So we set up this confl ict that 

exists in state law and bylaws and we have a d iscussion in d istricts and we have lots of 

confl icts a round the state because of that very activity. We want to clarify that. Number 

two, the provisions that the Secretary of State and I worked on recogn ize that robust 

political activity that we are trying to promote so that if all of us decided to start the green 



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2369 
02/1 4/201 3  
Page 3 

coffee party because we don't think the Republican or Democrat party a re serving the 

needs of our interests, we would be free to establ ish that party very easi ly by s imply fi l ing at 

the Secretary of State a set of bylaws that meet very basic min imum requ i rements that an 

organizatio n  would include. That would be without dictating to that party what the detai ls 

of those bylaws would include. We agree with the idea of a robust pol itical party that we 

should encourage in  state law and we think this bi l l  sets the frame to do that and it 

el iminates this conflict where we have state law saying one thing and bylaws saying 

another. 

Senator Cook: Do you bel ieve that repealing chapter 16.103 and replacing it  with th is 

would make it easier or more d ifficult to create another party? 

Robert Harms: I th ink it wi l l  make it easier. As you know I am very i nvolved in  other 

organizatio ns,  including the Tea Party, and I have had their members ask me about it, and I 

told them that they need to do exactly as I have described. My personal  attitude is that we 

should set up our law to a llow that kind of robust political engagement by people; n ot put up 

impediments ,  but to make it easier. 

Chairman Dever: They can do it in either circumstance? 

Robert Harms: Yes. 

Chairman Dever: I assume that right now the parties have to file bylaws with the Secretary 

of State? 

Robert Harms: No,  there is a thi rd mechanism under the current law, but I am d rawing a 

blank. It is not as easy as simply fi l ing your bylaws with the Secretary of State. J im can 

speak to that. 

Chairman Dever: Do d istrict party organizations fal l  under the umbrel la of the state party 

organizatio n  or are they separate individual organizations? 
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Robert Harms: The d istrict parties wou ld fal l  under the state party u nder the current law. 

There wil l  be a d iscussion , and the parties wi l l  be al lowed to set those rules on their  own . 

My personal preference would be that they are uniform state wide. 

Senator Nelson: The Democrats have a standard set of bylaws that were put in by the 

state a coup le of years back and the d istricts can either adopt those bylaws or they can 

accept those bylaws with changes, however, they cannot counter anything that is in the 

exist ing bylaw. 

Senator Cook: We all know that every district party has to be organ ized with i n  the next 

coup le of months. That requirement is right here in this code that we are going to repeal .  

There are requ i rements here that we have to put a notice out in the newspaper s o  that 

everyone knows that we are reorganizing.  It starts with caucuses. We have to fol low these. 

We have rewritten our bylaws and we made sure that we stayed with in code.  This is what 

is leaving here ,  so my question is, how do districts reorgan ize under this new legislation 

and to what degree do the citizens have the right to come and have their  voice heard?  

Robert Harms: That would be the d irection that I would l ike to see i t  go .  The parties wou ld 

craft their own bylaws as to how the districts would reorgan ize; whether they have 

caucuses or they don't. That wil l  be part of the internal d iscussion i n  each party. The code 

speaks to how those political parties are reorganized , but they are real ly speaking to 

members of a private organization . The public can participate in those organ izations, b ut 

that is part of the issue we are trying to get to that each of the parties should be able to run 

their own operations and invite the publ ic to participate rather than having the state law tel l  

those organ izations how they must organ ize. 

Chai rman Dever: I suspect we are going to spend time on this bi l l .  
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Senator Schaible: These views that you are relaying, is that your opin ion or is that the 

official position of the Republ ican Party. 

Robert Harms: The state committee of the Republ ican Party made the decision to bring 

th is issue to the legislature in December and it was a unanimous vote to take the pol itical 

parties out of the Century Code. 

Senator Cook: It was informed that it was created in  1 979. 

(20:43) Claus Lembke, Republican District Chairman, District 7: Testified in  support of 

the b i l l .  I do not object to tel l ing us when a dead l ine is when we have to reorgan ize. We 

are ok with deadl ines and advertis ing.  Those th ings I th ink should remain a mandate of the 

b i l l .  The way it was written takes it out but it would probably be wise to at least that i n .  

(2 1 :30) (Explained personal experience of reorganizing and the issues with it) That is  a 

perfect example of our own bylaws. They should be open. We are reviewing our  bylaws 

and we want to avoid people aimlessly getting to be state delegates and then they don 't 

show up . I recommend you take a look at that and support the b i l l .  

(24:07) Chairman Dever: When you refer to your  bylaws, are you referring to state party 

bylaws or your district bylaws? 

Claus Lembke: When the precinct committee people elect the officers that is state law. 

Chairman Dever: Do I get the feel ing from what you have said that maybe there a re some 

things in  the state law that we should keep? 

Claus Lembke: Yes, the dead l ines to reorganize. I think we owe that to the publ ic .  

Senator Cook: Right now in code, who can participate and vote at a caucus? Do you have 

to be a qual ified elector? How do you think we should determine who gets to participate in  

a particu lar pol itical party? 
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Claus Lembke: I agree with you that some of these things should be in  law to make sure 

that it is open .  One group or another could overrun the other one and that is not fair. 

Senator Cook: The question is, what is it? 

Chairman Dever: (mentioned a person who stated on Facebook that they were involved in 

both conventions) 

Claus: I was involved in the political process and I went to both district conventions in the 

early 70's and that is how I choose my side. 

Chairman Dever: We know where you ended up and that speaks wel l  of you .  

(27:20) Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State: See Attachment # 2  for testimony in  

support. 

(32:31) Senator Cook: I agree that state law makes it d ifficult to start a third party. Where 

was this legis lation d rafted and who was involved? 

Jim S ilrum: I took the first stab at it. Somebody has to. Then what I wrote Secretary 

Jaeger and Mr. Harms took a look and made recommendations. What is before you now is 

what we have spent many hours laboring over. It was on strict advice from the Secretary of 

State that this should not be in any way a Republ ican in itiative; that the Democrat NPL  

should have their  weigh in on  this. 

(35:15) Chairman Dever: Maybe we need to take a look at some of what is in  there. 

(36:22)Jim Silrum: I sti l l  bel ieve that 1 6 . 1 03 is in major need of help j ust because of it not 

being clear to the average citizen. Especially knowing that you have to start at the end and 

then go back to the beginning and go from there. 

Chairman Dever: Generally it is appropriate if it is fair  to al l  parties and normally it is the 

Democrat and the Republ ican Party. I don't think anyone wants to prevent anyone in our 

democratic process from having the abi l ity but at  the same time I can imagine what would 
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happen if someone from a national party, and it was too easy, might present themselves as 

a candid ate and someone else might present themselves as a candidate from the same 

party because they had not communicated with each other. 

Jim Silrum: It was never the intent to remove the general public's abil ity to form how a 

political party would be organized; that district parties wou ld organize at the g rass roots 

level. They wou ld have to be from that district and the only thing that it wou ld  truly do is 

g ive them their own timeline to control their own destinies with their party. 

(39:25) Jim S ilrum: (Continues on testimony) . 

(48:55) Chairman Dever: I am curious if there mig ht be a way to accommodate those that 

register as a write it candidate 4 days in advance. If you are not going to have those slots 

on the bal lot, and the other question is if either of the major parties left a slot b lank,  would 

you not include that s lot on the bal lot? 

Jim Silrum: For the major parties, if you see on one of the pages I handed out where the 

third column is taken up by the Constitution and Libertarian parties, those statutes would 

only pertain to those political parties that achieve ballot access by circu lating petitions and 

getting the 7000 signatures to have their political party recognized in the state . Any party 

that organizes according to 1 6. 1 03 . 1  or a modification of 03 would be just l ike the 

republicans and democratic NPL party and would be granted a fu l l  s late of spaces. Minor 

parties are designated in that way because of how they got their bal lot access which is by 

circulating petitions not by organizing according to the political party organization chapter. 

Chairman Dever: I would imagine that their organizing might be on behalf of a candidate 

as much as on behalf of a party? 

Jim Silrum: I n  most cases, they are doing so for the sake of having their presidential 

candidate on the bal lot. The Constitution party for sure real ly only wanted their presidential 
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cand idate to be l isted on the November general election bal lot associated with the 

Constitution party's name. Under current law what is required is that, and this would change 

in one of the sections of this b i l l ,  a presidential candidate specifical ly named would be 

requ i red is to have the candidate circulate petitions to get 4000 sign atures to turn into us 

and then have their presidential cand idate listed on the general election bal lot under that 

political party designation. M inor political parties have not taken that option because the 

circulating of a petition to get 4000 signatures needs to be done eve n  before they know the 

name of who their nominated candidate would be for president and vice president. 

Because our current law states that it has to be the candidate who is named on those 

petitions that are circulated , the law that would be changed to a llow those petitions to be 

circu lated before the name in known , is section 5 of the bi l l  page 6 (reads added language). 

(55:00)Piease be assured that the vast majority of the remaining sections of the bi l l  would 

al low us to rea rrange the formatting of the ballot accord ing to the examples that I put 

forward to you .  I n  regards to a write in candidate for an office of one of these m inor parties, 

outside of the office of leg islative candidate, they would have to fi le that certificate of write 

in candidacy long before anyway which is 20 days, not just the 4 days. It seems to us that 

minor parties are attempting to gain bal lot access for a certain statewide offices and if they 

want to organize at a d istrict level ,  they should do so accord ing to 16 . 1 03 . 1 if that is passed 

or a mod ification of 03 where that party organizes at the district level much in the same way 

that the Republ ican and Democratic NPL parties already do. Take i nto account that many 

wou ld say that a primary election for political party offices is really n ot the p lace where 

pol itical parties should find out who their candidates are. If write-ins were a l lowed for those 

minor parties for those offices where there were no candidate, Constitution and Libertarian 

parties are find ing out of candidates that they were not even aware of. It seems to us that 
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the national Supreme Court has g iven political parties the authority to nominate thei r  own 

candidates rather than some other way around. 

Chairman Dever: Asked J im Si l rum to be available for additional work on the bi l l .  C losed 

hearing on SB 2369. 
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Chairman Dever: Opened SB 2369 for committee d iscussion . See Attachment #1 for 

amendment proposed . 

Senator Poolman: Moved Amendments. 

Senator Schaible: Seconded. 

Chairman Dever: We had thought at one point of turning it into a legislative stud y  but I 

don't th ink that is the right place to do it either. 

Senator Cook: I hope that these amendments don't resurface in the other chamber. 

Chairman Dever: I think if they do,  they wil l in  a d ifferent form. 

Senator Nelson: If we defeated th is b i l l ,  then we could sti l l  ta lk to each other d u ring the 

i nterim to get it fixed : then it would not g ive them an avenue to talk about it over on the 

other side. 

Chairman Dever: The Deputy Secretary of State told Senator Schaible and I yesterday 

that sections 2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  and  5 are the most important election b i l l  to them in this session . 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 7 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. 

Senator Schaible: Moved a Do Pass As Amended. 

Senator Cook: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent. 

Senator Schaible: Carrier 



Amendment to: SB 2369 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/28/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I l d . f f . t d d t l  eve s an appropna 10ns an tctpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
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Bill/Resolution No.:  SB 2369 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/2812013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . t' t'. t d d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tCJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
! ! ' 
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1 3. 8257 .0 1 003 
Title . 02000 

Adopted by the Governme nt and Veterans 
Affai rs Committee 

February 2 1 , 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B ILL NO. 2369 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  remove "to create and enact chapter 1 6 . 1 -03. 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  2 ,  remove "relating to political party committee organizations;" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove " ;  and to" 

Page 1 ,  rem ove l ines 5 

Page 1 ,  l ine 6 ,  remove "committee organ ization" 

Page 1 ,  rem ove l ines 8 through 23 

Page 2 ,  rem ove l i nes 1 through 1 5  

Page 7 ,  remove l ine 1 7  

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 1 



Date: ___ :A+};_,�::__;_/ __ 

Roll Call Vote#: --1-�--
2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 

ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

· Legislative Council Amendment Number · 

Committee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass
. 0 Amended �Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By� �econded By .{laJ �e._ 
Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chariman Dick Dever / Senator Carolyn Nelson / 
Vice Chairman Spencer Berry /. Senator Richard Marcellais . ./ 
Senator Dwight Cook / 
Senator Donald Schaible / 
Senator Nicole Poolman / 

Total 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



{;L!-, I Date: ___ /-=:;2c:;r-_ _ _  _ 

Roll Call Vote#: __ :2 _ _  _ 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 

ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. df!tt1 
Senate Government and Veterans Affairs 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Committee 

· Legislative Council Amendment Number · I 3. '? � · D I t503 odcXYD 
Action Taken: JZ[ Do Pass D Do Not Pass

. �Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By�ak8okJloeconded By :;� dmL . 
Senators Yes No Senator Yes/. No 

Chariman Dick Dever � Senator Carolyn Nelson v 
Vice Chairman Spencer Berry -v- Senator Richard Marcellais L_ 
Senator Dwight Cook v 
Senator Donald Schaible V" 
Senator Nicole Poolman V"' 

Total (Yes) __ f2�. ______ No �2��--------

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 22, 201 3 1 0 :48am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_34_01 4  
Carrier: Schaible 

Insert LC: 1 3.8257.01 003 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2369: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Dever, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (5 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2369 was placed 
on the S ixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  remove "to create and enact chapter 1 6. 1 -03. 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code," 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, remove "relating to pol itical party committee organ izations;" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove "; and to" 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 5 

Page 1 ,  l ine 6 ,  remove "committee organ ization" 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 8 through 23 

Page 2,  remove l ines 1 through 1 5  

Page 7, remove l ine 1 7  

Renumber accord ingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_34_014 
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Job #1 9960 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL relating to primary election bal lot access and el ig ibi l ity for minor pol itical parties. 

Minutes: achment #1, 2, 3, and 4 

Chairman Jim Kasper opened the hearing on SB 2369. 

00:04 Senator Dever appeared as sponsor of the bi l l  and reviewed what happened in  the 
Senate. Delete entire section 1 6 . Decided organ izations that should take place in  the next 
two years. 

03:57 Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State, appeared in support. Attachments 1 
through 4 (ballot samples). He went over the bal lot samples. Objective is to have the 
bal lots fit on one piece of bal lot stock. 

21:19 Representative Paur: On the Constitution party when you shrink that, you are not 
al lowing someone to write in a candidate for insurance commissioner is there? 

Jim Silrum: That is correct. The Constitution party would not be able to identify a candidate 
for those offices through the write-in process on ly. 

22:36 Representative Paur: There are write-in  campaigns.  This would el iminate that 
possibi l ity. 

Jim Silrum: There are write-in campaigns that wil l  sti l l  be legitim ized and sti l l  be avai lable 
for the Republ icans and Democratic parties. Not permissible for the other political parties 
(Minor) that were not previously recognized in NO. 

23:58 Representative Paur: Californ ia removed a requ i rement of voting for on ly one party. 
Do you have any idea how that played out? 

Jim Silrum: I do not know how it worked in Cal iforn ia. I do know of a simi lar situation in  
Washington State where they now have the top two. 
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25:48 Representative Louser: I n  Cal ifornia there was two of the same party runn ing 
against each other. 

26:24 Representative Strinden: If we al low minor parties to do their write-ins ,  if we d id n't 
change that, would the rest of b i l l  stand without that change? 

26:53 Jim Silrum: Absolutely not. Changing instructions wouldn't improve where write-in  
campaigns are run in Democratic and Republ ican parties. 

29:07 Chairman Kasper: Is it proper knowledge that the first name is running for 
governor? Is that the way it works under state law? 

29:52 Jim Silrum: It is. Those should have included two names for the office of Governor 
and Lieutenant Governor. 

31 :43 Chairman Kasper: How do we know Shelly is running for Governor or Lieutenant 
Governor? 

Jim Silrum: I should have put a second designator on there. I n  every contest the first 
candidate l isted is the Governor candidate and the second one is Lieutenant Governor. 

32:19 Chairman Kasper: Is there a GOV beh ind the name for Governor and L T GOV 
behind the name for Lieutenant Governor or just assume by the order that's the way it is? 

32:30 Jim Silrum: By the order it is determined who it is and there is not a designator that 
says what office they are runn ing for. 

32:53 Chairman Kasper: Your goal is to simpl ify voting process or save paper? 

Jim Silrum: First simpl ify voting process. Second to improve election admin istration and 
save costs. 

33:27 Chairman Kasper: Is this the actual size of the bal lot? 

Jim Silrum: Actual size would be 1 1 x 17 .  

34:16 Robert Harms, Treasurer, Republican Party: appeared in  support. Removing the 
political parties out of the code. Mandate was part of the issue. Private entity essential ly 
being d ictated by state law what its internal rules should be was another issue. Precinct 
caucus to only elect precinct committee members get to vote. We do think Statute 1 6 . 1 03 
requ i res add itional attention . 

40:10 Representative Karls: We follow this in our District 35. I was not aware that every 
d istrict d id th is. 

Robert Harms: That is the status across the state. It needs to be clarified . Had d istrict 
meeting ,  broke up in precincts , many people were expecting to vote for the d istrict chair but 
not el ig ible to vote , only the precinct committee could vote. 
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42:05 Representative Karls: It's true for people who came for the very fi rst time. I feel we 
should have this system in p lace for the d istricts who want it. Has this been in place since 
statehood? 

42:41 Robert Harms: Put into law in the 1 970s. 

43:07 Representative Mooney: Do you have examples of rural areas that are having 
d ifficu lties with this? 

Robert Harms: I defer to our chairman. 

43:54 Representative Paur: In District 1 9  we had 1 1  precincts , now down to 3 .  Walsh 
County has one. 

44:34 Chairman Kasper: What this leg islative body has done has g iven more power to the 
county aud itors to determine where our precinct l ines are and how many we will have in  
each d istrict. You spent a large amount of time talking about what's not in the b i l l .  What you 
were talking about is not in the bi l l  correct? 

46:24 Robert Harms: Sti l l  al low some structure in the law in terms of identifying political 
party. 

47:44 Chairman Kasper: Talked in favor where were they at? 

Robert Harms: They were ok with taking the pol itical parties out of the codes . Wil l take out 
all the other mandates that the code provided . 

48:36 Chairman Kasper: Did you offer amendments in the Senate side if 1 6 . 1 03 was 
repealed? What it would look l ike that was presented to the Senate committee? 

48:45 Robert Harms: No, wasn't necessary. The bi l l  contained a new chapter that would 
be 1 6 . 1 -03. 1 . It al lows them to qual ify 5% of the last election petitioning process or fi l ing 
bylaws. 

49:33 Chairman Kasper: How would a d istrict if you repealed the district structure ,  how 
would they organ ize in the bylaws? 

50:18 Robert Harms: Draft their own bylaws . 

50:52 Chairman Kasper: What is your  defin ition of them? They would d raft their own 
bylaws? Are you saying a state committee would do that? How would they be elected? 

51:09 Robert Harms: democratic and Republ ican parties are already organ ized . 

51 :35 Chairman Kasper: Districts wi l l  organ ize accord ing to the state law and anyth ing 
that is not in  conflict with the state party bylaws , and their own d istrict bylaws . Is  that how 
you understand it? 
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51:54 Robert Harms: Don't remember precisely. Going through process this spring and 
updating bylaws for the Republican Party. 

52:33 Chairman Kasper: So there is a top down approach . 

Robert Harms: I would d isagree . The power is bui lt from the bottom up not from the top 
down . 

53:47 Chairman Kasper: I agree someth ing needs to be done to clarify what the power is. 
I do not agree the state party should not be involved in  the political party organization.  

55:07 Robert Harms: Leadership had no objections to this b i l l .  If the leg islature should 
d ictate to private organizations how their structures should be organ ized , this is the issue. 

56:31 Chairman Kasper: We have our hands in many areas. 

57:00 Representative Paur: Could you g ive a brief overview why that section was taken 
out in  the Senate. Do you have any feel ing for what the purpose is there? 

Robert Harms: They felt the citizens of North Dakota should have some signal from the 
leg islature as to how to participate in the pol itical process. 

57:52 Chairman Kasper: I have been working on amendments for SB 2369 for about two 
and a half weeks. Not sure if I am going to introduce them but would l ike some eyes on 
them . Protecting the integrity, authority and power at the d istrict level but clarifying the 
authority of the state party as wel l .  

59:13 AI Jaeger, Secretary of State: appeared in  support. Encourage to g ive us what we 
need . 

Chairman Kasper: We wi l l  get you out of some areas that you don't want to be in .  

1:00:19 AI Jaeger: There are things that the Secretary of State and County Aud itors are 
involved in that don't wish to be involved in .  Our concern is with what you have now, we 
real ly need to have that. 

1:00:54 Chairman Kasper: Will ta lk with Senator Dever. 

The hearing was closed . 
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0 Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to primary election bal lot access and el igibi l ity for minor pol itical parties . 

Minutes: Attachment 1 &2 

Chairman Jim Kasper opened the session on SB 2369. Attachment 1-2 was handed out. 
This is the 1 01h amended version. It is not as compl icated as it looks .  It is amending 
current state law to clean up some areas that have been outdated for many years and to 
clarify the d istinction between the state parties, new parties that wish to organize in N orth 
Dakota and how d istricts organize in our state. I have been working with Secretary of State 
Jaeger, John Bjornson,  Rep . Boehning,  Senator Dever, and J im Si lrum on these 
amendments. 

John Bjornson, Leg islative Council, appeared to go over the proposed amendments in  
deta i l .  Attachment 1-2. ( 1  :24-5:02) 

Chairman Jim Kasper Let's see if you have any questions going through each section.  

John Bjornson (5 : 1 4-5:46) 

Rep. Steven Zaiser (5:50) We talk about the party. Should we be talking about a party? 
Aren't we a lso making this open to other parties? 

John Bjornson It is open to any party that wants to organ ize. 

Chairman Jim Kasper The p lural is a political organization on Line 1 3  and went from that 
point where we are now referring to the specifics but it is part of a which is the p lura l .  

Rep. Steven Zaiser Does i t  imply that we do have multiple opportun ities when we are 
referring back to . . .  

Chairman Jim Kasper We do.  

John Bjornson We always try to use s ingular in  the code,  but singu lar  a lso means p lu ra l .  
(Continued 8:00-1 6:07) *The audio from Mr. Bjornson was poor until about 1 3:00 . 
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Rep. Ben Koppelman There might be two or three precincts and they don't hold those al l  
separate. They just come together and have one d istrict meeting . Is  th is language now 
saying that if you wanted to do that and at your main d istrict meeting each precinct those 
numbers could vote on their  one committee member from the precinct and you cou ld 
otherwise do al l  your  business as a d istrict rather than ind ividual precincts and then have 
_electors to your  d istrict? 

John Bjornson As I u nderstand under the current law and under this, you can have you r  
precinct caucuses and your  d istrict committee al l at one time in one p lace, or  you can have 
them at d ifferent times, d ifferent places. The law states the d istrict com mittee has to be 
with in  1 5  days of precinct caucus. It is up to the party how they want to do it. 

Rep. Ben Koppelman I wi l l  use my d istrict for example. We had three p recincts. The 
three p recincts would meet and elect their respective representatives from the p recinct. 
Those representatives wou ld come together and vote on al l  the d istrict business. Some 
d istricts have gone to where the ind ividual precincts at the big meeting wou ld on ly meet to 
elect their representatives for the purpose of serving on the board of the d istrict. When it 
came to adopting the bylaws and electing the d istrict chairman and al l  those elections, 
everybody at large that was an elector in the d istrict, regard less of precinct, got to cast a 
vote. Are either one of those al lowed under this language? 

John Bjornson Yes. The law is not changing any of that. This proposed amendment 
would provide additional flexibi l ity through your bylaws to decide how you are going to run 
your business at the local level .  The question came up when working through this what if 
you are new. This says you get one precinct committee man per precinct in  that case. 
That fi l ls the hole that might have been in the law before. (20:58-2 1 : 55) 

Rep. Karen Karls My county aud itor expressed to me that he l iked having the names of 
those precinct committee men so if he is having trouble find ing judges and clerks, he can 
cal l  them and see if there is anyone they know in their area. That may have been the 
reason this was instituted and maybe it is not used by other county aud itors. 

John Bjornson There is noth ing that says that the county aud itor can't ask them or that 
they sti l l  can't send them to the county aud itor, but this wou ld remove the requ i rement. 

Chairman Jim Kasper Also, the d istrict chairman cou ld be cal led and ask for those names 
and addresses. I t  has been a desire for many years by the auditors and the Secretary of 
State's office that they should not be involved in what the parties do .  I t  i s  the party's 
responsibi l ity to do what we do and they don't want to be interfering or be required to do 
certain  things. This bi l l  takes both entities out of the law except for a couple of  areas of 
requ i red notification to the Secretary of State. 

John Bjornson (23:26-29:34) 

Chairman Jim Kasper Subject to the party ru les and bylaws, the state party convention-­
that is sort of a key addition .  We are making it clear that the state party ru les and bylaws 
are going to determine what happens at the state convention, and they have total authority 
to do that u nder the amendments. 
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John Bjornson That is correct. (29 :53-30 :36) 

Rep. Gary Paur Why did we change from shall to may in 5 ,  6, 7? 

John Bjornson Rather state law d ictating every detai l  of what you should do at you r  
convention,  I th ink the desire was to say your  ru les, your  bylaws of the state party wi l l  
decide what you do at you r  convention .  

Rep. Gary Paur You are g iving them the option of not provid ing for presidential e lectors, 
etc .?  

Chairman Jim Kasper That is  true. They may not wish to do so .  There m ig ht be a new 
party starting and they may not wish to do so. 

John Bjornson I n  general ,  I would th ink most wou ld want to do that. 

AI Jaeger, Secretary of State, seated in the back added a comment. We don't care how 
they are selected. We just know when we have to have the papers filed for that office. 

John Bjornson (32 :03-36:08) 

Chairman Jim Kasper Our district size average is a l ittle over 1 4,300 people. There a re 
some county commissioners out there who have established one precinct in  the entire 
d istrict. You have one huge g lob of 1 4,300 people with one precinct .  How are we, e ither 
one of us as parties, able to identify where our voting base is when our whole district is one 
p recinct? The idea here is to say we have to have a number of precincts in  each district so 
we can determine where our voting strength and weaknesses. In my district we were down 
to two precincts and we prevai led on the county auditor through the county commissioner 
to add one more precinct. That sti l l  is only three precincts for 1 4,300 . 

Rep. Steven Zaiser I concur with your  thoughts. One of the concerns I have, though ,  i n  
Cass County Mr .  Montplaisir is  having a hard time getting people to work at  the e lections. 
If  we have more precincts, then we are going to have more election sites. 

Chairman Jim Kasper This does not require anyth ing about the voting  locations. Th is is 
simply how we count the vote. We cou ld sti l l  have one voting location for three or four  
precincts. They could be combined . 

Rep. Gail Mooney I n  Trai l l  County there is only community that has p recincts and that is 
Mayvi l le. It has three or four  precincts. Does that mean then our auditor or somebody has 
to go about the business of establ ishing precincts throughout the county? 

Chairman Jim Kasper Correct. Under this amendment no precinct can have more than 
2 , 500 people, so if the city of Mayvi lle had 3 ,000 people, you have 1 1 , 000 people in  the 
other a rea of the d istrict. You are going to have to d ivide that by 2 ,500, so you a re going to 
have fou r  more precincts. 
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Rep. Gail Mooney That doesn't mean we have to change our voting procedu res as far as 
the county is concerned , so monetarily we are not stuck with more voting places and that 
type of th ing .  

Chairman Jim Kasper Correct, so we can identify where our voters are.  It helps both 
parties. 

Rep. Karen Karls My d istrict has five or six precincts and five or six election boards .  How 
d oes that work in an urban d istrict where there is one or two precincts? Do they now have 
to h i re five or six election boards? 

Chairman Jim Kasper This has noth ing to do with the voting or the voting  locations.  You 
can continue to vote exactly the way you are right now, but when people vote, you a re 
going to identify that they are located in this area and this area by precinct. We wil l  get a 
better count of where the votes are tal l ied in the locations that they were voted on.  

Vice Chair Randy Boehning This is similar to early voting l ike in  Fargo,  where we go to 
one of the hotels and tel l  them where you l ive, get your bal lot, and go vote, so you don't 
have to have another board . 

Chairman Jim Kasper That is correct. 

Rep. Jason Dockter Our new d istrict, District 7, and we put in out bylaws that we have six 
precincts. It real ly does help to know where you vote. 

Chairman Jim Kasper John,  do you sti l l  have the breakdown of the map so if an  aud itor 
wishes to see how many people l ive in what location ,  that mapping is avai lable? 

John Bjornson Yes, we do. In red istricting we get population data from the census bureau 
broken down to what they cal l  the b lock level .  The block level could be a city block and in 
some areas it  is a sl iver of the off ramp on the interstate. Leading up to the census, our 
office participated in what they called Phase 2 of the census redistricting  p roject. What we 
d id is we worked with the Secretary of State to get information from county aud itors to map 
the existing precincts. They are doing what they call the American Commun ity Survey that 
can provide aud itors information .  

Chairman Jim Kasper The census data i s  based o n  the last census s o  we don't have to 
be concerned with population changes, because we have no way of knowing popu lation 
changes, and we have to organ ize the d istricts based on the census anyway. That a lso 
makes it simpler as far as how the precinct l ines wou ld be d rawn . 

John Bjornson Exactly. (43 :56-44:33) 

Rep. Steven Zaiser Section 1 2 , where if there is a write in ballot, you are requ i red to fi l l  i n  
the oval. 

John Bjornson That is part of the orig inal b i l l .  I just deal with the amendments. 



House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2369 
April 5, 201 3 
Page 5 

Chairman Jim Kasper The effort in these amendments is to simplify and to give the 
parties more strength and power in their separate area at the state committee level and the 
district level. 

AI Jaeger, Secretary of State, appeared. Wherever the color stops on the pages of the 
handout, would have been the information that we testified in front of this committee before. 
Those pages deal with election administration. Because of goals beyond something that 
happens in the state but actually on the presidential election level, we were forced to put a 
4th column on the ballot in the June election for the Constitution Party. There wasn't one 
candidate at all listed in there. The whole reason for that column was so that they could 
have their presidential candidate so identified. That one empty column created enormous 
challenges for the preparation of the ballot and, in some cases, forced counties to go to a 
two page ballot. Ballot stock is very expensive. The amendment doesn't change existing 
law in terms of political party organization. It takes the state and the county auditors out of 
the business completely. This is taking out what we felt was state law dictating to political 
parties what to do. Back to Rep. Zaiser's earlier question, this applies equally to everyone. 
Under this law they are all the same. We encourage the first part that was changed. 
Answering your question, Rep. Koppelman, there is a framework here but basically it is 
your bylaws and how you do things and it takes the state out of everything completely. 

Rep. Bill Amerman A lot of this depends on the bylaws that each party brings forward. If  
there is a conflict in the bylaws, does it go to a court system? Do you get copies of the 
bylaws? 

AI Jaeger The original bill you received had language in that the bylaws would be filed with 
our office. This takes this out completely. That is an internal political party challenge. If 
that doesn't resolve, it is a civil matter. 

Rep. Vernon Laning Do we need an effective date? 

AI Jaeger August 1 .  

Rep. Karen Karls It would behoove each district, each party to have bylaws, to update 
them, and to make sure there are copies of them out there. 

AI Jaeger I would agree. Your county auditor, Kevin, knows who to call if he doesn't know 
the precinct people, and that person should know. I don't know what precinct I live in, but I 
do know when I give them my ID and they pull up my record, it shows the precinct. 

Rep. Steven Zaiser We recently killed a bill that talked about write in ballots because we 
thought it was going to be too awkward. My concern is that having to fill that oval in puts an 
undue pressure on the people voting for that person. 

AI Jaeger There are basically 300,000 ballots being run through a scanner, and the only 
way the scanner can detect whether there is a write in vote is if there is something there. 
The only way it would ever come up is if there was a recount. Then ballots would probably 
be looked at individually and then they would have to determine voter intent. If you wanted 
it counted, you need to fill in the oval. 
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Rep. Steven Zaiser The point is . . .  

Chairman Jim Kasper Having served on an election board, the fact that someone writes a 
name in without putting a mark in the oval, and there are other names there without a mark 
in the oval, the election judge has no way of knowing the intent of the person unless there 
is a mark in the oval. 

Rep. Steven Zaiser We talked about these small communities where somebody would at 
the last minute potentially be precluded from having a write in name on their ballot. 

Chairman Jim Kasper This does not pertain to that. 

Rep. Steven Zaiser The point is that would have to be manually counted. 

Chairman Jim Kasper This does not pertain to that. It just says if you want the election 
judges to count the ballot if you write in a candidate, you have to darken the oval. 
Otherwise, it won't be counted. 

AI Jaeger I believe there are instructions on the ballot about darkening the oval. 

Rep. G ail Mooney We have districts that are predefined for each of our five 
commissioners. Could a person use each of those districts as the precinct boundary lines 
type of thing? 

AI Jaeger I would suspect that you can. Doesn't your district cross the county line? 

Rep. Gail Mooney It does. 

AI Jaeger This is just within the county. Traill County can't tell Cass County what they 
need to do. 

Rep. Gail Mooney Each county would just formulate based on what makes sense to them 
then. 

Chairman Jim Kasper Correct. 

Rep. Gary Paur I f  you have a voting precinct covering three townships and you have this 
2 ,500 designation that is met in two townships, can you call them both precincts? 

AI Jaeger Keep in mind you are not necessarily going to be voting in each precinct. You 
are going to have a ballot identified with that precinct. The 2 , 500 is purely a number thing. 

Rep. Gary Pau r I realize that, but we are calling that a precinct and then we also have 
voting precincts. 

AI Jaeger They are one and the same. You have a precinct. Our equipment can take 
ballots for 1 5-20 precincts in one scanner. You can have one voting location for multiple 
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precincts. The precinct identifies where the people live. It doesn't identify where the voting 
takes place. 

Rep. Gary Paur I realize all that, but the terminology is the same. 

AI Jaeger No, we use polling locations to identify. 

Rep. Ben Koppelman moved to adopt the amendments. 

Rep. Jason Dockter seconded. 

A voice vote was taken. Motion carries. 

Rep. Karen Karls moved a Do pass as amended. 

Vice Chair Randy Boehning seconded. 

Chairman Jim Kasper The intent of my efforts on these amendments are to clarify state 
law, to make it simpler for all parties to function, and to delineate the duties of the state 
party and the district organization so that we don't have, at least in the republican side of 
things, a fight inside that is not really conducive to any of our goals. I am sure our friends in 
the democrat party would agree. 

Rep. Bill Amerman We don't mind if you guys fight. 

A roll call vote was taken and resulted in DO PASS AS AMEN DED, 1 2-1 , 1 ABSENT. 
Chairman Jim Kasper is the carrier. 

Rep. Jason Dockter Thank you for your hard work, and I like the local control for each 
district. 

Vice Chair Randy Boehning When I started in party politics back in the mid 80s, I was in 
Rep. Amerman's District 27 , which is half of Richland and Ransom County. We had 30 
plus precincts, because each township was a precinct. We started consolidating. You 
should have heard the uproar. It is now bringing back a little more local control here. 



Amendment to: SB 2369 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0112812013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d d d eve s an appropnat10ns ant1c1pate un er current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
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Bill/Resolution No.:  SB 2369 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/2812013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . t' t'. t d d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tCJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
! ! ' 
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Apri l 2 ,  20 1 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2369 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "to" i nsert "create and enact a new section to chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to politica l party organization ;  to" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" insert " 1 6 . 1 -03-01 , 1 6 . 1 -03-02 ,  1 6 . 1 -03-03, 1 6 . 1 -03-05, 
1 6 . 1 -03-07 , 1 6 . 1 -03-08, 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 1 , 1 6 . 1 -03-14 , 1 6 . 1 -03-1 7 ,  1 6 . 1 -04-01 , "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, after "to" insert "pol itical party organization,  voting precincts , and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, replace "el igibi l ity for minor pol itical parties" with " ;  and to repeal sections 
1 6. 1 -03- 1 2  and 1 6 . 1 -03-1 9 of the North Dakota Century Code , relating to political party 
organ izat ion" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as fol lows: 

Organizations allowed to nominate statewide and legislative candidates. 

A pol itical organization may not endorse candidates or have candidates petition 
for president. vice president, Congress. statewide office. or legislative office as set forth 
in chapter 1 6 . 1 - 1 1 .  unless the organization : 

.1. Organ ized according to al l requi rements of this chapter; 

£. Had printed on the bal lot at the last preceding general election the names 
of a set of presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's 
candidate for president and vice president. a candidate for governor, a 
cand idate for attorney general, or a candidate for secretary of state and 
those candidates for presidential e lectors, governor. attorney general, or 
secretary of state received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 
presidential electors, the office of governor, attorney general, or secretary 
of state within this state at that election and organized accord ing to al l  
requi rements of this chapter; or 

� Filed a petition with the secretary of state signed by the number of electors 
requi red under section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -30 to qual ify to endorse candidates or to 
have candidates petition to be i ncluded on the primary election bal lot in a 
consolidated column or on a special election bal lot. 

SECTION 2. AM ENDM ENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 6. 1 -03-01 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and 
manner of holding - Caucus call - Notice. 

1 .  Each legislative d istrict party shall organize in conformance with the state 
legis lative district boundaries as establ ished by the legislative assembly 
and as set forth under chapter 54-03. 

� On or before May fifteenth fol lowing the last preceding general election, a 
party caucus must be held by every election precinct at a site with in or 
reasonably close to the precinct in the manner provided in sections 
1 6 . 1 -03-01 through 1 6 . 1 -03-03. 

�� The legislative d istrict chairman of each party shal l  issue the callset the 
date and time for the precinct caucus at least twenty days before the time 
set for holding the caucus and the. If there is not a d istrict chairman in a 
legis lative d istrict, the state party executive committee may issue the cal l  
for the precinct caucus. The cal l  must conta in the fol lowing :  

a .  Name of party. 

b .  Precinctlegislative d istrict and precinct number or  name. 

c. Date of caucus. 

d. Place of caucus. 

e.  Hours of caucus. 

f. A statement of the business to be conducted , inc lud ing the election of 
precinct committeemen and such other personsin dividuals as may be 
provided by state law and d istrict party rulesbylaws. 

g .  The name of the d istrict chairman or. if there is n ot a d istrict chairman, 
the member of the state party executive committee issuing the cal l .  

aA .  The district chairman or, if there is not a district chairman, the state party 
executive committee shal l  provide ten days' publ ished notice in the official 
newspaper in  ci rculation with in each precinct i n  the d istrict .  The notices 
must contain that i nformation set forth in subsection ��. The district 
chairman may include the information requ i red by this section for al l  
precincts in  the d istrict may be i ncluded in one notice for publ ishing 
purposes. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-02. Who may partic ipate in and vote at caucus. 

1 .  Only those personsindividuals who are qual ified electors pursuant tounder 
section 1 6 . 1 -01 -04 may vote or be elected as committeemen or officers at 
the precinct caucus. 

2 .  On ly  those personsindividuals who either voted or affi l i ated with the party 
at the last general election or intend to vote or affi l iate with the party and 
vote with the party at the next general election may vote at the precinct 
caucus. 
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3 .  I n  case the right of a personan individual to participate at the caucus is 
challenged, the question of the person'sindividual's right to participate must 
be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. A personAn individual so 
chal lenged may not vote on the question of the person'sind ividual 's right to 
participate in the caucus, and a two-th i rds vote of the whole caucus is 
requ ired to exclude a personan individual from participation . 

4 .  No personAn individual may not vote or participate a t  more than one 
precinct caucus in any one year. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6.1 -03-03. Caucus business and elections Political parties entitled to 
elect committeemen. 

1 .  Eaeh preeinet eaueus shall eleet a ehairman, eommitteemen as provided in 
subseotion 3, and other officers as may be provided by party rules. The 
caucus may also discuss party policies, candidates, and any other 
business as prescribed by party rules. 

2--:- NG� pol itical organization is entitled to elect a precin ct committeeman at its 
precinct caucus unlessif: 

a .  The organization nominated and had printed on the bal lot at  the last 
preceding general  election the names of a set of presidential electors 
pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and vice 
president or a candidate for governor, attorney general ,  or secretary of 
state; and 

b. The candidates provided for in  subdivision a received at least five 
percent of the total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, 
attorney general ,  or secretary of state with in this state at that election . 

&.-£. Each pol itical party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise 
qual ifying under subsection �1. is entitled to elect one precinct 
committeeman for each two hundred fifty votes, or majority of a fraction 
thereof, cast for the party's presidentia l  electors, governor, attorney 
general ,  or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general  election. 
Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct comm itteeman for each 
party which qual ifies under subsection �1. Each precinct committeeman 
m ust be an elector of the precinct in  which the committeeman resides and 
must be elected for a two-year term . 

� If a political organization desires to organize under this chapter but has not 
qual ified as provided in subsection 1, the organ ization may elect one 
precinct committeeman for each precinct in the district. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-05. Vacancies in office of precinct committeeman - Fi l l ing.  

A vacancy in the office of precinct committeeman, which occurs after the 
organization of the district committee, mtffitmay be fi l led by appointment from the 
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precinct by the d istrict executive committee of the party. Notiae of the appointment 
must be gi•;en to the aounty auditor. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-07. Meeting of d istrict committee - Organization.  

1 .  I n  every odd-numbered year, the district committee of each party shal l  
meet with in  fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in  section 
1 6 . 1 -03-01 . The day, hour, and site must be set by the exist ing district 
committee chairman . +AeAny incumbent members of the legislative 
assembly, the precinct committeemen of a party, selected as provided by 
this chapter, witRand any other personsindividual provided for by the 
district committee's bylaws and as the distriot aommittee designates, 
constitute the d istrict committee of the party. The d istrict committee of a 
party must be organized to coincide with the geographical boundary l ines 
of state legislative districts . Each member of any com mittee provided for in 
this chapter must be a qual ified elector and must retain the offiae the 
member was eleated to until a suaaessor is ahosen. 

£. The distriat aommittee shall organize by: 
a:- Selecting a ahairman, •;iae ahairman, searetary, and treasurer ahosen 

byprecinct committeemen and the incumbent members of the 
legislative assembly from the district sha l l  select the officers of the 
d istrict committee. The officers selected, as provided by the d istrict 
party bylaws, need not be precinct committeemen;  however, a l l  the 
officers m ust be vot ing members of the district committee. The d istrict 
committee shall forward to the state committee the name and contact 
information of the d istrict committee chairman.  

&.- Adopting rules and modes of proaedure not in confliat with law. 

&:- F"illing any vaaanaies in the offiae of preainat aommitteeman pursuant 
to section 16.1 03 05. 

d-:- SeleatingThe district committee may appoint an  executive committee 
aonsisting of five or more persons ahosen from the distriat aommittee. 
The chairman, viae ahairman, treasurer, and secretary of the district 
aommittee must be members and the officers of the exeautive 
aommitteeconsistent with the bylaws of the district committee. That 
party's nominees for and members of the legislative assembly may 
also beshal l  serve as members of the executive committee. 

�� If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the viae ahairman shall hold the 
offiae until the next regular eleation for the offiae or until a new ahairman is 
seleated by the distriat aommittee for the balanae of the term, 'Nhiahever 
oaaurs firstvacancy may be fi l led as provided by the d istrict party bylaws . 

4. The bylaws of the state committee or state party may not include any 
requi rement provid ing d i rectives or procedures for the method of the 
organization of district committees nor may the state committee or state 
party take any action or impose any requirement regarding district party 
organization which is not consistent with this chapter. 
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SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. 

The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the 
d istrict committees of the party and any person ind ividual provided for in the bylaws of 
the state committee. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 1  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 .  State committee - Meetings - Organization VacaRcies. 

The state committee shal l  meet on or before Ju ly  first of each odd-numbered 
year. The committee shal l  organize by selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, 
and treasurerofficers as provided for by the state committee bylaws and by adopting 
rules and modes of procedure. including ru les and procedures regarding the se lection 
of state convention delegates. The party's bylaws must be filed with the secretary of 
state. The officers elected need not be members of the committee, but they shall 
become voting members of the committee after their election. Within  thirty days 
fo l lowing the state committee's organization,  the newly elected chairman shall notify 
the secretary of state of the names of the party officers selected . These officers, with 
any other persons provided for by the party's bylaws and as the state committee 
designates, constitute the executive committee of the state committee. If the office of 
chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman holds the office until the next regular 
election for the office or until a nev; chairman is selected by the state committee for the 
balance of the term, ·.vhichever occurs first. A vacancy in an office of the state 
committee, other than chairman and a party district chairman, must be filled upon a 
majority vote of the state committee. The chairman of the state committee may 
temporarily fill any •;acancy existing on the state committee until the state committee 
convenes to fill the vacancy. The secretary of state must be notified of any changes in 
membership of the state's committee officers. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 4  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 4. WheR state party coRveRtioR held aRd duties of stateState party 
convention. 

1., The state party conventions must be held in each presidential election year 
at a place and time designated by the party state committee shal l  set the 
place and t ime of the state party convention to be held in  each general 
election year. The state party convention provided for in this chapter 
sRaUSubject to party rules and bylaws, the state party convention may: 

4:- £.:. Nominate the legal number of candidatesqual ified electors for its party 
for the offices of presidential electors . 

� Q., Elect the requ ired number of delegates and alternates to the national 
party convention as provided by the party's byla·Ns or national party 
rules. 

� Conduct other business as shall come before the convention. 
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.Q,_ Endorse candidates as provided under subsection 2 .  

£. The candidate or candidates for endorsement or election must be declared 
endorsed or elected pursuant tounder the rules of the party involved , and 
the chairman and secretary of the convention shal l  issue certificates of 
endorsement as provided in section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -06 or certificates of election .  
The names of the candidatesqualified electors nominated for presidential 
electors with the surname of the presidential candidate the party wishes to 
place on the general election bal lot must be certified by the chairman and 
secretary of the convention to the secretary of state by four p .m .  on the 
sixtieth day before the general e lection to be placed upon the general  
election ballot as provided i n  section 1 6 . 1 -06-07 . 1 .  

SECTION 1 0. AM ENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 7  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-1 7. Pol itical party reorganization after apportionmentredistricting. 

If apportionmentredistrict ing of the legislative assembly becomes effective after 
the organization of pol itical parties as provided i n  this chapter and before the primary or 
the general election, the secretary of state shall establish a timetable for the 
reorganization of the parties as rapidly as possible before the ensuing election. When 
the timetable is established, the secretary of state shall notify all the county auditors of 
the timetable and of the details of the legislative apportionment as it affects each 
county. The secretary of state or county auditor may not require reorganization of 
precincts in 'Nhich boundaries are unchanged after apportionment by the board of 
county commissioners or the governing body of the city pursuant to chapter 16.1 04. 
Each county auditor shall publish a notice in the official county newspaper containing: 

4-:- A statement that legislative apportionment has occurred. 

� A description and a map of the new legislati·;e districts and the precincts as 
established by the governing bodies of the counties and cities in the 
county, pursuant to section 16.1 04 01. 

� The date, time, and places of the presinst saucuses and distrist committee 
meetings determined by the sesretary of state and the county auditor to be 
necessary assording to the new districts and presincts established. 

Tfle pol itical parties, in the newly establ ished precincts and d istricts, shal l  tAeR 
proceed to reorganize as closely as possible i n  conformance with this chapter aR€1-+rl 
conformance with the timetable established by the sesretary of stateto assure 
compl iance with primary election fi l i ng dead l ines .  

SECTION 11 .  AMEN DMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -04-01 of  the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -04-01 . Precincts - Duties and responsibil ities of the board of county 
commissioners or the governing body of the city . 

.1. The board of county commiss ioners of each county: 

4-:- � Shal l  divide the county into precincts and establ ish the precinct 
boundaries,  except that with i n  the boundaries of any incorporated city, 
the govern ing body of the city shal l  d ivide the city i nto precincts and 
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establ ish their boundaries pursuant to title 40. Any number of 
townships or parts of townships may be joined i nto a s ingle precinct 
provided that no precinct may encompass more than one legislative 
district. 

� .!;L May alter the number and size of precincts with i n  the county by 
combin ing or dividing precincts. However, the govern ing body of any 
incorporated city has the authority to alter the number  and size of 
precincts located with in its boundaries . The board of county 
commissioners may rel inquish the jurisdiction provided under 
subsection 1 subdivision a over al l  or any portion of a township or 
townships under its jurisdiction to a city for the purpose of establ ish ing 
a voting precinct if a majority of the govern ing body of the city agrees 
to assume such jurisd iction. The govern ing body of a city, by majority 
vote, may return jurisdiction g ranted herein to the county and the 
county shal l  accept that jurisd iction .  

£. No precinct may have a population of more than two thousand five 
hundred. as determined by the last federal decennia l  census ."  

Page 6 ,  after l ine 1 0 ,  i nsert: 

"SECTION 1 6. REPEAL. Sections 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 2  and 1 6 . 1 -03-1 9 of the North 
Dakota Century Code are repealed . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2369, as reengrossed: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Kasper, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS ( 12  YEAS, 1 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Reengrossed SB 2369 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "to" insert "create and enact a new section to chapter 1 6. 1 -03 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to political party organization; to" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" insert " 1 6. 1 -03-01 , 1 6 . 1 -03-02, 1 6 . 1 -03-03, 1 6. 1 -03-05, 
1 6 . 1 -03-07, 1 6. 1 -03-08, 1 6. 1 -03-1 1 ,  1 6. 1 -03-14 ,  1 6. 1 -03- 17 ,  1 6. 1 -04-0 1 , "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2,  after "to" insert "political party organization, voting precincts, and" 

Page 1 ,  line 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  line 3, replace "eligibi lity for minor political parties" with "; and to repeal sections 
1 6. 1 -03- 12  and 1 6. 1 -03- 1 9  of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to political 
party organization" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 4, i nsert: 

"SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 1 6. 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Organ izations allowed to nominate statewide and legislative 
candidates. 

A pol itical organization may not endorse candidates or have candidates 
petition for president. vice president, Congress, statewide office, or legislative office 
as set forth in chapter 1 6 . 1 -1 1, unless the organization: 

.1. Organized according to all requirements of this chapter; 

2.  Had printed on the ballot at the last preceding general election the names 
of a set of presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's 
candidate for president and vice president, a candidate for governor, a 
candidate for attorney general, or a candidate for secretary of state and 
those candidates for presidential electors, governor, attorney general, or 
secretary of state received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 
presidential electors, the office of governor. attorney general, or secretary 
of state with in this state at that election and organized according to al l  
requirements of this chapter; or 

1_ Fi led a petition with the secretary of state signed by the number of 
electors required under section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -30 to qualify to endorse 
candidates or to have candidates petition to be included on the primary 
election ballot in a consolidated column or on a special election bal lot. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-01 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and 
manner of holding - Caucus call - Notice. 

1 .  Each legislative district party shall organize in conformance with the state 
legislative district boundaries as established by the legislative assembly 
and as set forth under chapter 54-03. 

2,. On or before May fifteenth following the last preced ing general election, a 
party caucus must be held by every election precinct at a site within or 
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reasonably close to the precinct in the manner provided in sections 
1 6. 1 -03-01 through 1 6. 1 -03-03. 

�3. The legislative district chairman of each party shal l  issue the callset the 
date and time for the precinct caucus at least twenty days before the time 
set for holding the caucus and the. If there is not a district chairman in a 
legislative district. the state party executive committee may issue the call 
for the precinct caucus. The call must contain the following:  

a .  Name of party. 

b .  Precinctleqislative district and precinct number or name. 

c. Date of caucus. 

d. P lace of caucus. 

e. Hours of caucus. 

f. A statement of the business to be conducted, including the election 
of precinct committeemen and such other personsindividuals as may 
be provided by state law and district party rutesbylaws. 

g .  The name of the district chairman or, if there is not a d istrict 
chairman. the member of the state party executive committee issu ing 
the cal l .  

6:-4. The district chairman or, if there is not a district chairman, the state party 
executive committee shall provide ten days' published notice in the 
official newspaper in circulation with in each precinct in the d istrict. The 
notices must contain that information set forth in subsection ��. The 
district chairman may include the information required by this section for 
al l  precincts in the district may be included in one notice for publ ishing 
purposes. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-02. Who may participate in and vote at caucus. 

1 .  Only those personsindividuals who are qual ified electors pursuant 
tounder section 1 6. 1 -01 -04 may vote or be elected as committeemen or 
officers at the precinct caucus. 

2. Only those personsindividuals who either voted or affiliated with the party 
at the last general election or intend to vote or affi l iate with the party and 
vote with the party at the next general election may vote at the precinct 
caucus. 

3. In case the right of a personan individual to participate at the caucus is 
challenged, the question of the person'sindividual's right to participate 
must be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. /\ personAn individual so 
chal lenged may not vote on the question of the person'sindividual's right 
to participate in the caucus, and a two-thirds vote of the whole caucus is 
required to exclude a personan individual from participation. 

4. No personAn individual may not vote or participate at more than one 
precinct caucus in any one year. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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16 .1-03-03. Causus business and elestions Political parties entitled to 
elect committeemen. 

1 .  Each precinct caucus shall elect a chairman, committeemen as pro¥ided 
in subsection 3, and other officers as may be pro•1ided by party rules. The 
caucus may also discuss party policies, candidates, and any other 
business as prescribed by party rules. 

&.. Ne� political organization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at 
its precinct caucus �jf: 

a. The organ ization nominated and had printed on the ballot at the last 
preceding general election the names of a set of presidential electors 
pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and 
vice president or a candidate for governor, attorney general ,  or 
secretary of state; and 

b. The candidates provided for in subd ivision a received at least five 
percent of the total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, 
attorney general ,  or secretary of state with in this state at that 
election. 

�2. Each political party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise 
qual ifying under subsection �1. is entitled to elect one precinct 
committeeman for each two hundred fifty votes, or majority of a fraction 
thereof, cast for the party's presidential electors, governor, attorney 
general, or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general  election. 
Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct committeeman for each 
party which qual ifies under subsection �1- Each precinct committeeman 
must be an elector of the precinct in which the committeeman resides 
and must be elected for a two-year term. 

� If a pol itical organization desires to organize under this chapter but has 
not qualified as provided in subsection 1, the organization may elect one 
precinct committeeman for each precinct in the d istrict. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-05. Vacancies in office of precinct committeeman - Fill ing. 

A vacancy in  the office of precinct committeeman, which occurs after the 
organ ization of the district committee, ffl\:ffitmay be filled by appointment from the 
precinct by the district executive committee of the party. Notice of the appointment 
must be gi¥en to the county auditor. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

16 .1-03-07. Meeting of district committee - Organization. 

1 .  In every odd-numbered year, the d istrict committee of each party shal l 
meet within fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in section 
1 6. 1 -03-0 1 .  The day, hour, and site must be set by the existing d istrict 
committee chairman. TAeAny incumbent members of the legislative 
assembly, the precinct committeemen of a party, selected as provided by 
this chapter, witRand any other personsindividual provided for by the 
district committee's bylaws and as the district committee designates, 
constitute the district committee of the party. The district committee of a 
party must be organized to coincide with the geographical boundary l ines 
of state legislative d istricts. Each member of any committee provided for 
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in this chapter must be a qualified elector and must retain the offise the 
member was elested to until a sussessor is shosen. 

2. The distrist sommittee shall organize by: 
&. Selesting a shairman, vise shairman, sesretary, and treasurer 

shosen byprecinct committeemen and the incumbent members of 
the legislative assembly from the district shall select the officers of 
the district committee. The officers selected, as provided by the 
district party bylaws, need not be precinct committeemen; however, 
al l  the officers must be voting members of the district committee. The 
district committee shall forward to the state committee the name and 
contact information of the district committee chairman. 

&. Adopting rules and modes of prosedure not in sonflist with law. 
&. Filling any vasansies in the offise of presinst sommitteeman pursuant 

to sestion 16.1 oa 05. 
G:- SelectingThe district committee may appoint an executive committee 

sonsisting of fi'Je or more persons chosen from the distrist 
sommittee. The shairman, vise shairman, treasurer, and sesretary of 
the distrist sommittee must be members and the offisers of the 
exesuti't'e sommitteeconsistent with the bylaws of the district 
committee. That party's nominees for and members of the legislative 
assembly may also beshall serve as members of the executive 
committee. 

�3. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vise shairman shall hold 
the offise until the next regular elestion for the offise or until a new 
shairman is selected by the distrist sommittee for the balance of the term, 
whishever ossurs firstvacancy may be filled as provided by the district 
party bylaws. 

4. The bylaws of the state committee or state party may not include any 
requirement provid ing directives or procedures for the method of the 
organization of district committees nor may the state committee or state 
party take any action or impose any requirement regarding district party 
organization which is not consistent with this chapter. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. 

The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the 
district committees of the party and any pefSOOindividual provided for in the bylaws 
of the state committee. 

SECTION B. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-1 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 1 .  State committee - Meetings - Organization VaGaRGies. 
The state committee shall meet on or before July first of each odd-numbered 

year. The committee shall organize by selecting a shairman, vise shairman, 
sesretary, and treasurerofficers as provided for by the state committee bylaws and by 
adopting rules and modes of procedure. including rules and procedures regarding 
the selection of state convention delegates. The party's bylaws must be filed with the 
sesretary of state. The officers elested need not be members of the sommittee, but 
they shall besome voting members of the sommittee after their elestion. Within thirty 
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days following the state committee's organization, the newly elected chairman shall 
notify the secretary of state of the names of the party officers selected.-+Aese 
officers, with any other persons pro\•ided for by the party's bylaws and as the state 
committee designates, constitute the e)(ecuti•;e committee of the state committee. If 
the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman holds the office until the 
ne)(t regular election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the state 
committee for the balance of the term, whichever occurs first. A •;acancy in an office 
of the state committee, other than chairman and a party district chairman, must be 
filled upon a majority vote of the state committee. The chairman of the state 
committee may temporarily fill any •;acancy e)(isting on the state committee until the 
state committee con·;enes to fill the vacancy. The secretary of state must be notified 
of any changes in membership of the state's committee officers. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 16 . 1 -03-14 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

16 .1-03-14. When state party sonvention held and duties of stateState 
party convention. 

1.:. The state party conventions must be held in each presidential election 
year at a place and time designated by the party state committee shall 
set the place and time of the state party convention to be held in each 
general election year. The state party convention provided for in this 
chapter shaiiSubject to party rules and bylaws, the state party convention 
may: 

4-:- a. Nominate the legal number of candidatesqualified electors for its 
party for the offices of presidential electors. 

� Q,. Elect the required number of delegates and alternates to the national 
party convention as provided by the party's bylaws or national party 
rules. 

� Conduct other business as shall come before the convention. 

c. Endorse candidates as provided under subsection 2. 

£. The candidate or cand idates for endorsement or election must be 
declared endorsed or elected pursuant tounder the rules of the party 
involved, and the chairman and secretary of the convention shall issue 
certificates of endorsement as provided in section 1 6. 1 -1 1 -06 or 
certificates of election .  The names of the candidatesqualified electors 
nominated for presidential electors with the surname of the presidential 
candidate the party wishes to place on the general election bal lot must 
be certified by the chairman and secretary of the convention to the 
secretary of state by four p.m. on the sixtieth day before the general 
election to be placed upon the general election ballot as provided in 
section 16 . 1 -06-07. 1 .  

SECTION 1 0. AMENDMENT. Section 16 . 1 -03-1 7 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 7.  Political party reorganization after 
apportionmentredistricting. 

If apportionmentredistricting of the leg islative assembly becomes effective 
after the organization of political parties as provided in this chapter and before the 
primary or the general election,  the secretary of state shall establish a timetable for 
the reorganization of the parties as rapidly as possible before the ensuing election. 
When the timetable is established, the secretary of state shall notify all the county 
auditors of the timetable and of the details of the legislati•;e apportionment as it 
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affeots eaoh oounty. The seoretary of state or oounty auditor may not reEluire 
reorgani;mtion of preoinots in whioh boundaries are unohanged after apportionment 
by the board of oounty oommissioners or the governing body of the oity pursuant to 
ohapter 16.1 04. Eaoh oounty auditor shall publish a notioe in the offioial oounty 

newspaper oontaining: 

4-:- A statement that legislative apportionment has ooourred. 

� /\ desoription and a map of the new legislative distriots and the preoinots 
as established by the go\•erning bodies of the oounties and oities in the 
oounty, pursuant to seotion 16.1 04 01. 

� The date, time, and plaoes of the preoinot oauouses and distriot 
oommittee meetings determined by the seoretary of state and the oounty 
auditor to be neoessary aooording to the new distriots and preoinots 
established. 

TRe political parties, in the newly established precincts and districts, shall tAerl 
proceed to reorganize as closely as possible in conformance with this chapter aRG-ffi 
oonformanoe with the timetable established by the seoretary of stateto assure 
compliance with primary election fi l ing deadl ines. 

SECTION 1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -04-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -04-01 .  Precincts - Duties and responsibilities of the board of 
county commissioners or the governing body of the city . 

.1. The board of county commissioners of each county: 

4-:- a. Shal l  d ivide the county into precincts and establish the precinct 
boundaries, except that within the boundaries of any incorporated 
city, the governing body of the city shall divide the city into precincts 
and establish their boundaries pursuant to title 40. Any number of 
townships or parts of townships may be joined into a single precinct 
provided that no precinct may encompass more than one legislative 
district. 

� .!L May alter the number and size of precincts within the county by 
combining or d ividing precincts. However, the governing body of any 
incorporated city has the authority to alter the number and size of 
precincts located with in its boundaries. The board of county 
commissioners may rel inquish the jurisd iction provided under 
subseotion 1 subdivision a over al l or any portion of a township or 
townships under its jurisd iction to a city for the purpose of 
establish ing a voting precinct if a majority of the govern ing body of 
the city agrees to assume such jurisdiction . The governing body of a 
city, by majority vote, may return jurisdiction granted herein to the 
county and the county shall accept that jurisdiction.  

2.  No precinct may have a population of more than two thousand five 
hundred, as determined by the last federal decennial census." 

Page 6,  after l ine 1 0,  insert: 

"SECTION 1 6. REPEAL. Sections 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 2  and 1 6. 1 -03-1 9 of the North 
Dakota Century Code are repealed . "  

Renumber accord ingly 
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Job Number 21 202 

Chairman Schai ble: Opened the hearing on SB 2369. 

Representative Kasper: Explained the changes that the House made to the bill by walking 

through the bill (version 1 3.8257 .0301 0) and gave the history of it. (See Attachments # 1  

and # 2  for additional information to the bill . )  

( 1 6 : 1 6)Senator Nelson: You mentioned that the meeting has to be held in the d istrict and 

in Fargo we all meet at the same place and at the same time. We do all of the stuff 

together. We have precinct elections prior to district elections. We have the election of 

offices there. Earlier you said "or a place close to it" and you said we did not have to do it 

in the district. Now what I heard you say was that this meeting has to be in the district? 

Representative Kasper: No. It does not say that and that is not my intent to say that. It just 

said that it would be held within 1 5  days of the precinct caucus to elect the district officers, 

but I did not mean to imply that it had to be in the district. We do the same thing in the 

Republican Party - we meet in one spot. This took us 1 0  different amendments to get to this 

point. (Returned to page 5 line 4) 

(26 : 1 0) Representative Kasper: Referenced Attachment #2 and talked about precincts 

and then returned to page 8 of bill. 

(28 :28) Chairman Schai ble: Are there any other quick questions or comments? 
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Senator Nelson: We had a similar problem to 46 and the issue was when did the district 

committee exist? Was it, in your district, on the date of the death Senator Fischer or the 

date of the resignation of Representative Schneider? Because people tried to stack the 

deck after the case to fill the executive committee so that their person can get in. So, our 

state bylaws were changed to say that it is the executive committee that exists on the day 

of the vacancy. I don't see anything in here to say that we cannot do that because you said 

that we have to have everything that is in here but we can have other things. I think this 

problem is solved, but I remember what we went through for several weeks because of this 

rogue group that wanted to take over. 

Representative Kasper: I would make one suggestion; I would incorporate the state party 

bylaws into your d istrict bylaws so that it is clear. 

Senator Nelson: They are. The reason we did not concur was because of page 9 line 4. If 

there is a d ifferentiation between precincts and precincts are only for our working capacity 

and not as polling places, but I think that needs to be make specifically clear because we 

have two precincts and it works pretty well. We know that they either live on the north side 

or the south side. We used to have 7 and they were basically around schools that used to 

have polling places but they don't anymore. What we need is a few more people working 

at polling places so that there is not a line at 8 o'clock. In Fargo where do you find places to 

vote that have adequate parking. 

Representative Kasper: This does not interfere at all with the polling places, but it simply 

will require that there will be a minimum of six precincts in each district so that when you 

get your election results you will be able to see more detail on where you have some 

strengths and where you might want to do some work. 

Senator Schaible: Adjourned the conference committee. 
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Chairman Schaible: I bel ieve that when we adjourned last time that Representative 

Kasper had just fin ished his walk-through of the bi l l .  Are there any questions that we have 

from that? 

Senator Dever: I bel ieve there was some simple language that was non-controversial  for a 

section of the bi l l  and I wonder if you might want to share that. 

Chairman Schaible: I had a question on the mocked up version , page 5, l ine 30, but if you 

turn over to page 6, the language is already in there; which is not consistent with this 

chapter. That is j ust in  there at the end of the sentence instead of the m idd le .  I guess the 

on ly other question I had was on page 9,  l ines 1 -5 ,  with the precincts and go over that 

again .  

Representative Kasper: Did you al l  get the e-mail that I sent out? I went to great length to 

try and explain the situation there. Just to clarify - are there specific questions or do you 

want me to go through again the reason or what would you l ike me to d iscuss? 

Chairman Schaible: I think it was mentioned earl ier, I th ink that the p recinct stuff and that 

level of control was left to the d istricts before th is and I think now we are going to the 

precincts type realm and it seems to me that even if it is an issue , it is sti l l  probably best left 

in the d istricts bylaws or thei r  concerns. I am wondering what your  thoughts are .  We are 
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doing so m uch to say that we are separating state control and d istrict contro l ,  but yet we 

are going i nto this area. 

Representative Kasper: On page 9,  l ines 4-5, that has noth ing to do with the d istricts . 

What this is putting in  statute is that a l l  of the districts in the state of North Dakota , none of 

the precincts can be more than 2500 people and the average size of each d istrict in  our 

state is  as close to 1 4 , 300 people as possible so that would mean with this language in the 

b i l l ,  you would d ivide 2500 into 1 4,300 and you would have a min imum of six precincts in  

each district. I n  the e-mai l  that I sent out I d id a l ittle research and i f  I reca l l ,  I th ink  there 

are 2 1  d istricts that would be affected in our state because al l  of the other 26 d istricts have 

6 or more p recincts. Of the 2 1  d istricts that are affected ,  9 are in Cass County. That 

shows where the majority of the problem is. It appears to me that the Cass County 

Aud itors have made a decision to go with two and three precincts i n  many cases and I d on 't 

th ink that is  good for the pol itical process. They would need to re-d raft their precinct l ines 

so that we would have at least 6 precincts in each district a l l  over the state . Not only Cass 

County. It has noth ing to do with pol l ing places and it has nothing to do with where the vote 

would be held , early voting ,  or absentee bal lots. The county commissioners could decide 

there is going to be one poll ing place in a district. This does not touch that. Al l  it says is 

that the l ines in  the precinct of the district wi l l  have to have a min imum of 6 precincts . A 

number of precincts have more. 

Chairman Schaible: If they want that right now, can't they do that? 

Representative Kasper: The state law determines that right now. The d istrict bylaws 

cannot change the precinct l ines. Under current state law, if you g o  back to Page 8 ,  l ine 1 9 , 

it states that the board of county commission of each county shal l  d ivide the county into 

precincts and establ ish the precinct boundaries. So the districts rig ht now never have 
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control led the precincts . The county commissioner has controlled that. We a re not taking 

away the authority of the county commissioners to d ivide precinct l ines. What we are 

saying is when you d ivide the precinct l ines, no precinct can be larger than 2500 in  

popu lation and there wi l l  be a min imum of 6 precincts in each d istrict. 

Senator Nelson: If you wanted to split District 46 into 6 precincts so you can keep track of 

them - that is what you can do. In my particular d istrict we have two precincts . We don't 

have 5000 people even voting but yet to spl it up the whole d istrict into 6 precincts , many of 

wh ich would not have citizens in  them or voters in  them and if you wanted them to be ab le 

to keep track, it wi l l  requ i re d ifferent bal lots because they would have to be spaced . Where 

does that precinct go? Our city l ines do not match our school districting l ines. Our county 

commission l i nes don't necessarily match anyth ing either. I don't see the advantage of 

spl itting my d istrict or district 1 1  into 6 pieces. 

Representative Kasper: Let's not confuse the pol itical d istricts with the school d istricts, or 

any other voting bloc. This does not change it. 

Senator Nelson: But they wi l l  change the elections. 

Representative Kasper: The only th ing this wi l l  change is that when you have a p recinct 

l ine for a district, the person wi l l  be voting in their precinct for their d istrict. The school 

board elections are general ly not held with the primary. 

Senator Dever: They are in the primary now. 

Representative Kasper: Be that as it may, the d istrict l ines, I don't see where you could 

possib ly have no people in your precinct. I n  the 6 precincts you have 1 4, 300 peop le in 

each d istrict; therefore, i t  would be rather si l ly to d raw a precinct that would have no 

popu lation i n  it. I n  your case Senator Nelson, your  d istrict i s  very compact. Your  precinct 

l ines wou ld probably be qu ite equal .  
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Chairman Schaible: Other than that section, are there any other items that we are having 

heartburn over? 

Representative Kasper: From our perspective, no. We passed the bi l l  84 to 8. The 

House is pretty happy with it. 

Senator Dever: I very much appreciate the work that Representative Kasper has done on 

th is b i l l .  Since there is no emergency clause or effective date on this bi l l  now, it d oes not 

affect the reorgan ization this time. If anyone sees anyth ing that they have real heartburn 

with ,  we can make adjustments in  the next session . This is the one point that does effect 

the next election . I think we need to somehow resolve th is point otherwise I am happy with 

what has been done. I have 7 precincts in my d istricts and the only problem would be that 

they average less than 2500, but some are bigger than others and I am not sure that I 

would see any real benefit to making those adjustments. 

Representative Kasper: Your d istrict would make no adjustments . 

Senator Dever: I have precincts that are larger than 2500. 

Representative Kasper: Then the aud itor would redraw the precinct l ines somewhat 

d ifferently. There is a possibi l ity if you want to consider getting away from the 2500, we 

could amend the b i l l  to say that each district must have a min imum of 6 precincts . Then 

you get away totally from the number. I would have no objection to that. The fact of the 

matter is that you are having some districts with one and two precincts is rid iculous. We are 

a pol itical entity when we are in  pol itics and when we are in  the leg islature and we should 

know where our voting strengths and weaknesses are.  The part of the bi l l  that I th ink is 

important to the pol itical parties is the part we are d iscussing right now. 

Representative Boehning: I have been around a whi le and I remember having 30 p lus 

precincts . We knew where the votes were at, we knew where to concentrate ourselves at, 
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and we knew where to go and where our strengths and weaknesses were. I th ink it was a 

lot easier to do campaigning that way. I would not have a problem going with just the six 

without a popu lation number set. Without having to have 6 voting places - that is not a n  

issue there. 

Senator Nelson: Representative Zaiser and I are in the same district and we know where 

our voting strength is and we have worked the district for years . We know where we need 

to go two or three times or where we need to go once because they are not going vote. We 

don't need any l ines to tel l  us where to go. In some cases we d id not know where the l ines 

were and we just d id our stops. If you work the district, I don't think you need any 

add itional l ines. 

Representative Kasper: Senator Nelson , with all due respect, you r  d istrict is your  district 

and you know it wel l  and you have been there a long time. We have 46 other districts in  

the state that might have that luxury. We have some d istricts that are 1 50 m i les long. So 

to suggest that simply because you know your district, we shouldn't h ave any way for the 

rest of the districts to know where the vote is, is a l ittle bit d isingenuous. 

Representative Zaiser: I am not sure what the benefit is going to be because I th ink even 

if you are talking about those rural d istricts, someone who has never run before, they are 

not going know. They are going to have to cover anyth ing .  I guess I am somewhat 

ambivalent about this personal ly. I just don't know of the huge benefit. I assume that I 

want to get my message out to everyone and maybe I get to people but maybe other 

people don't. That is my objective in each election . 

Chairman Schaible: Is there any other discussion today? 

Senator Dever: I am curious about the requirement to rotate the names on the bal lot, is 

that in Century Code? 



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2369 
04/1 8/20 1 3  
Page 6 

Representative Kasper: It is and it is not in this b i l l .  

Senator Dever: I was wondering if  we could go to more precincts and not have to print 

d ifferent bal lots . 

Senator Schaible: That is not an option. 

Representative Kasper: I would offer an amendment on Page 9, l ines 4 and 5 - that 

we would say that no district may have less than 6 precincts within the district. 

Rep. Boehning: Seconded. 

Senator Schaible: Restated amendment proposed , and asked if there was any other 

d iscussion .  

Senator Dever: I think that would requ i re the House Recede from its amendments and 

further amend . 

Representative Kasper: I would be happy to change the motion. I want to be absolutely 

sure that that is the only section of the bi l l  we are reced ing from. 

Senator Nelson: There is one district that has only has one precin ct and there is p robably 

a reason for it. I just don't th ink that we should be tel l ing the county commissioners how 

many p recincts they should have. 

Representative Kasper: It is the responsibi l ity of the legis lature to determine the pol icy -

particu larly in  elections. The county commissioners are al l  over the board . There is no 

consistency with what we currently have. I can't for the l ife of me understand why one 

district would have one precinct. So you have 1 4, 300 people l iving i n  one d istrict and you 

don't know where your votes are.  

Representative Zaiser: I th ink that we need to understand why some of those d istricts 

have on ly one precinct. They probably are very good reasons. I don't know them. I g uess 



Senate Government and Veterans Affa irs Committee 
SB 2369 
04/1 8/201 3  
Page 7 

i n  an  idea world , it would be great to have everyone have precincts with precisely 2500 

people and six of them , but I don't think we are in an idea world . 

Senator Nelson: Do we know where the mail d istricts are? Maybe that impacts why they 

only have a few precincts. 

Rep. Boehning: With having one precinct in one county and it is E lection Day, you are 

probably going to have to d rive a long ways from one side of the county to the other side 

because you precinct is at the county seat; where you don't have the opportunity to have a 

smal ler precinct that you can go vote somewhere closer as wel l .  I th ink that is a reason to 

have 6 precincts for a lot of these larger d istricts . They have to d rive a long ways to go 

vote. 

Senator Dever: I think pol l ing places are being confused with precincts. 

Representative Zaiser: I was going to make that point. Representative Kasper is saying 

that i t  wou ld not affect the voting.  I think it might confuse the voter and the workers. 

Representative Kasper: I n  the early voting i n  Fargo, we have two early voting pol l ing 

p laces for the whole city and that is encompassing 10 districts. So when they walk in  you 

would th ink  there is mass confusion, but they check in and show their  ID and poll checks 

the district they are in  and hands them the correct bal lot. There is no confusion because 

you are identified where you precinct is by your  ID that you g ive . It is s imply a matter of 

being in the right pol l ing p lace and have the right bal lot. That has a l l  been automatized and 

i t  is  relatively simple. The machines are such that you can put bal lots in from 30 precincts 

and they wi l l  count them out in the precincts . It is not rocket science a nymore .  

Chairman Dever: We have a motion on  the table. 
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Senator Dever: There are districts that include multiple counties, and some of them have 

qu ite a number in one county, so are we talking about the total number of precincts in the 

d istricts in the counties? 

Representative Kasper: In current law and the way they operate, you can have two or 

three cou nties. Al l  the motion is saying is that in the district you must have at least 6 

p recincts and it does not dictate anything in regards to the counties . You can have 30 if 

you want. It does not say that in each county that you have to have 6 precincts - it is in the 

entire d istrict. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion Fails due to only one yea on the Senate side. 

Chairman Schaible: Adjourned the conference committee to reschedule.  
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Chairman Schaible: Open conference committee on SB 2369. 

Representative Kasper: I have had a couple of conversations with J im S i l rum and they 

have certain ly g iven me some add itional i nformation that I th ink might be pertinent to the 

com mittee . Maybe we could have him share some information with us. 

Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State: I am happy to answer any questions specifical ly 

d i rected to me. Some of the th ings that I have talked about with Representative Kasper are 

the fact that there was a d iscussion in a previous conference committee hearing about the 

d ifficu lty of how to define the precincts according to population and it is my understanding 

that Leg islative Council does have software that is used for red istricting purposes for 

establ ish ing the leg islative d istricts during that time. In my subsequent conversations with 

John Bjornson it would be a possibi l ity for us to have access to that red istrict ing software 

that could be used for faci l itating the estab l ishments of precincts no matter how many are in 

a district or in a county. Whatever would be the committee's wishes provided we could 

have the intent that legis lative council and the Secretary of State's office wou ld be 

encouraged to work together on that. We could facil itate the counties in establ ishing the 

precincts accord ing to the sizes mandated by the legislature. Are there any specific 

questions? 
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Representative Kasper: I would l ike it on the record that I would hope that the committee 

wou ld support the legislative intent that the Secretary of State could be involved with the 

counties to help them do thei r  job, whatever that job might be, because that is what they do 

anyways. We would not want them to be any less able to work with the counties on the 

d rafting of precinct l ines if that is the way we go. I would hope no one in the committee 

wou ld object to that thought. J im ,  you mentioned to me about the potential for some 

g roundbreaking changes for software and how bal lots are going to be designed and 

counted maybe by the year 2016 ,  which I think that might be important. If you cou ld share 

that thought process with us. 

Jim Silrum: It is no secret that the voting system in the state of North Dakota needs to be 

replaced and we are suggesting that over the course of these next number of years we 

reevaluate the software that is needed and come back in  the next legislative session with 

an idea that is agreeable to everyone and ask for funding for that. The possibi l ity that it 

does exist in current technology are features such as bal lot on demand;  wh ich through the 

use of electronic poll books, the voter comes in, is checked in ,  and immed iately upon check 

in the bal lot on demand spits out the exact bal lot that wou ld be there for the voter to use .  It 

would el iminate the need for over ordering any bal lot stock. It wou ld e l iminate a lot of the 

possibi l ities of g iving out the wrong bal lot to the wrong voter in our m ulti-precinct pol l ing 

locations. Especial ly in  our early voting location and in large population counties where 

there may be as many as 1 00 d ifferent bal lots that need to be d istributed to the voters . 

That is coming in the future. It is someth ing that we need to look at and it would be 

faci l itated regard less of how many precincts we have in  the state. 
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Representative Kasper: I n  my exuberance on the amendments I overlooked the 

i mportance of the rest of the b i l l .  Can you share the importance of the bil l with the 

Secretary of State's office? 

Jim Silrum: The first sections of the b i l l  deal with political party organ ization and i n  such a 

way that it removes a large percentage of the responsibi l ity for the county aud itors and the 

Secretary of State to be involved in  the establish ing of d istricts. The last portions of the bi l l  

have specifical ly everyth ing to do with the formation of the ballot; which wil l  e l iminate voter 

confusion and wi l l  cause for bal lot space to be used far more efficiently so we wi l l  reduce 

the number of two page bal lots that are used throughout the state. I cannot speak h igh ly 

enough about the last sections of the b i l l  and how the bi l l  needs to be saved and it needs to 

move forward because in my opin ion , the last sections of the bi l l  perhaps are some of the 

most important election admin istration changes that could be authorized by this particular 

legislative session. 

Senator Dever: I don't know if you have had a chance to work with that software at al l  and 

as I understand it, for redistricting , they took the whole state and basically could move l ines 

and then it would ind icate the population of the d istrict as it changed , and I am not sure I 

am right on that. Wou ld it be the same thing for choosing precincts? 

Jim Silrum: I worked with John Bjornson when they went through red istricting ,  and it is 

t ime consuming software but not compl icate software to use. If we were to have to buy 

l icenses for a l l  53 counties of the state , it would be incred ibly expensive software. In d i rect 

answer, the way this works and wou ld work for precincts just as it d id for d istricts, is that a 

l ine is moved and then the population data that is associated with the streets and the 

residents would adjust the popu lation totals much the same way as it d id  for legislative 

counci l  doing the d istrict boundaries. That cou ld be very usefu l no matter how many 
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precincts there are and that information not only be useful for election purposes but that 

information is also h igh ly coveted by legislative council as wel l  to know where those 

precinct boundaries are to be able to add that to their mapping. They have asked us 

several times i f  i t  i s  possible that we can join them in that effort and perhaps this is  an 

opportun ity for us to  jo in  them in that effort. 

Senator Dever: Are the precinct l ines on the current map then or d o  they have to be d rawn 

in in order then to manipu late? 

Jim Silrum: All of them would need to be input in itia l ly. Some of the counties had their 

precinct l ines put i nto that software when they went through the redistricting . After the 

red istricting , many of the precincts changed so they would al l  need to be input. What is 

fortunate is that some counties do have soph isticated GIS software that can export that 

data and transfer that to the maptitude software and el iminate a lot of the data entry work. 

Senator Dever: If we pass this b i l l ,  we are setting the number of p recincts that wi l l  be 

required in a d istrict, but am I correct in my understanding that it continues to be a county 

responsibi l ity how they are drawn and that your office wou ld be wi l l ing to assist in 

accompl ishing that? 

Jim Silrum: You are correct on a l l  regards. 

Representative Kasper: I worked on the red istricting committee and I worked with the 

software and it is compl icated when you begin but once you start using it, there were folks 

who cou ld rea l ly make it sing. When you are redrawing the l ines, the l ines are there but it 

is a lso color coded . It does not take long once you play with it for a wh i le.  It can tel l  you 

down to one person how many people are in an area . It would be very easy to determine 

the population in each precinct with that software. John Bjornson has negotiated with the 

software vendor to purchase one set of software - the in itial cost is $3500 and after that the 
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price d rops to $2200 per l icense. I recounted my d istricts that are impacted by the six 

min imum; it is 20 districts that are impacted , of wh ich 9 are in Cass County, so they could 

buy one set of software and you wou ld have 1 1  other sets that you would h ave to purchase 

at $2200.  The total cost to cover would be $25,500 if they each wanted thei r  own set of 

software. The Secretary of State's office wou ld be there to help and you may not need to 

purchase that much software. I think you would save that in paper when you do the bal lots. 

Senator Dever: My district has seven precincts but they would sti l l  need to be red rawn 

because they are not all under 2500 people. 

Representative Kasper: That is possible. It would need to be checked and I am sure the 

Secretary of State's office could assist in that and they may need to purchase the software. 

Chairman Schaible: I think that we were all in agreement that all of the other changes 

other than section 1 1  were ok with the committee. The other questions that I h ave are the 

cost and who is to decide how many precincts we really have? 

Representative Kasper: The county commission decides. The only th ing that they would 

have to abide by is the l im itation of 2500 people per precinct and as I ind icated the cost to 

the cou nty for the software is $2000 if they wanted to do it al l on the i r  own . I would submit 

that by saving on not ordering al l of those expensive bal lots and the ease of the p recincts 

once they are that I do not see much more of a cost. 

Senator Dever: If we were to act on this now, it would come to the floor on Monday. 

Senator Nelson has raised some objections. I am sure that we would have a floor debate 

and I am not sure where it would go from there .  I suspect that any resolution to that 

particu lar point would be made on the conference committee report. What we wou ld be 

doing now is taking it up to the floor and find ing out where the votes are.  If we want to act 

on it that way, I am ready to do that, but I am not sure if others are ready. 
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Representative Kasper: The motion would be that the Senate Accede to the House 

Amendments correct? 

Senator Dever: That is my thought. 

Representative Kasper: Which would mean that you wou ld have the b i l l  in front of you r  

chamber and you would have your debate and you wou ld see where the votes go.  If the 

votes don't get there ,  then we are back down in  conference committee. I would sure l ike to 

see it tried . 

Senator Dever: I would suspect that it wou ld be on that s ingle point. The bi l l  that left the 

Senate before was everything except the party organization .  

Representative Kasper: Are you ready to make a motion? 

Senator Dever: Moved the Senate Accede to the House Amendments. 

Rep. Kasper: Seconded. 

Representative Kasper: The changes in the first part of the bil l are very good for the 

pol itical parties; not only the current ones but new ones that want to get on the bal lot and 

be formed . The changes as far as helping the political parties stay organized , know where 

their vot ing strengths and weaknesses are at are important. That is what we are a l l  about. I 

th ink the amendment on the top of page 9 that is in question helps us do that. That is a 

part of the politica l  process that we know our d istricts and we know our strengths and 

weaknesses. I t  is fai r  and even to both parties. I hope that we would pass the motion .  

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 1 nay (Senator Marcellais), and 1 absent 

(Representative Zaiser).  

Motion Ca rries. 
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Chairman Schaible: The conference committee report was rejected and the conference 

committee was reassigned so that brings us here again.  My interpretation of the vote this 

morn ing that the sections 1 -1 0 have some merit, section 1 1  met with plenty of res istance 

and the sections 1 2- 1 6  seemed to be acceptable to everyone. Is  there d iscussion on those 

points? 

(3 :05)Representative Amerman: Just being put on this committee, you say that this was 

taken up on the last session of the Senate, was it a big gap on the verification vote or how 

far apart are we? 

Chairman Schaible: The vote was 42 - 5 against the conference committee report. The 

d iscussion is what I am basing my interpretation on . I carried my report to the floor that 1 to 

1 0  seemed to be fine, section 1 1  brought d iscussion at this conference committee and was 

the vast majority of our d iscussion, and that section 1 2- 1 6  seemed to be acceptable by a l l  

parties concerned . I explained the b i l l  and the conference committee that way.  

Senator Nelson: The opposition on the floor d id not al l  come from the members of the 

conference committee . It came from the head of appropriations and from several others 

who had input from their county commissioners and aud itors . 
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Senator Dever: I know that Representative Kasper had indicated to me earlier that he 

would like to have a conversation with leadership and it might be best that we reconvene 

sometime after he has had that opportunity. 

Chairman Schaible: I have no problems with meeting again if more time is what is 

necessary. Is there any other discussion? Adjourned the meeting. 
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Chai rman Schai ble: Reopened the discussion on SB 2369. Are there any suggestions 

on the possibi l ity of moving forward? 

Representative Kasper: See Attachments #1 and #2 for e-mails and map d iscussed by 

committee. 

(3 :50)  Representative Kasper: Moved an amendment to amend the maxim u m  num ber 

of people in a precinct to 2850 and that would allow a m inimum of 5 precincts in a 

district. 

Representative Boehning: Seconded. 

Chai rman Schaible: I guess the one question that I have is not if we can do it which we 

know is possible or what the numbers are.  Right now the counties can do that if they want 

to. The biggest question is we as a state should be taking that responsibi l ity away from the 

counties and decid ing the parameters for that. I think that is the response we had from the 

floor of the Senate. We need to decide whether we as a state should be doing it at a l l .  I 

don 't know if adjusting the numbers is the answer. 

Senator Nelson: We also had a d iscussion about leadership within the d istricts that 

currently, for instance,  in my d istrict we have 2 precincts. We have the proper number of 

precinct committee people, as described by law, but they are not spread out over where the 
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districts a re and for a good reason .  One of old precincts consists of many college students 

and one consists of many refugees that do not have citizen status. The active part tends to 

l ive in one of the four  precincts on the north side and one or two on the south side. So 

there was a question as to the leadership pool and how that wou ld impact a d istrict. 

Representative Kasper: Let me address that. F i rst of a l l ,  publ ic policy should not be 

based on one district which would happen to be your  d istrict. Let me state that to beg in  

with , however, there may be other d istricts that have the same issue. Here is how I would 

th ink it could be add ressed in the bi l l  that we have before us. Remember we state that the 

d istrict committee shall elect thei r  executive committee , and we put no restrictions on that 

whatsoever. Whatever the bylaws of the d istrict say your  executive committee wi l l  be that 

is what your  executive committee would be . Therefore, if a l l  of your  potentia l  precinct 

committee people l ived in  2 of the 5 precincts, your executive committee could consist of 

any number of people you would l ike to be on the executive committee and you r  bylaws 

cou ld state that the executive committee wil l  be making this and that decision and a l l  other 

important decisions and be a part of your  leadership as you wou ld so desire .  Each d istrict's 

bylaws could be a l ittle d ifferent in that respect. You could empower you leaders by you r  

bylaws in your  executive committee. 

Senator Nelson: Except for the fact that your precinct people are the basis of that. That is 

what you have to elect fi rst before you can even have a district committee. If we cannot find 

the n umber of people to be precinct people, then there is a problem and it is not just my 

district. 

Representative Kasper: Your  bylaws could reflect that situation .  You wou ld empower 

you r  other people on your  executive committee to be involved as you wou ld l ike .  The 

current s ituation and the current law, without the amendments to SB 2369, because I want 
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to point out that the amendments to this bi l l  clarified current law, it d id not change m uch of 

current law at a l l .  It made it easier to read and put it in a d ifferent order. We don't change 

the basic precinct makeup and how the precinct people are elected . You made the 

argument that you need to know your  district, wel l  I would make the argument that you 

need to go into the other areas of your d istrict where you don't have you r  precinct 

committee people and ferret one out. I wou ld venture to say that with your  wisdom and you r  

abi l ity to persuade that would not b e  a very d ifficult task. I am looking on the overal l  

p icture of what the best interest of publ ic policy is. When you see the chart that I have 

handed out to the committee, where you have precincts numbering from one to twenty-five 

and a l l  over the map, there is no consistency of precincts. I bel ieve that is because the 

county aud itors make their own decisions in their own county and we have now very 

inconsistent publ ic policy which I do not th ink is good for the political parties and not good 

for the people who are the citizens of each d istrict. Therefore, putting a maximum n umber 

of people in a precinct would require that you would have at least a min imum of 5 precincts 

in a l l  the d istricts. I a lso think it is good publ ic pol icy. 

Chairman Schaible: Do you bel ieve that if the county commissioners wanted to create 

more precincts in their county, that they would have the abi l ity to have their county aud itor 

to do that. 

Representative Kasper: Under current law, the county commission determines and they 

d i rect the county aud itor, so I am sure it would be a g ive and take between them.  

Chairman Schaible: It seems to me if the people of the d istrict want more precincts and 

they th ink i t  is  a val id point, they have an avenue to do that. Take any county in  the state; if 

the people put pressure on the county commissioner, I think they have the avenue to do 

that. 
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Representative Kasper: It is, but h istory shows that does not work. Cass County as a n  

example, the Republicans d id not l ike the number of precincts that were d rawn a n d  we 

were told that was tough and that was the way it was going to be. The county 

commissioners in al l  the areas across the state have the power to do what they wish , 

whenever they wish regard less of what the people say. Frankly, a lot of the people have no 

idea what is going on in th is committee. They don't know where their precinct is .  They 

d on't know anyth ing about the precinct number other than where they need to go vote. I n  

the spirit of publ ic pol icy, what i s  the best public pol icy? We the legislature a re charged to 

set the publ ic pol icy and when you look at what is happening in our state with the various 

county commissioners doing what they have done, I bel ieve this is bad publ ic pol icy and we 

need to legislatively correct it because that is the only place that we can .  

Senator Dever: I l ike what your  aud itor put together. I think it addresses your  concerns and 

I agree with you that we should not set public pol icy based on one d istrict and I am not sure 

that we should do it on one county. It appears to me that the rea l  problem here is in  Cass 

County and it seems to me that your  county aud itor should be able to carry this forward to 

the whole county and see what it looks l ike. If Senator Nelson is happy with two precincts, 

then maybe that is where they should leave it. I agree that we set publ ic pol icy but publ ic 

pol icy is set at d ifferent levels. The county sets public pol icy too. That is what they have 

done in Cass County. I am not sure that 2850 would work for everyone either. My d istrict is 

d rawn by neighborhoods and a couple of them are larger than others so they may possibly 

exceed that number. That could require redrawing. 

Representative Kasper: We don't know for sure, do we? 

Senator Dever: No but why should we need to change that policy if it is appropriate now? 
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Representative Kasper: I don't believe it is appropriate. There are 20 districts in the state 

that have a problem , not just the ones in Cass County. I pointed out in my e mai ls that half 

of the problem from my perspective isn't Cass County, but there are 1 1  other d istricts i n  the 

state that have the same problem . I don't bel ieve the public good is being addressed by 

having that loose end . We set the pol icy - not the county commissioners .  I happen to 

bel ieve that over the period of time that I have been here in the legislature ,  we have 

delegated way too much authority from this legislative body. Home rule, as an example, 

g ive tremendous amount of power and authority. As I said on the floor of the House ,  home 

rule a l lows entity that has home rule to be their own min i  legislature and to overturn acts of 

leg islature passes. I think that is wrong. We are elected and charged to set publ ic pol icy for 

the citizens of North Dakota. This is one area that I th ink needs to be cleaned up.  

Chairman Schaible: Any other d iscussion on the motion on the table? 

None offered. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 2 nays (Sen. Schaible, Sen. Nelson), 0 absent. 

Motion Fails. 

Chairman Schaible: One other comment before we adjourn for the day. The on ly other 

section that received some comments was on page 5, subsection 4 .  I take e mai ls with a 

gra in of salt, but it was brought up to me was under that section ,  say your  bylaws say that 

you have to have a $1 000 membersh ip or you have to be affi l iated with an association to 

be part of your  group, wou ld that constitute as a problem? 

Representative Kasper: What bylaws are you talking about? 

Chairman Schaible: The district bylaws. 

Representative Kasper: They currently in state law are si lent on that. There is no 

restriction and there is  no requirement. I am aware of a number of d istrict bylaws in  the 
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state of North Dakota right now on the Republican side who have a requ i rement to 

participate in some of their conventions that you must be a member of the d istrict's $ 1 0 club 

or $30 club .  No place in the state law do I see where that is prohibited . That does not 

change if we accept the amendment or not. I would think it wou ld be stupid if anyone d id 

that. 

Chairman Schaible: I tried to use over the top examples to show where it wou ld create a 

p roblem . 

Representative Kasper: This does not change the state statute in that way. 

Senator Dever: I wonder if there needs to be legwork done. I understand that the biggest 

concern is in Cass County. The bi l l  with that provision got 5 votes in the Senate and one of 

them was mine. It seems to me a sign ificant number of Senators from Cass County d id not 

support it. The other thing I am wondering is maybe it would be a usefu l exercise to ask 

Mr .  Montplaisir to extend his efforts to other d istricts in Fargo and see what that might look 

l ike .  That is j ust a suggestion. We don't need to debate that. 

Representative Kasper: I watched to floor debate and frankly there is no champion in the 

Senate about this b i l l .  It was obvious. So phi losophically, the three of you in  you r  remarks 

were very lukewarm to the area of the 2500. In l istening to Senator Holmberg's d iscussion, 

I went back and reviewed minutes of the redistricting committee and the minutes of the 

leg islative management committee when they decided to leave out the min imum of 6 

precincts per d istrict, and I talked to John Bjornson who was the legislative council person 

who worked with the red istricting committee and was at the leg islative management 

committee meetings. There was very l ittle at all about why the leg islative management left 

out the 6 precinct requirement in the red istricting bi l l  other than the comment that this is 
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something that the leg islature should act on .  That is why I brought the amendment forward 

the way I d id .  We are here at the legislature and we are acting on it. 

Senator Dever: I don't understand that. If they wou ld have left it i n ,  the leg islature wou ld 

have acted on it as wel l .  

Representative Kasper: And we wou ld have passed it. We were g iven a b i l l  that was the 

red istrict ing bi l l  and no one was going to take one little section out of the bi l l  I don 't bel ieve. 

We can't go back and find out. 

Senator Dever: Another point that Senator Holmberg mentioned was that there are a 

couple of precincts in  Grand Forks that legislators wanted to see some adjustment on and 

they went to the county commission and asked for that. That is the ideal solution to this. 

Representative Kasper: I hate to sound l ike an old record , but I do not agree with you .  

That i s  not the ideal solution because what you end u p  with i s  what we have; we have a 

hodge-podge. Every county commission does what they wish and you end up with one 

p recinct up to 25 precincts and I do not think that is good publ ic pol icy. If we have a 

min imum of precincts l ike we are able to see here, we can very easily see that the county 

aud itors can do this very qu ickly. The l ines are there and they are easy to d raw. I t  took 

him a couple of hours to come up with this map. The idea that the county aud itors would be 

onerous on them is a bogus argument - it's a red herring .  The th ing about publ ic pol icy and 

pol itical parties - we are partisan parties. We are Democrats and Republ icans and there 

are other parties that wi l l  be formed . How in God's green earth, if you want to form a 

pol itical party in a district that only has one precinct and you are trying to figu re out where 

1 4 , 300 people's votes are coming from, how are you going to form? New parties don't 

have the knowledge base l ike Senator Nelson has. How can they identify anyth ing? H ow 

can we as a political party continue to function as pol itical parties if one district is 1 4, 300 
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votes? How do we do that? Is that serving the best interest? How do we get more people 

involved if we don't have various precincts that we can go and organize? There are 

counties 1 30 miles long. One precinct for the whole district . . .  it doesn't make sense. I f  we 

don't set the policy, we are going to continue to get what we got. I think that is wrong. 

Senator Dever: One little bit of correction. There has to be at least one precinct per 

county so the district 1 30 miles long isn't going to have one precinct in it. 

Representative Kasper: I stand corrected. 

Senator Dever: I meant that as a gentle correction. 

Representative Kasper: Well accepted. 

Chairman Schaible: We will come back and meet again. Committee Recessed. 
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Chairman Schaible: Reopened the d iscussion on SB 2369. We left with some d iscussion 

yesterday and are there any other comments or suggestions on how to move forward? 

Representative Kasper: I have an amendment that I wou ld l ike to present to the 

committee for consideration - reads from amendment. (See attachment #1 for p roposed 

amendment on Section 1 1 , page 9, number 2) The l im itation of population appears to be a 

problem and this amendment addresses that so we are g iving opportunity for local 

d iscretion .  

Chairman Schaible: I appreciate the attempt of a compromise and attempt to move 

forward . I bel ieve we d iscussed the 5 precinct possibi l ity a l ready, and I understand where 

you are going with that, but with the conversations that I have had and on the Senate side it 

seems there is not a lot of support to change the number of precincts to any n umber. I am 

wondering i f  a compromise movement in a change of any number amount i s  going to  have 

the effect that you are looking for. I think that it is the idea of changing it and taking it out of 

the local control and making it a requ i rement when it is something that they can do now by 

going to the county commissioners and having them decide what number is appropriate for 

every county and having them do it wi l l  not be acceptable. I appreciate the understand ing 



Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
SB 2369 
04/24/201 3 
Page 2 

of trying to work with us, but I think the understanding is that any n umber or any population 

in this area might meet with some resistance. 

Senator Dever: I got the numbers from John Bjornson for the precincts in my d istrict and 

they vary from 1 327 to 3099 in population , so I understand what Representative Kasper is  

attempting to do with this, but i t  would completely redo everything in  my d istrict and I d o  not 

see where that wi l l  be usefu l to us. District 32 is a l l  in one county so there is no other 

consideration and I understand that d istricts that are multiple counties have d ifferent 

populations so the word practicable comes in to play there. 

Senator Amerman: In my d istrict there are five counties, but it is parts of the five counties, 

how does that play out? 

Representative Kasper: I n  d istrict 26 this would not apply because you have 1 4  precincts. 

It just dawned on me that we could add an amendment to exclude a d istrict from the 

provisions of the bil l if it has more than 5 or more precincts. 

Senator Dever: We wou ld have to change where they vote possibly. 

Representative Kasper: Not if we added the additional amendment that I j ust stated .  

Again ,  I w i l l  repeat, that this does not have anything to do with where the pol l ing places a re 

located . 

Senator Dever: With the amendment you just stated . 

Representative Kasper: Even without the amendment. 

Senator Dever: We would possibly have to change pol l ing p laces if the precinct l ines a re 

changed . 

Representative Kasper: It may depend how the l ines are d rawn , but it may not. 

Senator Dever: There is a reason for the two I am concerned about. There are some pretty 

obvious boundaries that define those precincts. 
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Representative Boehning: I am thinking that is a pretty good compromise. I th ink with the 

new language presented wi l l  g ive leeway to numbers in the precincts and it wi l l  a l low those 

districts with more than 5 precincts to stay as they are.  It did not take Cass County very 

long to redraw the precinct l ines and this is something that wil l be workable. Do we want to 

make a motion on this? 

Representative Kasper: I would rather have a new amendment officially d rafted by John 

Bjornson or a d ifferent format that we al l  agree on before we leave the meeting today. 

Chairman Schaible: To have the version that we are going to vote on wou ld be the best 

way to do it. L ike I said , I cannot speak for everyone, but my feel of the place is that it is 

not so much if i t  is doable, can we do it, or whether or not i t  is workable. I get back to the 

question that I don't think the Senate is going to support a change to the number of 

p recincts in  section 1 1 ,  subsection 2 .  Every Senator can vote for themselves, but right now 

I am thinking that they have the flexibi l ity right now to make a change and there are no 

restrictions on it right now. If you get the county commissioners to agree, you can make a ny 

reasonable change or improvement to your  d istrict as you see fit. I th ink that is the way 

that the Senate looks at it. What works for one district may not be what ideal or what works 

for others. . . . .  I appreciate the movement of working toward this, it is j ust that I th ink we are 

at a d ividing l ine of being wi l l ing to make that change and I don't think the Senate is wi l l ing 

to accept that change. 

Representative Kasper: I think that is a matter of what this committee decides and how 

committed th is committee is to supporting a change. I wou ld venture to say, I know I am not 

in  the Senate, but let me speak on the side of the House, if this committee comes to the 

floor of the House with an amendment that wou ld be l ike what I am talking about and we 

sell it to the House, I don't th ink we would have any problem passing it. In the same token ,  
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if your  committee makes an effort to sell it to the Senate, I th ink it wi l l  pass. I l istened to the 

floor debate and there was no attempt by anyone to sell the concept. I th ink it was more 

negative from the get go. I think it is a l l  a matter of perspective. Do each one of us  believe 

that the county commission ought to have the authority to set the min imum/maximum 

n umber of precincts in  a d istrict or is i t  the responsibi l ity of the legislature to do so? It  is out 

of hand in a number of counties and Cass County is the biggest perpetrator. How does 

that serve the people? You have people come together in a precinct and organ ize. If you 

have one or two precincts with a large number of people, how do you have any contin u ity of 

neighborhood? That is what a political structure in my opinion is about. It is about a 

neighborhood organ izing at the grassroots to be involved in the political process. That is 

the principle that I have been trying to do here with the min imum number of precincts. It 

has noth ing to do with my person phi losophy; it is the ph i losophy of pol itical structures and 

the pol itical organization and how we best serve the people of North Dakota . I th ink the 

focus has gotten away from that. 

Chairman Schaible: I agree with you 1 00% if the committee was enthusiastic and was 

wi l l ing to accept it - that it might have some merit or bearing on the Senate.  Quite fra nkly, 

my lukewarm attempt to this is because I am not convinced myself that it is a change that is 

necessary. I think we did an adequate job of explain ing the intent, but you are right, the 

champion of the bill is not there and the reason is that I am not convinced . It is our  job to 

explain and relay it in an honest fashion . I th ink that was accompl ished . It comes back to 

the point that I th ink this can be done local ly. I th ink it is an isolated problem to Cass 

County. We have hard ly heard of anyone else, and the ones we have heard from have 

been against. 

Representative Kasper: What is your  d istrict? 
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Chairman Schaible: 31  

Representative Kasper: Part of the reason may be that you have 1 8  precincts i n  you r  

d istrict. 

Chairman Schaible: I also have 1 35 mi les and go over 4 counties and cover every aspect 

of d ifferent demographics and attitudes there are .  To me, I know where my voters are and 

I know what the people th ink .  It is d ifficult the variations in  my district. Precincts do have 

some merit, but to me it does not seem to work that I need to have a precinct to know 

where my voters are .  

Representative Boehning: Do you go back and look at your  precinct records after a vote 

to see where the totals are at? 

Chairman Schaible: I wi l l  use every tool that is out there .  As an elected official ,  and if I am 

interested in getting re-elected , I wi l l  use whatever I can .  That is one tool and one aspect. 

If  I am going to look at a precinct number that is over here and just look at that and say that 

is  the only reason that I d id or d id not get votes - I think there are relatively more reasons 

than just that. 

Rep. Boehning: I wish we had that option in Cass County. If I had 1 8  precincts in my 

district, it wou ld be a lot easier to campaign .  I would know where my votes are at. We don't 

have that option.  That is a good plus for you .  We have 3 precincts in  my d istrict and it is 

hard to p inpoint down . We have large turnover in Fargo from one election to the next. We 

don't know who these people are and how they vote. Thirty years ago I had no p roblem 

finding p recinct committee members and we knew where our votes were at. We organ ized 

and we had more involvement in the party. We have no involvement in the party because 

there are no positions for them to have. The organ izations are fal l ing apart. Do you have a l l  

of  you r  precinct committee members fi l led? 
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Chairman Schaible: Absolutely not. A lot of people don't know what precinct they are in  if 

you would ask them . Sometimes they don't know what district they are even in .  That is a 

pretty good example of how a situation in your county is totally d ifferent than mine.  If 

enough people in you r  district th ink that it warrants a change - that avenue is possible. 

Whether it is more or less precincts, every county has the avai labi l ity r ight now to make it 

the best that serves them . This restricts it somewhat. 

Representative Kasper: You continue to talk about "they have the abi l ity" , and you a re 

right, but the p roblem is that "they" is not the leg islature .  They are the county 

commissioners and they wil l do just about what they want and when they want. If a pol itical 

organization wants a change, you might have a 2% chance of getting it. Therefore, the 

focus on this legislative body should be what we should do that is the best for the overal l  

good of what decision we are making.  You have the luxury of 1 8  precincts. A lot of places 

do not. Does that mean that we should not consider having a minimum number of 

p recincts in a district? I don't think so. What is good for publ ic policy? Not what is good for 

you r  d istrict or someone else's d istrict. That is what this is all about. 

Senator Dever: In the second sentence of the amendment it states that in any legislative 

d istrict that comprises more than one county, the boards of county commissioners of the 

counties with in  that legislative district shal l  cooperate to ensure that the leg islative d istrict. I 

am not sure that we can legislate cooperation. I wonder if it be helpful to the House that 

instead of d ictating the number of precincts or popu lation ,  that we had some language that 

ind icated that the board of county commissioners shal l  work together with the parties 

involved in thei r  d istrict in establishing the precinct l ine? I have a good relationship with my 

county auditor and if I had a concern about how they were structuring the precincts in my 

d istrict I th ink we could sit down and have a conversation about that. 
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Representative Kasper: You just might have h it on something that might be workable. 

That would not offend anyone and would be workable because we would be g iving 

d i rection as legislative intent that it needs to be done. Depend ing upon how that 

amendment wou ld be worded , that might be a compromise that maybe we can come to. 

Chairman Schaible: I agree . 

Representative Kasper: I would be happy to cal l  John Bjornson and ask h im to put 

together sample language that might fit with what you just said . 

Senator Dever: We have two d istricts here in Bismarck that have each 4 precincts and I 

know that the leg islators and I ta lked to my district chairs ,  they are happy with the way that 

is .  I don't know that for the benefit of their organization that we need to make that change. 

I can appreciate that 2 or 3 precincts makes it d ifficult, but somehow if we cou ld bring that 

conversation together it would resolve it. 

Representative Kasper: I think we might want to add to reach out that it would be pol itical 

parties and other interested people. There are citizens who may wish to have a say as 

wel l .  Maybe we can have a l ittle broader language than the county commissioners .  

Senator Dever: As long as we don't lose the accountabil ity of that. 

Representative Kasper: I would be happy to try to put something together for that. 

Chairman Schaible: Meeting Recessed . 
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� Conference Committee 

Chairman Schaible: Opened SB 2369 for committee d iscussion .  

Representative Kasper: See Attachment #1 for proposed amendment. There is nothing 

demanding in  the amendment and it  just simply says to please talk to the political parties if  they 

want to talk to you and ask and they can give you their input. 

(1  :42)Representative Kasper: Moved the House Recede from House amendments and 

amend with 1 3.8257.031 6. 

Representative Boehning : Seconded. 

Chairman Schaible: Do you see this as resolving the issue that you have? 

Representative Kasper: Obviously you know how vocally I talked about the bi l l .  I d id and sti l l  d o  

feel passionate about it, however, in the art of compromise and a l l  of the other important parts of 

the b i l l  to the Secretary of State's office, I am wi l l ing to support the amendment and support the b i l l  

i f  we keep the amendment on and pass the bi l l  out  of the committee. I would ask for the Senators 

to do the same on the floor of the Senate so that they are passionate about how good it is. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion Carries. 

Representative Kasper: Thank you for al lowing me to be as much as a champion for the 

amendment as I was, and if I offended any of you d uring the d iscussion , my apologies. I th ink we 

have a good b i l l  in front of us.  



1 3.8257.05000 

Amendment to: SB 2369 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/09/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d 

. t· t" . t d d t I eve s an appropna 10ns an lCtpa e un er curren aw. 
2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affectec}. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
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Amendment to: SB 2369 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/09/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . f . . t d d t l  eve s an appropna tons antlci(Ja e un er curren aw. . . 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

8. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 
; � 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts . . Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
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Amendment to: SB 2369 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/28/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I l d . f f . t d d t l  eve s an appropna 10ns an tctpa e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
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Bill/Resolution No.:  SB 2369 

FISCAL N OTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/2812013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . t' t'. t d d t l  eve s an appropna tons an tCJpa e un er curren aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $0 $0 
Expenditures $0 $0 $0 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
$0 $0 
$0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill relates to political party reorganization, primary election ballot access, and eligibility for political parties. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Although the ballot access portion of the bill may result in cost savings to counties, it is impossible to determine. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

None 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

None 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

None 
! ! ' 
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Title. 05000 

Prepared by the Leg islative Council staff for 
Representative Kasper 

April 24 , 201 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BI LL NO. 2369 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 242-1 248 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 285-1 291 of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bi l l  
No. 2369 be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "to" insert "create and enact a new section to chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to pol itical party organization; to" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" insert " 1 6 . 1 -03-01 , 1 6. 1 -03-02,  1 6. 1 -03-03,  1 6. 1 -03-05, 
1 6. 1 -03-07, 1 6. 1 -03-08, 1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 , 1 6. 1 -03-1 4, 1 6. 1 -03-1 7 ,  1 6. 1 -04-01 , " 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, after "to" insert "political party organization, voting precincts ,  and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, replace "elig ib i l ity for minor pol itical parties" with " ;  and to repeal sections 
1 6. 1 -03-1 2 and 1 6 . 1 -03-1 9 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to pol itical party 
organization" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as fol lows: 

Organizations allowed to nominate statewide and legislative candidates. 

A pol itica l organization may not endorse candidates or have candidates petition 
for president. vice president. Congress. statewide office, or legislative office as set forth 
in chapter 1 6 . 1 -1 1, unless the organization: 

.1. Organized according to al l  requi rements of this chapte r; 

2 .  Had printed on the bal lot at the last preceding general e lection the names 
of a set of presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's 
candidate for president and vice president. a candidate for governor. a 
candidate for attorney general, or a candidate for secretary of state and 
those candidates for presidential electors, governor, attorney general, or 
secretary of state received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 
presidential electors, the office of governor, attorney general, or secretary 
of state within this state at that election and organized according to al l  
requi rements of this chapter; or 

3 .  Filed a petition with the secretary of state s igned by the number of electors 
requi red under section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -30 to qual ify to endorse candidates or to 
have candidates petition to be included on the primary e lection ballot in a 
consolidated column or on a special election bal lot. 

SECTION 2. AM ENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 
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1 6.1 -03-01 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and 
manner of holding - Caucus cal l - Notice. 

1 .  Each legislative district party shal l  organize in conformance with the state 
legislative d istrict boundaries as establ ished by the legislative assembly 
and as set forth under chapter 54-03. 

£. On or before May fifteenth fol lowing the last preceding general election, a 
party caucus must be held by every election precinct at a s ite with in or 
reasonably close to the precinct in  the manner provided in sections 
1 6 . 1 -03-01 through 1 6 . 1 -03-03. 

2-:-� The leg islative district chairman of each party shal l  issue the callset the 
date and time for the precinct caucus at least twenty days before the time 
set for holding the caucus and the. If there is not a d istrict chairman in a 
legislative d istrict, the state party executive committee may issue the cal l  
for the precinct caucus. The call must contain the fol lowing:  

a .  Name of party. 

b. PrecinctLegislative district and precinct number o r  name. 

c. Date of caucus.  

d .  Place of caucus. 

e.  Hours of caucus. 

f. A statement of the business to be conducted ,  inc luding the election of 
precinct committeemen and such other personsindividuals as may be 
provided by state law and district party rulesbylaws. 

g. The name of the district chairman or, if there is n ot a district cha i rman, 
the member of the state party executive committee issuing the cal l .  

a:4. The district chairman or, if there is not a district chairman, the state party 
executive committee shal l  provide ten days' published notice in the official 
newspaper in  circu lat ion with in each precinct in the d istrict. The notices 
must contain that information set forth in subsection ��. The district 
chairman may include the information required by this section for al l  
precincts in the district may be included in one notice for publ ishing 
purposes. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-02. Who may participate in and vote at caucus. 

1 .  Only those personsindividuals who are qual ified electors pursuant tounder 
section 1 6 . 1 -0 1 -04 m ay vote or be elected as com mitteemen or officers at 
the precinct caucus. 

2. Only those personsindividuals who either voted or affi l iated with the party 
at the last general election or intend to vote-er-affi l iate with the party and 
vote with the party at the next general election may vote at the precinct 
caucus. 
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3 .  I n  case the right of a personan individual to participate at the caucus is 
chal lenged, the question of the person'sind ividual's right to participate must 
be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. A personAn individual so 
chal lenged may not vote on the question of the person'sind ividual 's right to 
participate in the caucus, and a two-thirds vote of the whole caucus is 
requ i red to exclude a personan individual from participation. 

4. No personAn individual may not vote or participate at more than one 
precinct caucus in any one year. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-03. Caucus business and elections Pol itical parties entitled to 
elect committeemen. 

1 .  Each precinct caucus shall elect a chairman, committeemen as provided in 
subsection 3, and other officers as may be provided by party rules. The 
caucus may also discuss party policies, candidates, and any other 
business as prescribed by party rules. 

� NG8 pol itical organization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at its 
precinct caucus unlessif: 

a .  The organization nominated and had printed on the bal lot at the last 
preceding general election the names of a set of presidential electors 
pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and vice 
president or a candidate for governor, attorney general ,  or secretary of 
state; and 

b. The candidates provided for in  subdivision a received at least five 
percent of the total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, 
attorney general ,  or secretary of state within  this state at that election .  

�2. Each pol itical party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise 
qualifying under subsection 21, is entitled to elect one precinct 
com mitteeman for each two hundred fifty votes, or majority of a fract ion 
thereof, cast for the party's presidential electors, governor, attorney 
general ,  or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general election .  
Each precinct i s  entitled to at least one precinct committeeman for each 
party which qual ifies under subsection 21. Each precinct com mitteeman 
m ust be an elector of the precinct in  which the committeeman resides and 
must be elected for a two-year term. 

� If a pol it ical organization desires to organize under this chapter but has not 
qualified as provided in subsection 1, the organization may elect one 
precinct committeeman for each precinct in  the district. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-05. Vacancies in office of precinct committeeman - Fi l l ing.  

A vacancy in  the office of precinct committeerT.an, which occurs after the 
organization of the d istrict committee, mt!Stmay be fi l led by appointment from the 
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precinct by the district executive committee of the party. Notice of the appointment 
must be given to the county auditor. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-07. Meeting of d istrict committee - Organization.  

1 .  I n  every odd-numbered year, the d istrict committee of each party shal l  
meet within fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in  section 
1 6. 1 -03-01 . The day, hour, and site must be set by the existing d istrict 
committee chairman. +ReAny incumbent members of the legislative 
assembly from the party, the precinct committeemen of a party, selected as 
provided by this chapter, witRand any other personsindividual provided for 
by the district committee's bylaws and as the district committee designates, 
constitute the district committee of the party. The district committee of a 
party must be organized to coincide with the geographical boundary l i nes 
of state legislative districts. Each member of any committee provided for in  
this chapter must be a q ual ified elector and must retain the office the 
member 'Nas elected to until a successor is chosen. 

£. The district committee shall organize by: 
a- Seleeting a chairman, vice chairman, seeretary, and treasurer chosen 

byprecinct committeemen and the party's incumbent members of the 
legis lative assembly from the district shal l select the officers of the 
district committee. The officers selected, as provided by the district 
party bylaws. need not be precinct committeemen; however, a l l  the 
officers must be voting members of the district comm ittee. The d istrict 
com mittee shall forward to the state committee the name and contact 
information of the district committee chairman. 

&. Adopting rules and modes of procedure not in confliet 'lt'ith law. 

&. Filling any vaeancies in the office of preeinet eommitteeman pursuant 
to section 16.1 03 05. 

&.- SelectingThe district committee may appoint an executive committee 
consisting of five or more persons chosen from the distriet committee. 
The chairman, vice chairman, treasurer, and secretary of the district 
eommittee must be members and the officers of the exeeutive 
committeeconsistent with the bylaws of the d istrict committee. That 
party's nominees for and members of the legislative assembly may 
also beshall serve as members of the executive committee. 

�3. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman shall hold the 
office until the next regular election for the office or until a new chairman is 
selected by the district committee for the balance of the term, whichever 
occurs firstvacancy may be fi l led as provided by the district party bylaws. 

� The bylaws of the state comm ittee or state party may not include any 
requirement providing d irectives or procedures for the method of the 
organization of d istrict committees nor may the state committee or state 
party take any action or impose any requirement regarding d istrict party 
organization which is not consistent with this chapter. 
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SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6.1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. 

The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the 
district committees of the party and any person individual provided for in the bylaws of 
the state committee. 

SECTION 8. AM EN DMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-1 1 .  State committee - Meetings - Organ ization Vasansies. 

The state committee shal l  meet on or before Ju ly first of each odd-numbered 
year. The committee shal l  organize by selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, 
and treasurerofficers as provided for by the state committee bylaws and by adopting 
rules and modes of procedure. including ru les and procedures regarding the selection 
of state convention delegates. The party's bylaws must be filed with the secretary of 
state. The officers elected need not be members of the committee, but they shall 
beoome voting members of the committee after their election. With in  thirty days 
following the state committee's org anization, the newly elected cha i rman shall notify 
the secretary of state of the names of the party officers selected. These officers, with 
any other persons provided for by the party's bylaws and as the state committee 
designates, constitute the executi•;e committee of the state committee. If the office of 
chairman becomes vacant, the vise chairman holds the offioe until the next regular 
eleotion for the offioe or until a new chairman is selected by the state committee for the 
balanoe of the term, whiohe';er oocurs first. A vacancy in an office of the state 
oommittee, other than chairman and a party district chairman, must be filled upon a 
majority vote of the state committee. The ohairman of the state committee may 
temporarily fill any vaoanoy existing on the state oommittee until the state oommittee 
convenes to fill the vacancy. The seoretary of state must be notified of any changes in 
membership of the state's committee offioers. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03- 1 4  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 4. When state party sonvention held and duties of stateState party 
convention . 

.1. The state party conventions must be held in each presidential eleotion year 
at a plaoe and time designated by the party state com mittee shal l  set the 
place and time of the state party convention to be held i n  each general 
election year. The state party oonvention provided for in this ohapter 
sRa#Subject to party rules and bylaws, the state party convention may: 

4-:- � Nominate the legal number of oandidatesqual ified e lectors for its party 
for the offices of presidential electors. 

� !L Elect the required number of delegates and alternates to the national 
party convention as provided by the party's bylaws or national party 
ft:Hes. 

&.. Conduct other business as shall' some before the oonvention. 
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c. Endorse candidates as provided under subsectio n  2 . 

.£. The candidate or  candidates for endorsement or election must be declared 
endorsed or elected pursuant tounder the ru les of the party involved , and 
the chairman and secretary of the convention shall issue certificates of 
endorsement as provided in section 1 6. 1 -1 1 -06 or certificates of election .  
The names of the candidatesqualified electors nominated for presidential 
electors with the surname of the presidential candidate the party wishes to 
place on the general election ballot must be certified by the chairman and 
secretary of the convention to the secretary of state by four p .m .  on the 
sixtieth day before the general election to be placed upon the general 
election ballot as provided in section 1 6. 1 -06-07. 1 .  

SECTION 1 0. AME N DMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03- 1 7  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6.1 -03-1 7. Political party reorganization after apportionmentredistricting. 

If apportionmentredistricting of the legislative assembly becomes effective after 
the organization of political parties as provided in this chapter and before the primary or 
the general election, the secretary of state shall establish a timetable for the 
reorganization of the parties as rapidly as possible before the ensuing election. VVhen 
the timetable is established, the secretary of state shall notify all the county auditors of 
the timetable and of the details of the legislative apportionment as it affects each 
county. The secretary of state or county auditor may not require reorganization of 
precincts in which boundaries are unchanged after apportionment by the board of 
county commissioners or the governing body of the city pursuant to chapter 16.1 04. 
Each county auditor shall publish a notice in the official county newspaper containing: 

4-:- A statement that legislative apportionment has occurred. 

� A description and a map of the new legislative districts and the precincts as 
established by the governing bodies of the counties and cities in the 
county, pursuant to section 16.1 04-Q..1.,. 

� The date, time, and places of the precinct caucuses and district committee 
meetings determined by the secretary of state and the county auditor to be 
necessary according to the new districts and precincts established. 

+Ae-political parties, in the newly establ ished precincts and districts, shal l  tReR 
proceed to reorganize as closely as possible in conformance with this chapter aA€1--ffi 
conformance with the timetable established by the secretary of stateto assure 
compliance with primary election fi l ing dead l ines. 

SECTION 1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -04-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -04-01 . Precincts - Duties and responsibil ities of the board of county 
commissioners or the governing body of the city . 

.1. The board of county commissioners of each county: 

4-:- fl. Shall d ivide the county into precincts and establish the precinct 
boundaries, except that within the boundaries of any incorporated city, 
the governing body of the city shal l  d ivide the city into precincts and 
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establ ish their boundaries pursuant to title 40. Any number of 
townships or parts of townships may be joined i nto a single precinct 
provided that no precinct may encompass more than one legislative 
district. 

&. !;L May alter the number and size of precincts withi n  the county by 
combining or divid ing precincts. However, the govern ing body of any 
incorporated city has the authority to a lter the number and size of 
precincts located with in its boundaries. The board of county 
commissioners may rel inquish the jurisd iction provided under 
subsestion 1 subdivision a over al l  or any portion of a township or 
townships under its jurisdiction to a city for the purpose of establ ishing 
a vot ing precinct if a majority of the governing body of the city agrees 
to assume such jurisdiction . The govern ing body of a city, by majority 
vote, may return jurisdiction granted herein to the county and the 
county shal l  accept that jurisdiction. 

2 .  When establ ishing precincts under subsection 1, a board of county 
commissioners. in cooperation with the county auditor, or a city govern ing 
body shal l  consult with and seek input regarding the size, number, and 
proposed boundaries of the precincts from representatives of the pol itical 
parties organized within the county. Upon the request of the district 
chairman of a pol itical party, a board of county commissioners, in  
consultation with the county auditor, or the govern ing body of a city shal l  
consider proposals to change precinct boundaries." 

Page 6, after l ine 1 0, insert: 

"SECTION 1 6. REPEAL. Sections 1 6. 1 -03-1 2 and 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 9  of the N orth 
Dakota Century Code are repealed."  

Renumber accord ingly 
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201 3 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

B I LL/RESOLUTION NO. £3ltztf as (re) engrossed 

Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion M ade by: 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 

D HOUSE recede from House amendments 

� HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as fol lows 
f?e:h:u'l'? a../ I t:J../r}�Ate;./::_'7 -�� tlif �C)'D CVJ...of k B}LU-pl- lo /.ecuK m.f1,'1Y) p,m oF {p fl'.et!.r'h.c 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and 
a new committee be appointed 

.. J>'"� Seconded by: 

Total Senate Vote ;;t · Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Cou nt 

Senate Carrier 

LC N umber 

LC N umber 

---'---'---'--

Yes: ¥ No: 9- Absent: 
---�-- ------

__
_

_ 

-*
_

rz
_

o��
a
� �� 
__________ of amendment £� 

of engrossment 
----------



Date_lf-+-+�_,__q __ 

Roll Cal l  Vote #_---"/�--
201 3 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 

ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. f13fR9 as (re) engrossed 

Sena� --------�������------------Committ� 

Action Taken �SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 

Tota l Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 

LC N u mber 

LC N umber 
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Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 
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Com Conference Committee Report 
April 1 9, 201 3  1 2:33pm 

Module 10: s_cfcomrep_70_001 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2369, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Schaible, Dever, Marcellais 

and Reps. Kasper, Boehning, Zaiser) recommends that the SENATE ACCEDE to 
the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1 242- 1 248 and place SB 2369 on 
the Seventh order. 

Reengrossed SB 2369 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2369,  as reengrossed : Your conference committee (Sens. Schaible, Dever, Nelson and 

Reps . Kasper, Boehning, Amerman) recommends that the HOUSE RECE D E  from 
the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1 242-1 248, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place SB 2369 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 242-1 248 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 285- 1 291  of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bi l l  
No. 2369 be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "to" insert "create and enact a new section to chapter 1 6. 1 -03 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to political party organ ization; to" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  after "sections" insert " 1 6. 1 -03-0 1 ,  1 6 . 1 -03-02, 1 6. 1 -03-03, 1 6. 1 -03-05,  
1 6 . 1 -03-07, 1 6. 1 -03-08, 1 6. 1 -03-1 1 ,  1 6 . 1 -03-14 ,  1 6. 1 -03- 1 7 ,  1 6 . 1 -04-0 1 , "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  after "to" insert "political party organization ,  voting precincts, and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  replace "el igibi l ity for minor political parties" with "; and to repeal sections 
1 6 . 1 -03-1 2 and 1 6. 1 -03-1 9 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to political 
party organization" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 4,  insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Organizations allowed to nominate statewide and legislative 
candidates. 

A pol itical organization may not endorse candidates or have candidates 
petition for president. vice president. Congress. statewide office, or legislative office 
as set forth in chapter 1 6. 1 -1 1 ,  un less the organization: 

1.,. Organized accord ing to all requirements of this chapter: 

2.  Had printed on the bal lot at the last preced ing general election the names 
of a set of presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's 
candidate for president and vice president. a candidate for governor, a 
candidate for attorney general, or a candidate for secretary of state and 
those cand idates for presidential electors, governor, attorney general, or  
secretary of state received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 
presidential electors, the office of governor, attorney general, or secretary 
of state within this state at that election and organized according to al l  
requirements of th is chapter; or 

� Fi led a petition with the secretary of state signed by the number of 
electors required under section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -30 to qualify to endorse 
candidates or to have candidates petition to be included on the primary 
election bal lot in a consolidated column or on a special election bal lot. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 
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1 6.1-03-0 1 .  Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and 
manner of  holding - Caucus cal l  - Notice. 

1 .  Each legislative district party shall organize in conformance with the state 
legislative district boundaries as establ ished by the legislative assembly 
and as set forth under chapter 54-03. 

£. On or before May fifteenth following the last preceding general election, a 
party caucus must be held by every election precinct at a site within or 
reasonably close to the precinct in the manner provided in sections 
16 . 1 -03-01 through 1 6. 1 -03-03. 

&.;i. The legislative district chairman of each party shall issue the oallset the 
date and time for the precinct caucus at least twenty days before the time 
set for holding the oauous and the. If there is not a district chairman in a 
legislative district, the state party executive committee may issue the call 
for the precinct caucus. The cal l  must contain the following: 

a. Name of party. 

b. Preoinotlegislative district and precinct number or name. 

c. Date of caucus. 

d. Place of caucus. 

e. Hours of caucus. 

f. A statement of the business to be conducted , includ ing the election 
of precinct committeemen and such other personsindividuals as may 
be provided by state law and district party fl:Hesbylaws. 

g .  The name of the district chairman or, if there is not a d istrict 
chairman, the member of the state party executive committee issu ing 
the call. 

�- The district chairman or, if there is not a district chairman, the state party 
executive committee shall provide ten days' published notice in the 
official newspaper in circulation with in each precinct in the district. The 
notices must contain that information set forth in subsection �.9.. The 
distriot ohairman may inolude the information required by this section for 
al l  precincts in the d istrict may be included in one notice for publ ishing 
purposes. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1-03-02. Who may participate in and vote at caucus. 

1 .  Only those personsindividuals who are qual ified electors pursuant 
teunder section 1 6 . 1 -0 1 -04 may vote or be elected as committeemen or 
officers at the precinct caucus. 

2 .  Only those personsindividuals who either voted or affi l iated with the party 
at the last general election or intend to vote or affi l iate with the party and 
vote with the party at the next general election may vote at the precinct 
caucus. 

3. In case the right of a personan individual to participate at the caucus is 
challenged, the question of the person'sindividual's right to participate 
must be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. 1\ personAn individual so 
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challenged may not vote on the question of the person'sind ividual 's right 
to participate in the caucus, and a two-th i rds vote of the whole caucus is 
required to exclude a personan individual from participation. 

4.  No personAn individual may not vote or participate at more than one 
precinct caucus in any one year. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 16 . 1 -03-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-03. Caucus business and elections Political parties entitled to 
elect committeemen. 

1 .  Each precinct caucus shall elect a chairman, committeemen as provided 
in subsection 3, and other officers as may be pro'lided by party rules. The 
caucus may also discuss party policies, candidates, and any other 
business as prescribed by party rules. 

� Ne8 political organ ization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at 
its precinct caucus ooffissjf: 

a. The organization nominated and had printed on the bal lot at the last 
preceding general election the names of a set of presidential electors 
p ledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and 
vice president or a cand idate for governor, attorney general ,  or 
secretary of state; and 

b. The cand idates provided for in subdivision a received at least five 
percent of the total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, 
attorney general ,  or secretary of state with in this state at that 
election .  

d-,-2. Each pol itical party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise 
qual ifying under subsection �1. is entitled to elect one precinct 
committeeman for each two hundred fifty votes, or majority of a fraction 
thereof, cast for the party's presidential electors, governor, attorney 
general, or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general  election. 
Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct committeeman for each 
party which qual ifies under subsection �1- Each precinct committeeman 
must be an elector of the precinct in which the committeeman resides 
and must be elected for a two-year term. 

� If a pol itical organ ization desires to organize under this chapter but has 
not qual ified as provided in subsection 1, the organization may elect one 
precinct committeeman for each precinct i n  the district. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 16 . 1 -03-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6.1 -03-05. Vacancies in office of precinct committeeman - Fill ing. 

A vacancy in the office of precinct committeeman, wh ich occurs after the 
organ ization of the district committee, mt!Stmay be filled by appointment from the 
precinct by the district executive committee of the party. Notice of the appointment 
must be given to the county auditor. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 6 . 1 -03-07. Meeting of district committee - Organization. 

1 .  In every odd-numbered year, the district committee of each party shal l  
meet with in fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in  section 
1 6. 1 -03-01 . The day, hour, and site must be set by the existing d istrict 
committee chairman. +ReAny incumbent members of the legislative 
assembly from the party, the precinct committeemen of a party, selected 
as provided by this chapter, wftl:land any other personsindividual provided 
for by the district committee's bylaws and as the district committee 
designates, constitute the district committee of the party. The district 
committee of a party must be organized to coincide with the geograph ical 
boundary l ines of state legislative d istricts. Each member of any 
committee provided for in this chapter must be a qual ified elector--aRG 
must retain the office the member was elected to until a successor is 
chosen. 

2. The district committee shall organize by: 

&. Selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, and treasurer 
chosen byprecinct committeemen and the party's incumbent 
members of the legislative assembly from the d istrict shall select the 
officers of the district committee. The officers selected. as provided 
by the district party bylaws, need not be precinct committeemen; 
however, all the officers must be voting members of the district 
committee. The district committee shall forward to the state 
committee the name and contact information of the d istrict 
committee chairman. 

&. Adopting rules and modes of procedure not in conflict with law. 

G:- Filling any vacancies in the office of precinct committeeman pursuant 
to section 16.1 03 05. 

G:- SelectingThe district committee may appoint an executive committee 
consisting of five or more persons chosen from the district 
committee. The chairman, vice chairman, treasurer, and secretary of 
the district committee must be members and the officers of the 
executive committeeconsistent with the bylaws of the district 
committee. That party's nominees for and members of the legislative 
assembly may also beshall serve as members of the executive 
committee. 

�3. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the •;ice chairman shall hold 
the office until the next regular election for the office or until a new 
chairman is selected by the district committee for the balance of the term, 
whichever occurs firstvacancy may be filled as provided by the d istrict 
party bylaws. 

4.  The bylaws of the state committee or state party may not include any 
requirement providing directives or procedures for the method of the 
organ ization of district committees nor may the state committee or state 
party take any action or impose any requirement regard ing district party 
organization which is not consistent with this chapter. 

SECTION 7.  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 6.1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. 

The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the 
district committees of the party and any f3ef500individual provided for i n  the bylaws 
of the state committee. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 .  State committee - Meetings - Organization vasaAsies. 
The state committee shall meet on or before July first of each odd-numbered 

year. The committee shall organize by selecting a chairman, vice chairman, 
secretary, and treasurerofficers as provided for by the state committee bylaws and by 
adopting rules and modes of procedure, including ru les and procedures regarding 
the selection of state convention delegates. The party's bylaws must be filed with the 
secretary of state. The officers elected need not be members of the committee, but 
they shall become voting members of the committee after their election. Within th i rty 
days fol lowing the state committee's organ ization, the newly elected chairman shal l  
notify the secretary of state of the names of the party officers selected .-+Hese 
officers, with any other persons provided for by the party's bylaws and as the state 
committee designates, constitute the executive committee of the state committee. If 
the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman holds the office until the 
next regular election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the state 
committee for the balance of the term, whichever occurs first. A vacancy in an office 
of the state committee, other than chairman and a party district chairman, must be 
filled upon a majority vote of the state committee. The chairman of the state 
committee may temporarily fill any vacancy existing on the state committee until the 
state committee convenes to fill the vacancy. The secretary of state must be notified 
of any changes in membership of the state's committee officers. 

SECTION 9. AME NDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-14 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 4. WheA state party GOAvention held aAd duties ofstateState 
party convention . 

.1. The state party conventions must be held in each presidential election 
year at a place and time designated by the party state committee shal l  
set the place and time of the state party convention to be held in each 
general election year. The state party convention provided for in this 
chapter shaiiSubject to party ru les and bylaws, the state party convention 
may: 

4:- £!:. Nominate the legal number of candidatesgualified e lectors for its 
party for the offices of presidential electors. 

&.. b. E lect the required number of delegates and alternates to the national 
party convention as provided by the party's bylaws or national party 
R:Hes. 

� Conduct other business as shall come before the convention. 

g_,_ Endorse candidates as provided under subsection 2. 

2. The candidate or cand idates for endorsement or election must be 
declared endorsed or elected pursuant tounder the rules of the party 
involved , and the chairman and secretary of the convention shall issue 
certificates of endorsement as provided in section 1 6 . 1 - 1 1 -06 or 
certificates of election. The names of the candidatesqualified electors 
nominated for presidential electors with the surname of the presidential 
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candidate the party wishes to place on  the general election ballot must 
be certified by the chairman and secretary of the convention to the 
secretary of state by four p.m. on the sixtieth day before the general  
election to be placed upon the general election bal lot as provided in  
section 1 6 . 1 -06-07 . 1 . 

SECTION 1 0. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03- 1 7  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 7. Political party reorganization after 
appo rtionmentredistricting. 

If apportionmentredistrictinq of the leg islative assembly becomes effective 
after the organization of political parties as provided in this chapter and before the 
primary or the general election ,  the secretary of state shall establish a timetable for 
the reorganization of the parties as rapidly as possible before the ensuing election. 
When the timetable is established, the secretary of state shall notify all the county 
auditors of the timetable and of the details of the legislative apportionment as it 
affects each county. The secretary of state or county auditor may not require 
reorganization of precincts in which boundaries are unchanged after apportionment 
by the board of county commissioners or the governing body of the city pursuant to 
chapter 16.1 04. Each county auditor shall publish a notice in the official county 
newspaper containing: 

-h /\statement that legislative apportionment has occurred. 

&. /\description and a map of the new legislative districts and the precincts 
as established by the governing bodies of the counties and cities in the 
county, pursuant to section 16.1 04 01. 

a.:. The date, time, and places of the precinct caucuses and district 
committee meetings determined by the secretary of state and the county 
auditor to be necessary according to the ne'N districts and precincts 
established. 

+Re-political parties, in the newly establ ished precincts and d istricts, shal l tAefl 
proceed to reorganize as closely as possible in conformance with this chapter aflG..ffi 
conformance with the timetable established by the secretary of stateto assure 
compliance with primary election fi l ing dead l ines. 

SECTION 1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -04-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -04-01 . Precincts - Duties and responsibil ities of the board of county 
commissioners or the governing body of the city . 

.1. The board of county commissioners of each county: 

-h E.:. Shall d ivide the county into precincts and establ ish the precinct 
boundaries, except that withi n  the boundaries of any incorporated 
city, the governing body of the city shal l d ivide the city into precincts 
and establish their boundaries pursuant to title 40. Any number of 
townsh ips or parts of townships may be joined into a single precinct 
provided that no precinct may encompass more than one legislative 
d istrict. 

&. .12.:. May alter the number and size of precincts within the county by 
combining or d ividing precincts. However, the governing body of any 
i ncorporated city has the authority to alter the number and size of 
precincts located with in its boundaries. The board of county 
commissioners may rel inquish the jurisd iction provided under 
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subsection 1 subdivision a over al l or any portion of a townsh ip  or 
townships under its jurisd iction to a city for the purpose of 
establ ishing a voting precinct if a majority of the governing body of 
the city agrees to assume such jurisdiction. The governing body of a 
city, by majority vote, may return jurisd iction granted herein to the 
county and the county shall accept that jurisdiction. 

2. When establ ishing precincts under subsection 1. a board of county 
commissioners. in cooperation with the county aud itor, or a city govern ing 
body shall consult with and seek input regarding the size. number. and 
proposed boundaries of the precincts from representatives of the political 
parties organ ized within the county. Upon the request of the district 
chairman of a pol itical party. a board of county commissioners. in 
consu ltation with the county auditor. or the govern ing body of a city shal l  
consider proposals to change precinct boundaries."  

Page 6 ,  after l ine 1 0, insert: 

"SECTION 1 6. REPEAL. Sections 1 6 . 1 -03-1 2  and 1 6 . 1 -03-1 9 of the North 
Dakota Century Code are repealed. "  

Renumber accordingly 

Reengrossed SB 2369 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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ALVIN A. JAEGER 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

PHONE (701 ) 328-2900 
FAX (701 ) 328-2992 .M E PAGE www.nd.gov/sos E-MAIL sos@nd.gov 

• 

• 

SECR ETARY OF STATE 
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

600 EAST BOULEVARD AVENUE DEPT 1 08 
BISMARCK ND 58505-0500 

February 14 ,  20 1 3  

TO: Sen. Dever, Chairman, and Members of the Senate Government and Veterans' Affairs Committee 

FR: Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State, on behalf of AI Jaeger, Secretary of State 

RE: SB 2369 - Political Party Organization and Political Party Ballot Access 

This bil l creates a new chapter that would govern the organization of a political party. It replaces Chapter 
1 6 . 1 -03 (attached) that is repealed by Section 6. The new chapter would require a political party to be 
organized in at least half of the state's legislative districts and file bylaws with the Secretary of State in  
order to be considered a statewide party eligible for a column in a primary election . 

Sections 2 through 5:  These changes are related to the design of the primary election ballot. As part of 
the testimony, examples are provided as to how a ballot appears under current law and how it  would 
appear with the adoption of this bi l l .  

We request your favorable consideration and a do pass recommendation . 
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I • " • I • • 
I • 

• 
To vote for the candidate of your choice, you To vote for the candidate of your choice, you To vote tor the candidate of your dloice, you • must darken 1he oval ( • ) oppos!e 1he name must darl<en 1he oval ( • ) oppos�e 1he name must darken 1he oval ( •  ) oppos�e 1he name 
olthe candidate. olllle candidate. olllle cand<lale. 

• 21 • To vote tor a person whose name is not printed To vote lor a person whose name is not printed To vote for a person whose name is not printed 
on 1he balk>!, write lila! person's name in 1he on 1he ballot, write lila! person's name in 1he on the baiiQ:, write that person's name in the 

• ��sp�of.l(i=\"'��:� ���.;e�=l"�r-1::�� ���ae:r=l"����:� 
provided. provided. provided. 

• UnHed States Senator UnHed States Senator United States Senator 
Vote for no more thWI ONE name Vote for no more than ONE name Vote tor no more than ONE name 

• Candidate Candidate ·=· Candidate 

• - - -, -
• �:e�se,:��e�� ���g:;! Representative in Congress 

Vote for no more than ONE name 
Representative in Congress 
Vote tor no more than ONE name 

• Candidate - Candidate - Candidate 

• C• Candidate �� Candidate 

• ·- -· State Senator 
District 1 

. .. . State Senator State Senator Vote for"nO more than ONE name 

District 1 District 1 
• .. . Vote for no more than ONE name Vote tor no more than ONE name 

• .. . - Candidate · - '  Candidate State Representative 
District 1 

. .. . =-· Vote tor no more than TWO names 

• State Representative State Representative 
District 1 District 1 

• Vote tor no more than TWO names Vote for no more than TWO names 
·-

• ·� Candidate ·� Candidate Governor and Lt. Governor 
Vote for no mort than ONE HI of names 

• I • C'• Candidate C> Candidate - I • c·· - State Auditor -· 
Vote foJ no more than ONE name 

• C> ·� -
• .. . Governor and Lt. Governor Governor and Lt. Governor State Treasurer 

Vote lor no more than ONE aet ol nMlts Vote tor no more than ONE set o1 nMlN Vote tor no more than ONE name 

• - Candidate - Candidate -
& Candidate & Candidate Insurance Commissioner • Vote tor no mort than ONE name 

• < - ·2· ' -- -
• State Auditor State Auditor Public Service Commissioner 

Vote loJ no more than ONE name Vote for no more than ONE name VotlloJ no more than ONE name 

• C ·  Candidate ·� Candidate 

• - c� 

• State Treasurer State Treasurer 
Vote loJ no more than ONE name Vote tor no more than ONE name 

• < - Candidate Candidate 

• ·---·' ·=) 

• Insurance Commissioner Insurance Commissioner 
VotB tor no more than ONE name Vote fof no more than ONE name 

• C· Candidate (=• Candidate 

• ·=' ·� 

• Public Service Commissioner Public Service Commissioner 
Vote for no mort than ONE name Vote fof no more than ONE name 

• �=) Candidate �=> Candidate 

• ·=) C ·  

• 
• I • I • I • 
• 

+ 01 -01  + 
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+ PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 12, 2012 

To vote lor a person whose name � not 
printed on the ballot, write that person's name 
In the blank space provided lor !hat pu!pOSe 
and darl<en the oval ( • ) opposke the 
space provided. 

Superintendent of Public Instruction 
Vote for no more than ONE nam<1 

Justice of the Supreme Court 
10year term 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

·-- · Candidate 

Judge ofthe District Court 
Judicial District 

Judgeship Number 1 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

Candidate 

County Commissioner 
Vote for no more than iWO names 

Candidate 

County Commissioner 
Dlstrlct 1 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

Candidate 

Candidate 

Director, Southwest Water Authority 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

Candidate 

,_ 

+ 

Director, Garrison Diversion 

Vote for ;::=%e name 

Candidate 

�=:!Y���:r.:: 
New York Times 

Mayor 
City ofTemplate 

Vote lor no more tllai1 ONE name 

Candidate 

Council Member 
City of Template 

Vote tor no more than ONE name 

Candidate 

- .  
Commissioner 

City of Template 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

Candidate 

Municipal Judge 
City of Template 

Vote lor no more then ONE name 

Candidate 

YES - means you approve the 
measure as summarized above. 
NO - means you reject the measure 
as surrvnarized above. 

Initiated Constitutional Measure No. 2 
Th� Initiated constitutional measure would 
amend sections 1, 4, 14, 15, and 16 of Article X ollhe North Dakota Constftution and repaal 

,_ sections 5, 6, 7, 9, and 10 of that same article, 1-=--==========l :��=';!�'Z:':3;:u:���� The 
Park Board Member measure would require the Legislative Assembly 

City of Template lo replace lost revenue to cilias, counties, 
Vote for no more tllai1 ONE name townships, sctoo1 districts, and other polillcal 

subdivisions with allocations of various 

Candidate 

School Board Member 
__ Public Schools 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

Candidate 

---

state4evel taxes and other revenues, without 
restrictions on how these mvenuee may be spent by the poiH!cal subdivisions. 

YES - means you epprove the 
measure as summarized above. 
NO - means you reject the measure 
as summarized above. 

lnltlated Constitutional 
Measure No. 3 

YES - means you approve the 
measure as sunvnarized above. 
NO - means you reject the measure 
as summarized above. 

Referendum Measure No. 4 
This referendum 2370as pa,ssed 

-- ���Jro���"�wo": 
allow the Unlvll!Sily of North Dakota 
1o d"ISoontinue the Fighting Sioux 
nickname and logo. 
NO -means you reject Senale Bin 
2370, and would require the 
University of North Dakota to use the R!llling Sioux nickname and logo. 
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STATE Of NORTH DAKOTA GRANO FORKS COUNTY Bible BaptiSI Church 

County Commlasloner 

David Waterman Valo faf no '!"ft tbM TWO -

John M Schmisek 
Cory J Solem 

Marie Strinden Cynthia L Pic 
Eliot Glasshelm 

Kenneth Vein 

Scot Kelsh 

+ 

.:::::> Randy Christmann 

Continue voting other side 0) 

_____ Initials 
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I 
I Jay Smith 

- VIcki Ericson 
-

Eric Burin -
.�. Kelly Hogness 

Roland Rlemers 

- Margaret Brack 

Cory Solem 
--

Roger Pohlman 
-

Erlc lunn 

·=-· 
---
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PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 1 2, 2012 

-

This ballot CCI'Itains four measures. Constitutional 
Measure No. 1 was approved by !he 2011 
Legislative Assembly. Cons1ilulional Measures No. 
2 and No.3 were placed on !he baDotbyinHia11ve �:====�:r��.:=· 
of North Dakota tor lhelr approval or rejection. Vote !'?E����=�•=�= 
measure. 

ConatttuUonal MeasuR! No.1 
(House Cenauren! Reaolutlon No. 3047,2011 

Seoslon Lawa, Chapter 519) 
This constitutional measure woukl amend and 
reenactsedioo 6 a! Artide !Val lhe NorthDakala 
Constitution This measure would prohibit the 
appoimment ala member a! the Legislative Assem�y 
toe state officeforwhich1he COOlflOIISIIIenwas ��a:��=m�ral 
employees dtJiing 1t1e membe(s tenn of office. 

· - ·  YES ·means you approve the measure 
as summarized above. 
NO • reject !he meastJI1l as 

lnftlated Cen.utullenal-ute No.2 
This Initiated constitutional measure would amend 
sections 1,4, 14, 15, and 16e!Artide X el 1heNorth 
Dakote Cons1iluien and repealsoctiens 5, 6, 7, 9, :!�.o�::,m��cr:a���J:f!rty 
January 1, 2012. lhe measure would rSQ\Jife 1he 
Legislative Assembly to replace los! revenue to cities, 
counties, 10wnships, scheel d.-, and ether 
political subdivisions with allocations of various 
state-level taxes and other reveruas, without 
restrictions on how these revenues may be spent by 
1he pelitical subd'Msions. 

Initiated Conttttunonal Measwe No. 3 
This initiated constitutional maasure would add a new 
section to Artide I a! the North Dakota CooetiMion 
stating, "Government may not burden a person's or 
religious organization's religious liberty. The righlto 
act or refuse to act in a manner motivated by a sincere� held religious bel'lef mah:" be burdened 
=�=J��=�or 
refusal to ad and has used 1he leas1 -clive means 
10 further thai Interest A burden Includes Indirect 
burdens such as withholding benefits, assessing 
penalties, or an exdusion from programs or access to 
-·· 

,_ , 

YES - means  you approve the measure 
as mated above. 
NO roject the mee.sureas 

Referendum Measure -No. 4 
This referendum measure concems Senate Bill 2370 
as pessed by the Legislative Assembly In 1he 
November 2011 special session (Session Laws, 
Chapter 580). Senate Bill 2370 repeeled section 
15-1046 el 1he North Dakota Cemury Cede, wNd1 
required the Univeroily el North Dakota Ill use 1he 
FJghting Slou• nid<name and logo. 

��ef"�
rovelhe measure 

NO reject the measure as 
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Randy Christmann '==' 
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Continue voting other side f) 
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I • =-· Kenneth Vein 
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-. 

VIcki Ericson 

Eric Burin 

KeUy Hogness 

Roland Rlemers 

Margaret Brack 

Cory Solem 

Roger Pohlman 

Erlclunn 

This ballot contains four measures. Constitutional 
=':.,N

o
Asi.,W:bly��!':t :.:sures No. 

2 and No. 3 were placed on !he baltotbylnfliat!ve 
petition and Measure No. 4 by a referendum petition. 
lhese measures are being submitted to 1he voters 
of North Dakota for their approval or rejection. Vote !'?E�����.=..�= measurJ. 

Constitutional Meaaure No.1 
(House Concurnnt Rudutlon No. 3047,2011 

Sesalon Laws, Chapter 519) 
This constirutional measure would amend and 
reenact sedan 6 of Mide iV of the Nol1h Dakota 
Constitution. Ttis measure would prohibit the 
appoirmlent of a member of the Legislative Assembly 
10 a state office for which !he compensa!Son was 
Increased in an amount greater !han any general 
legislative Increase provided to fuiJ.b'me state 
employees during the membetsterm of office. 

-. 

,_ , 

::S�:SmT�Ihe measure 

NO • reject 1t1e measure as 

----------1 This Initiated constitu1ional measure would amend 

-.::=--===========j =���.:�=�r.-l8.rU1 
and 1 o of !hat same artide, eliminating property taxes, poll taxes, and acreage taxes, ­
January 1, 2012. The measure would require !he 
legi.olative Assembly to replace lost revenue to otlas, 
oountias, townships, achool- and 011101 
political subdivisions wfth allocations of various 
state-level taxes and Oiher reverues, wi1hout 
restrictions on how these revenues may be spen1 by 
the political subdivisions. 

-

·� ��:r�rovelhemeasure 
NO - the measure as 

Initiated Conltltutlonal Measure No. 3 
This Initiated constitutional measure would add a new 
,._ to  Article I of the NorU1 Dakota Constitutlon 
stating, "Government may not burden a person's or 
religious o<ganlzation's reigious liberty. The right to 
act or refuse to act In a manner motivated by a 
::e:!h

e
hold retigious �!!

s
m:��� 

govemm�inlnfringingthe specfficactor 
refusal to act and has used the least reslrlctive means 
to further that interest A burden includes lrxfirect 
burdens suchaswithholding-. assessing 
penalties, or an exclusion from programs or access to laciities.' 

·-

YES -means you approve !he measore 
as stated above. 

- means you reject 1he measure as 

Ref&rendum Measure No. 4 
This relerendum measure concerns Senate Bill 2370 
as passad by the legslative Assembly in the 
November 2011 spedat aasslon (Session laws, 
Chapter 580). Senate Bil2370 repealed sadton 
15-10-16ofthe NorU1 Dakota CentiJiy Code, whidl 
required the Uniwrsity of Noflh Dakota to use the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo. 

,_ 

YES • means you approve Senate am 
2370, the etfed of which wookl allow the Unlve'!"Y of NorU1 Dakota to disoontinue 
the Fighting Sioux nldmame and ifl9o. 
NO • Senate Bltl 
and 

lhuuro 1 
ShaltGrendFoll<s Pubtk:Schoot llistrict No.1, 
Cou���ra::��p=�g:� C:mtn the official newspaper:?the school dstrla 
!or the succeeding two years? 

·-· 
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CHAPTER 1 6. 1 -03 
PARTY C O M M ITTEE ORGANIZATION 

1 6. 1 -03-01 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeem e n  - Time a nd m a n ner of 
holding - C aucus call - N otice. 

1 .  On or before May fifteenth fol lowing the last preceding general election , a party caucus 
must be held by every election precinct at a site within  or reasonably close to the 
precinct in the manner provided in sections 1 6. 1 -03-0 1 through 1 6. 1 -03-03. 

2 .  The legislative district chairman of each party shall issue the call for the precinct 
caucus at least twenty days before the time set for holding the caucus and the call 
must contain the following: 
a.  Name of party. 
b. Precinct number or name. 
c. Date of caucus. 
d .  Place of caucus. 
e. Hours of caucus. 
f. A statement of the business to be conducted, includ ing the election of precinct 

committeemen and such other persons as may be provided by state law and 
party rules. 

g .  The name of the district chairman issuing the cal l .  
3. The district chairman shal l provide ten days' published notice in the official newspaper 

in circulation with in each precinct in the district. The notices must contain that 
information set forth in subsection 2. The district chairman may include the information 
required by this section for all precincts in the district in one notice for publishing 
purposes. 

1 6. 1 -03-02. Who may partici pate in and vote at caucus. 
1 .  Only those persons who are qual ified electors pursuant to section 1 6. 1 -0 1 -04 may 

vote or be elected as committeemen or officers at the precinct caucus. 
2 .  Only those persons who either voted o r  affi l iated with the party at the last general 

election or intend to vote or affiliate with the party at the next general election may vote 
at the precinct caucus. 

3. In case the right of a person to participate at the caucus is challen ged, the question of 
the person's right to participate must be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. A 
person so chal lenged may not vote on the question of the person's right to participate 
in the caucus, and a two-th irds vote of the whole caucus is required to exclude a 
person from participation.  

4.  No person may vote or  participate at  more than one precinct caucus in any one year. 

1 6.1 -03-03. Caucus business a n d  elections - Political parties e ntitled to elect 
comm itteemen. 

1 .  Each precinct caucus shal l  elect a chairman, committeemen as provided in subsection 
3, and other officers as may be provided by party rules. The caucus may a lso discuss 
party policies, candidates, and any other business as prescribed by party rules. 

2 .  No political organization i s  entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at its precinct 
caucus un less: 
a. The organization nominated and had printed on the bal lot at the last preceding 

general election the names of a set of presidential electors pledged to the 
election of the party's candidates for president and vice president or a candidate 
for governor, attorney general, or secretary of state; and 

b. The candidates provided for in  subdivision a received at least five percent of the 
total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, attorney general, or 
secretary of state within this state at that election. 

3 .  Each political party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise qualifying under 
subsection 2,  is entitled to elect one precinct committeeman for each two hundred fifty 
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votes, or fraction thereof, cast for the party's presidential electors, governor, attorney 
general ,  or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general election .  Each precinct 
is entitled to at least one precinct committeeman for each party which qualifies under 
subsection 2.  Each precinct committeeman must be an elector of the precinct in  which 
the committeeman resides and must be elected for a two-year term. 

1 6. 1 -03-04. Candidates elected at caucus - Tie vote - Canvassing vote. 
Repealed by S .L. 1 997, ch. 1 89,  § 1 2 . 

1 6. 1 -03-05. Vacancies i n  office of p recinct committeeman - Fi l l ing.  
A vacancy in the office of precinct committeeman, which occurs after the organization of the 

district committee , must be filled by appointment from the precinct by the district executive 
committee of the party. Notice of the appointment must be g iven to the county auditor. 

1 6. 1 -03-06.  District com mittee of pol itical party - How constituted. 
Repealed by S .L. 1 997, ch. 1 89,  § 1 2 . 

1 6. 1 -03-07. Meeting of d istrict comm ittee - O rganization. 
1 .  I n  every odd-numbered year, the district committee of each party shal l  meet with in 

fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in section-1 6. 1 -03-01 . The day, hour, 
and site must be set by the existing district committee chairman.  The precinct 
committeemen of a party, selected as provided by this chapter, with any other persons 
provided for by the district committee's bylaws and as the district committee 
designates, constitute the district committee of the party. The district committee of a 
party must be organ ized to co incide with the geographical boundary lines of state 
leg islative d istricts . Each member of any committee provided for in this chapter must 
be a qual ified elector and must retain the office the member was elected to until a 
successor is chosen. The district committee shall organize by: 
a. Selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, and treasurer chosen by the 

d istrict committee. The officers selected need not be precinct committeemen; 
however, all the officers must be voting members of the d istrict committee. 

b. Adopting rules and modes of procedure not in conflict with law. 
c. Fil l ing any vacancies in the office of precinct committeeman pursuant to section 

1 6. 1 -03-05. 
d. Selecting an executive committee consisting of five or more persons chosen from 

the district committee . The chairman, vice chairman, treasurer, and secretary of 
the district committee must be members and the officers of the executive 
committee. That party's nominees for and members of the legislative assembly 
may also be members of the executive committee. 

2 .  If the office of cha irman becomes vacant, the vice chairman shall hold the office until 
the next regular election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the district 
committee for the balance of the term, whichever occurs first. 

1 6.1 -03-08. State comm ittee - Mem bers h i p. 
The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the district 

committees of the party and any person provided for in the bylaws of the state committee.  

1 6. 1 -03-09. Proxies permissible - Exception.  
Repealed by S.L .  1 997, ch.  1 89 ,  § 1 2. 

1 6. 1 -03-1 0.  Mem ber of comm ittee to be qual ified elector - Term of mem ber. 
Repealed by S.L .  1 997, ch. 1 89,  § 1 2. 
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1 6. 1 -03-1 1 .  State comm ittee - Meetings - O rgan ization - Vacancies. 
The state committee shall meet on or before July first of each odd-numbered year. The 

committee shall organize by selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, and treasurer and 
by adopting rules and modes of procedure. The party's bylaws must be filed with the secretary 
of state. The officers elected need not be members of the committee, but they shall become 
voting members of the committee after their election. Within thirty days following the state 
committee's organization, the newly elected chairman shall notify the secretary of state of the 
names of the party officers selected. These officers, with any other persons provided for by the 
party's bylaws and as the state committee designates, constitute the executive committee of the 
state committee. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman holds the office 
until the next regular election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the state 
committee for the balance of the term, whichever occurs first. A vacancy in an office of the state 
committee, other than chairman and a party district chairman, must be filled upon a majority 
vote of the state committee. The chairman of the state committee may temporarily fill any 
vacancy existing on the state com mittee until the state committee convenes to fill the vacancy. 
The secretary of state must be notified of any changes in membership of the state's committee 
officers. 

1 6. 1 -03-1 2. Meeting of d istrict comm ittee to elect delegates to state party convention -
O ptionaL preci nct_caucus - Proxies. 

Prior to the sixtieth day before the primary election in each election year and upon the call 
of the chairman, the district committee of each state legislative district s hall meet at a place 
designated by the chairman to elect delegates to a state party convention to be held as provided 
in this chapter. If the bylaws of the state legislative district so provide, precinct committeemen 
may call a precinct caucus prior to the district meeting to elect additional delegates to attend the 
district meeting.  Delegates to the state convention must be elected as provided by the state 
party's bylaws. Delegates to the state convention must be electors of their d istrict. 

1 6. 1 -03-1 3. When state party convention held. 
Repealed by S.L. 1 997, ch. 1 89, § 1 2 .  

1 6.1 -03-1 4. When state party convention held a nd duties of state party convention. 
The state party conventions m ust be held in each presidential election year at a place and 

time designated by the party state committee. The state party convention provided for in this 
chapter shall : 

1 .  Nominate the legal number of candidates for its party for the offices of presidential 
electors. 

2 .  Elect the required number of delegates and alternates to the national party convention 
as provided by the party's bylaws or national party rules. 

3 .  Conduct other business as shall come before the convention.  
The candidate or candidates for endorsement or election must be declared endorsed or elected 
pursuant to the rules of the party involved, and the chairman and secretary of the convention 
shall issue certificates of endorsement as provided in section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -06 or certificates of 
election. The names of the candidates nominated for presidential electors with the surname of 
the presidentia l  candidate the party wishes to place on the general election ballot must be 
certified by the chairman and secretary of the convention to the secretary of state by four p .m.  
on the sixtieth day before the general election to be placed upon the general election ballot as 
provided in section 1 6. 1 -06-07. 1 .  

1 6. 1 -03-1 5. Expenses of delegates to national conventions. 
Repealed by S.L. 1 987, ch. 247, § 1 .  

1 6.1 -03-1 6. Fi l l ing vacancy occurrin g  i n  office of national c o m mitteeman or  
committeewoman. 

Repealed by S . L. 1 997, ch. 1 89, § 12 .  

Page No. 3 



1 6 . 1 -03-1 7. Political party reorga nization after apportionment. 
If apportionment of the legislative assembly becomes effective after the organization of 

political parties as provided in this chapter and before the primary or the general elect ion,  the 
secretary of state shall establish a timetable for the reorganization of the parties as rapidly as 
possible before the ensuing election. When the timetable is established , the secretary of state 
shall notify all the county auditors of the timetable and of the details of the leg islative 
apportionment as it affects each county. The secretary of state or county auditor may not require 
reorgan ization of precincts in which boundaries are unchanged after apportionment by the 
board of county commissioners or the governing body of the city pursuant to chapter 1 6 . 1 -04. 
Each county auditor shall publish a notice in the official county newspaper containing: 

1 .  A statement that legislative apportionment has occurred. 
2 .  A description and a map of the new legislative districts and the precincts as 

establ ished by the governing bodies of the counties and cities in the county, pursuant 
to section 1 6 . 1 -04-01 . 

3. The date, t ime, and places of the precinct caucuses and district committee meetings 
determined by the secretary of state and the county auditor to be necessary a ccording 
to the new districts and precincts established. 

The pol itical parties, in the newly established precincts and districts, shall then proceed to 
reorgan ize as closely as possible in conformance with this chapter and in conformance with the 
timetable establ ished by the secretary of state. 

1 6. 1 -03-1 8. Unfair  and corrupt e lection practices appl icable to chapter. 
Repealed by S.L.  1 997, ch. 1 89, § 1 2. 

1 6 . 1 -03-1 9. Organizations a llowed to nominate statewide and leg islative candidates.  
A p olitical organization may not endorse candidates or have candidates petition for 

president ,  vice president, Congress, statewide office, or legislative office as set forth in chapter 
1 6 . 1 - 1 1 ,  unless the organization: 

1 . Had printed on the ballot at the last preceding general election the names of a set of 
presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's candidate for president and 
vice president, a candidate for governor, a candidate for attorney general, or a 
candidate for secretary of state and those candidates for presidential electors, 
governor, attorney general ,  or secretary of state received at least five percent of the 
total vote cast for pres idential electors, the office of governor, attorney general ,  or 
secretary of state within this state at that election; and 

2 .  Organized according to a l l  requirements of this chapter; or 
3 .  Fi led a petition with the secretary of state as set forth in section 1 6. 1 -1 1 -30 .  

1 6. 1 -03-20. Political parties may cond uct p reside ntial preference caucuses. 
Repealed by S . L. 2009, ch. 1 8 1 ,  § 1 .  
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February 2 1 , 20 1 3  

P ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2369 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  remove "to create and enact chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 . 1  of the North Dakota Century Code; "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  remove I I  relating t o  political party committee organization; 1 1  

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove the second "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove the second "to" 

Page 1 ,  remove l ines 5 and 6 

Page 1 ,  remove lines 8 through 23 

Page 2, remove l ines 1 through 1 5  

Page 7, remove l ine 1 7  

Renumber accordingly 
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ALVIN A. JAEGE R  
SECRETARY OF STATE 

PHONE (70 1 )  328-2900 
FAX (70 1 )  328-2992 .ME PAGE www.nd.gov/sos E-MAIL sos@nd.gov 

• 

• 

SECR ETARY O F  STATE 
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

600 EAST BOULEVARD AVENUE DEPT 1 08 
BISMARCK NO 58505-0500 

March 14 ,  20 1 3  

TO: Rep. Kasper, Chairman, and Members of the House Government and Veterans' Affairs Committee 

FR: J im Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State, on behalf of AI Jaeger, Secretary of State 

RE: SB 2369 - Ballot Access for Political Parties 

The changes proposed in this bi l l  are related to the design of the bal lot used for the primary portion of the 
June election. As part of th is testimony, examples are being provided as to how a bal lot appears under 
current law and how it would appear with the adoption of this bi l l .  

Section 1. page 1. l ines 1 7  through 20: The changes improve the readabi lity of the ballot instructions for 
the voter. 

· 
· - � -

Section 1. page 2. lines 4 through 1 8: The changes better utilize the space on the ballot by moving the 
format of the precinct identification text boxes that are currently located in the bottom right corner. 

Section 2, page 3, lines 5 through 1 3  and l ines 16 through 2 1 :  The changes allow the placement of the 
instructions to the voter on the primary election ballot to be moved to a location where it will be seen more 
easily by the voters. The changes also improve t�e readability of the instructions for the voter advising 
him or her that they cannot vote for candidates of more than one political party. 

Section 3, page 4, l ines 23 through 26: A political party who has gained ballot access for the primary 
election portion of the ballot for their respective politicaT party through the petition process by securing 
7,000 signatures wil l  be allowed to list on. the bqllot only the offices for which they have identified 
candidates. 

Section 3. page 5. l ines 3 through 6: To reconcile state law, as is now the standard for an election held in 
the presidential election cycle, any pol itical party that received at least five percent of the vote in the non­
presidential election for certain offices may organize accord ing to the requirements of chapter 1 6. 1 -03. 

Section 4. page 5. l ines 22 and 23: Under current law, a candidate for the office of president on the 
general election ballot, which is not associated with a recogn ized in-state political party that had ballot 
access in the June election, is allowed to have his or her name on the ballot l inked to a national political 
party. That is, if they secure the signatures of at least 4,000 North Dakota electors on the candidate's 
nominating petition. However, since the candidate's name is not usually known until closer to the general  
election, the national political party does not have enough time to secure the necessary signatures. 
Therefore, this change allows a national political party to circulate petition to secure the necessary 
signatures and the general election ballot access for a presidential candidate associated with their 
political party without first having an identified candidate. 

Section 4, page 6. l ines 6 through 8: The changes clarifies state law regarding the qual ification of the 
presidential electors for presidential candidates that have gained bal lot access through the circulation of 
petitions in that the electors must be qual ified North Dakota electors . 

We request your favorable consideration and a do pass recommendation. 
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CONSOLIDATED PRIMARY ELECTION BALLOT 
PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 12,  201 2 

r. 0 
.. . STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA · - CASS COUNTY c- Olivet lutheran Churdl 

, 
REPUBLICAN DEMOCRATIC-NPL CONSTITUTION 

ATTENTION! ATTENTION! ATTENTION! 
READ BEFORE VOTING READ BEFORE VOTING READ BEFORE VOTING 

You may vote for the candidates of only one You may vote for the candidates of onv, one You may vote for the candidates of only one 
political party at the primary election. If you political party at the primary election. I you pol�ical party at the primary election. If you 
cast votes in more than one party column cast votes in mere than one party column !Cast votes in mere than one party column · 
and vote for candidates of mere than one and vote for candidates of more than one and vote for candidates of more than one 
political party, your political party ballot will 
be rejected. 

political party, your political party ballot will 
be rejected. 

�litical perty, your political party ballot will rejected . 
To vote for the candidate of your choice, you To vote for the candidate of your choice, yOt To vote for the candidate of your choice, you 
must darken the oval ( • ) opposite the must darken the oval ( • ) opposite the must darken the oval ( • ) opposite the 
name of the candidate. name of the candidate. name of the candidate. 

To vote for a person whose name is not To vote for a person whose name is not To vote for a person whose name is not 
printed on the ballot, write that perscn's printed on the ballot, write that person's printed on the ballot, write that person's 
name in the blank space provided for that name in the blank space pro�ded for that name in the blank space pro�ded for that 
purpose and darken the oval ( • )opposite purpose and darken the oval ( • )opposite purpose and darken the oval ( • )opposite 
the space provided. the space pro�ded. the space provided . 

Un�ed States Senator United States Senator Un �ed States Senator 
Vote for no mort! than ONE name Vote for no more than ONE name Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Rick Berg C) Heidi He�kamp C) 

C) Duane Sand C) Representative In Congress 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Representative in Congress C) Vote for no more than ONE name 
Representative in Congress C) Pam Gufleson Governor and Lt Governor 
Vote for no more than ONE name Vote for no more than ONE set of names 

C) Brian P Kalk C) C) 

C) Kevin Cramer Governor and Lt. Governor State Auditor 
Vote for no more than ONE set of names Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) C) Ryan M Taylor & 
Ellen Chaffee 

C) 

Governor and Lt. Governor State Treasurer 
Vote for no more than ONE set of names Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Jack Dalrymple & 
Drew Wrigley 

C) C) 

State Auditor Insurance Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE name Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) C) Scot Kelsh C) 

State Aud�or C) Public Service Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE name Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Robert R (Bob) Peterson State Treasurer C) Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) C) Ross Mushik 

State Treasurer C) Vote for no more than ONE name 
C) Kelly Schmidt Insurance Commissioner 

Vote for no more than ONE name 
C) C) Tom Potter 

Insurance Commissioner C) Vote for no more than ONE name 
C) Adam Hamm Public Service Commissioner 

Vote for no more than ONE name 
C) C) Brad Crabtree 

Public Service Commissioner C) Vote for no more than ONE name 
C) Randy Christmann 

C) If �ou voted In this column, you may 
not vote In anolher pol�ical party's column • 

VOTE BOTH SIDES 

Att battots, other Official Ballot 
than those used CASS COUNTY 

to vote absentee, 1 1 01-00 

If you voted In this column
\ 

you may �Jto,;:;�����\:r ��':i �':J!:Y must first be June 12, 2012 
initialed by 

not vote In another polttica party's appropriate column. column. election officials 
In order to be 

Initials counted. 

"�- Olivet lutheran Church · - FarQO City/Far o PSD • PaQe 1 c- Typ:Ot Seq:OOOt Spi:01 J " 
-
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+ PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 1 2, 201 2  

""• I STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

LIBERTARIAN 

ATTENTION! 
READ BEFORE VOTING 

ou may vole for the candidates of only one polilical party al lhe primary election. H you 
ast votes in mere than one party column 
nd vote for candidates of mere than one political party, your political party ballot will be 

ejected. 

o vote for the candidate of your choiee, you f!lust darken the oval ( •  ) opposite the 
ame of the candidate. 

o vote for a person whose name is not 
rinled on the ballot, write lhal person's 
ame in the blank space provided for that 
urpose and darken the oval ( •  )opposite 

he space provided. 

Un�ed States Senator 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) 

v��;:,s�:�!�et�ncg���eas�e 
C) Eric Olson 

C) 

Governor and Lt. Governor 
Vote for no more than ONE set of names 

C) Roland Rlemers 

C) 

State Auditor 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) 

State Treasurer 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) 

Insurance Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) 

Publie Serviee Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Joshua Voytek 

C) 

H you voted In this column
\ 
you may 

not vote In another politlca party's 
column. 

"e• OlivetlLtlheran Church 

+ 

· - CASSCOONTY 

NO-PARTY BALLOT 
To vole for I he candidate of�ur choice, 
you must darken the oval ( ) opposite 
the name of the candidate. 

To vote for a person whose name is not 
printed on the ballot, write thai person's 
name in the blank space provided for !hal 
purpose and darken the oval I • ) 
opposite the space provided. 

Superintendent of Publie Instruction 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Max laird 

C) Kirsten Baesler 

C) Tracy Potter 

C) 

Justice of the Supreme Court 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Daniel J Crothers 

C) 

Judge of the District Court 
East Central Judielal District 

Judgeship No. 6 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Lisa Fair McEvers 

C) 

Judge of the District Court 
East Central Judielal District 

Judgeship Number 8 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) John C lrby 

C) 

County Commissioner 
District 1 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Rocky Schneider 

C) Chad M Peterson 

C) Frank Edwin Anderson 

C) Steven Sprague 

C) Billy Nustad 

C) 

County Commissioner 
District 3 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Ken Pawluk 

C) 

County Commissioner 
District S 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Marty Johnson 

C) Craig Hakanson 

C) Brandy L Pyle 

C) Mike Blce 

C) Mark Weston 

C) Mary Scherllng 

C) Earl Erdmann 

C) 

· - Faroo CilyiFa�o PSD 

-

, . Olivel lutheranChurdl 

Commissioner 
Fargo 

Vote for no more than TWO names 

C) Dave Piepkorn 

C) Anthony Gehrig 

C) Melissa Sobolik 

C) Mike Williams 

C) 

C) 

Municipal Judge 
Fargo 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

C) Steve Dawson 

C) 

Park Board Commissioner 
Fargo Park 

Vote for no more than TWO names 

C) Ryan Bergseth 

C) Joel Vettel 

C) Dan Dumas 

C) Barb Johnson 

C) 

C) 

School Board Member 
Fargo School District •f 

Vote for no more than FOUR names 

C) Jordan Franzen 

C) David Gibb Ill 

C) Brandi Malarkey 

C) Lillian Jones 

C) Marty Livingood 

C) John Strand 

C) Jim Johnson 

C) Paul Meyers 

C) J J Gordon 

C) James • Jim" Ebsen 

C) Robin Nelson 

C) 

C) 

C) 

C) 

VOTE BOTH SIDES 
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CONSOLIDATED PRIMARY ELECTION BALLOT 

PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 12, 2012 

r.�- 1 STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA •• I CASS COUNTY c -
Referendum Measure No. 4 

MEASURES BALLOT This referendum measure concerns Senate 
Bill 2370 as passed by the Legislative 
Assembly in the November 201 1 special 

This ballot contains four measures. 
sessKm (Session Laws, Chapter 580) . 
Senate Bill 2370 repealed section 15·1 0·46 

Constitutional Measure No. 1 was approved of the North Dakota Century Code, which 
by the 2011 Legislative Assembly . required the University of North Dakota to 
Constitutional Measures No. 2 and No. 3 use the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo. 
were placed on the ballot by initiative 
petition and Measure No. 4 by a referendum 
petition. These measures are being 
submitted to the voters of North Dakola for c::> YES • means you approve 
their approval or rejection. Vote by Senale Bill 2370, the effect of 
darkening the oval ( • ) opposite which would allow the University 
either the word "YES" or "NO" of North Dakota to discontinue 
following the explanation of each the Fighting Sioux nickname and 
measure. logo. 

Constttutlonal Measure No. 1 c::> NO · means you reject Senate 
(House Concurrent Resolution No. 3047, Bill 2370, and would require the 

2011 Session Laws, Chapter 519) University of North Dakota lo use 

This constitutional measure would amend 
the Fighting Sioux nickname and 

and reenact section 6 of Article IV of the 
logo. 

North Dakota Constitution. This measure 
would prohibit the appointment of a 
member of the Legislative Assembly to a 
state office for which the compensation 

City Measure No. 1 was increased in an amount greater than 
any general legislative increase provided to 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS ����:r�t����f�'i/�;" during the 
INCLUDING FLOOD PROTECTION • 
ONE-HALF PERCENT SALES, GROSS 
RECEIPTS AND USE TAX PROPOSAL 

c::> YES • means you approve the 
Shall Article 3 of the Home Rule Charter of measure as summarized above. 
lhe City of Fargo be amended to authorize 
collection ol a one-ha� of one percent 
(1/2%) municipal sales, gross receipts and c::> NO • means you reject the use tax to commence January 1 ,  2013 for a 

measure as summarized above. period of twenty (20) years to expire on 
December 31 ,  2032, and to be utilized by 
the City of Fargo for such infrastructure 
improvements including flood protection as 
the goveming body of the city may select, 
all as provided in the Notice of Proposed 

lnttiated Constitutional Home Rule Charter Amendment as Measure No. 2 published in IllE..EQRUM on the 9th day 
ol April, 2012 . 

This initiated constitutional measure would 
amend sections 1 , 4, 14, 15, and 1 6 of 
Article X of the North Dakota Constitution c::> YES • Means you approve the 
and repeal sections 5, 6, 7, 9, and 10 of measure as summarized above. 
that same article, eliminating property 
taxes, poll taxes, and acreage taxes, 
effective January 1 ,  2012. The measure 

NO • Means you reject the would require the Legislative Assembly to c::> 
replace lost revenue to cities, counties, measure as summarized above. 
townships, school districts, and other 
pol�ical subdivisions with allocations of 
various state-level taxes and other 
revenues, without restrictions on how these 
revenues may be spent by the political 
subdivisions. City Measure No. 2 

PUBLICATION OF CITY COMMISSION 

YES · means you approve the 
MINUTES c::> 

measure as summarized above. Shall the city publish the minutes of its 
goveming body in the official city 
newspaper lor the next lour years? c::> NO · means you reject the 

measure as summarized above. c::> YES • Means you approve the 
measure as summarized above. 

lnttiated Constitutional 
Measure No. 3 

This initiated constitutional measure would c::> NO · Means you reject the 
add a new section to Article I of the North measure as summarized above. 
Dakota Constitution stating, 'Government 
may not burden a person's or religious 
organization's religious liberty. The right to 
act or refuse to act in a manner motivated 
by a sincerely held religious belief may not 
be burdened unless the government School District Measure No. 1 
proves it has a compelling governmental PUBLICATION OF GOVERNING BODY 
interest in infringing the specific act or MINUTES 
refusal to act and has used the least 
restrictive means to further that interest. A Shall the school district publish the minutes 
burden includes indirect burdens such as of its governing body in the official 
withholding benefits, assessing pena�ies, newspaper of the school district? 
or an exclusion from programs or access to 
facilities.' 

c::> YES • means you approve the c::> YES · you approve the measure 
measure as stated above. as summarized above . 

Olivet Lutheran Church 

All ballots, other Official Ballot 

+ 
" , 

c::> NO · means you reject the c::> NO · you reject the measure as than those used CASS COUNTY 
measure as stated above. summarized above. to vote absentee, 1 1 01-00 

must first be June 12, 2012 
initialed by 
appropriate 

election officials 
in order to be 

Initials counted. 

/- Olivet l.utheran Church · - Fargo Ci1ylfargo PSD · Page 2 c- Typ:02 Seq:0001 Spi:01 "o 
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CONSOLI DATED PRIMARY ELECTION BALLOT 

PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 12, 2D12 

r.�--l STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA · - GRANO FORKS COUNTY c - BibleBapt1siChurch 

ATIENTION! READ BEFORE VOTING POLITICAL PARTY BALLOT In a Polnlcal Party Prtmary Election, you may only vote lor candidates ol �political party. T�s ballol contains lour pofl1ical IJ'Irties; one in each of the first two colliTlns and two In the third column. If you yote In more. than one political party's section, your Political Party BaUot ·will be rejected; 
however, all other votes on the No Partt and Measures Ballots will still be counted. 
To vote for the candidate ol your choice, you must darken the oval ( • ) next to the name of the candidate. ������ �;��,:�e name is not printed oo the ballot, you must darken the oval ( • ) next to the blank line provided and wrile that person's 

REPUBLICAN 

United States Senator 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Rick Berg 
C> Duane Sand 
c=:> 

c=:> Brian P Kalk 
Kevin Cramer 

Governor, imd Lt. Governor 
Vote for no more than ONE set of names 

c=:> Jack Dalrymple 
& Drew Wrigley 

State Audijor 
'Vote for no more than ONE name 

DEMOCRA TIC-NPL 

UnHed States Senator 
Vote for. no more than ONE name 

Heidi HeHkamp 

" Representative In Congress 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Pam Gulleson 
c=:> 

State Senator , 
District 18 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Connie Triplett 

c=:> 
c=:> Eliot Glassheim 
0 
c=:> 

Governor and Lt. Governor 
_Jotl! for �o more than ONE set of names 

Ryan M Taylor 
& Ellen Chaffee 

.State Audijor 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Scot Kelsh 
c=:> Robert R (Bob) Peterson !-2C::>::::::_..,.::===:==:===l 

Kelly Schmidt 

Insurance Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE n&me 

c=:> Adam Hamm 
c=:> 

Public Service'Cominlssloner 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Randy Christmann 
c=:> 

State Treasurer 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Ross Mushik 
c=:> 

Insurance Commissioner 
· Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Tom Potter 
c=:> 

Public Service Commissioner 
Vote for, no more than ONE name 

c=:> Brad Crabtree 
c=:> 

CONSTITUTION 

· Representative In Congress 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

c=:> Doug Sunde 
C> 

·.Governor and Lt: Governor 
Vote for no more than ONE set of names 

<:J Shelly Angen 
c=:> 

Slate A�dHor 
Vote for no more than ·ONE name 

c=:> Brei Anderson 
c=:> 

LIBERTARIAN 

Represlmtaiive In Congress 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

Eric Olson 

Governor and Lt. Governor 
Vote for no IJIOre than ONE set of names 

c=:> Roland Riemers 
c=:> 

Public Service Commissioner 
Vote for �o more than ONE name 

c=:> Joshua Voytek 
c=:> 

NOTICE: You may only vote in one political partY's section. 

Official Ballot 
GRAND FORKS COUNTY 

0006·01 
June 1 2, 2012 

Bible Baptist Church 

All ballots, other than those used 
to vote absentee, must first be 
initialed by appropriate election 
officials in order to be counted. 

GFS 

-

_____ Initials 
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+ PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 1 2, 2012 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

NO PARTY BALLOT 
To vote for the candidate of your choice, you ����a�����-oval ( • ) next to the name 

To vote for a persoo whose name is not 

r=� ��h� ��o
�ll�k

u 
n:S'r��� ��oval 

write that person's name on �e blank tine. 

Superintendent of Public Instruction 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

c:> Max Laird 
c:> Kirsten Baesler 
<=:> Tracy Potter 
C:> 

Justice of the Supreme Court 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

. .  

C:> Daniel J Crothers 

• • _l GRANO FORKS COUNTY 

School Board Member 
Grand Forks School District 
Vote for no more than FOUR names 

C:> Jay Smith 
C:> Vicki Ericson 
0 Eric Burln 
C:> Kelly Hogness 
C:> Roland Riemers 
c:> Margaret Brack 
CY Cory Solem 
0 Roger Pohlman 

Eric Lunn 

,. , BibleBaplisi Church 

MEASURES BALLOT 
This balot oontains lour measures. Constitutional 
Measure No. 1 was approved by the 2011 
l&fislalive Assembly. Constitutional Measures No. 
2 al1d No. 3 were placed on the balot by initiative 
petition and Measure No. 4 by a reterendum petition. 
These measures are being submitted 10 the voters 
of North Dakota for their approval or rejection. Vote 

��:s?o�������� � e!;��\?!�,���h 
measure. 

Conslitullonal Measure No.1 
(House Concurrent Resolution No. 3047, 2011 

Session laws, Chapter 519) 
This constitutional measure would amend and 
reenact seclion 6 of Atlide tv of the North Dakota 
Constitulion. This measure would prohibit the 
appointment of a member ol the legislative Assembly 
10 a state otfa lor which ile compensation was 
increased in an amount g1eater than any gene1af 
legislative inc1easo provided to lu!Hime state 
employees during the member's tem1 of office. 

YES · means you approve the measure 
as summarized above. ��'%:�t:!;� lhe measure as 

c::> <=) Initiated Constitutional Measure No.2 
This initiated consMutiooal measure would amend 

Nort�a�� g����a?�����\���trlct �<=>::::::_-==========1 :'koO: �';,;:�-�;��d.��������� r,•7 �;nh 
Judgeship No. 2 �nx��.

0
����e���

a
��;!�����:=

rty 

Vote for no more than ONE name Janual)' 1 ,  2012. The measure would requi'ethe 

C:> Karen K Braaten 
C:> 

County Commissioner •: 
Vote for no more lh&,.�,J'!"O ��mes _ . 

C:> John M Schmisek 
C:> Cory J Solem 
C:> Cynthia L Pic 
C:> 
C:> 

· Director; Garrison Diversion ': 

· Vote for �o0������NE name 
C:> Kenneth Vein 
C:> 

1!�- Bible Baptist Church 

+ 
·- GFS 

---

legislative Assembly 10 replace lost revenue to cities, 
counties, townships, school distri:ts, and other 
political subdivisions with allocations of various 
state-level taxes and other revenues. withou1 
restrictioos on how these revenues may be spent by 
the political subdivisions. 

C) :;��::;:��:.rove the measure 

<=:> !Om�=���ted the measure as 

Initiated Constitutional Measure No.3 
This initiated consthutionai measure would add a new 
sedion to Artide I of the North Dakota Coosmution 
slating, 'Goverrvnent may not borden a person's or 
religious organizatioo's religious �berty. The right to 
ael or refuse to ael in a manner motivated by a 
sincerely held religious belief may not be burdened 
unless lhe government proves it has a compelling 
governmental inlerest Jl infringing the spedfic act or 
refusal to act and has used the feast restriclive means 
to 1\lrther that inlerest. A burden indudes indirect 
burdens such as withholding benefits, assessing 
penalties, or an exclusion !rom programs or access to 
facilities.' 

YES • means you approve the measure 
as slated above. 
NO · means you reject the measure as 
slated above. 
Referendum Measure No. 4 

This referendum measure concerns Senate em 2370 
as passed by the legislative Assembly in the 
November 2011 special session (Session laws. 
Chapter 580). Senate Bill 2370 repealed section 1S.10.46 of the Norlh Dakota Century Code, which 
required the University of NOrlh Dakota to use the 
Fighting Sioux nickname and logo. 

YES • means you approve Senate Bill 
2370, the effect of which would allow the 
University of North Dakota to discontinue 
the Fightng Sioux nickname and fogo. 
NO • means you reject Senate Bi!l2370, 
and would require the University of Norlh 
Dakota to use lhe Fighting Sioux 
nickname and logo. 
School District Measure 1 

ShaM Grand Forks Public Schoof District No. 1. 
County of Grand Forks, Slate ot North Dakota, 
publish a record ol lhe  proceedings of the school 
board in the official newspaper of the school district 
Jor the succeeding two years? 

YES • Means you approve the measu1e 
as summarized above. 
NO • Means you reject the measure as 
summarized above. 

TYJl:01 Seq:0006 Spi:01 
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----
CONSOLI DATED PRIMARY ELECTION BALLOT 

PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 1 2, 2012 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA GRAND FORKS COUNTY Bible Baplisl Church 

NO PARTY BALLOT ATTENTION! READ BEFORE VOTING POLITICAL PARTY BALLOT 
In a Polttical Party Primary Election, you may only vole for candidates ollllll! po�ical party. Ttis 
ballot contains two political parties; one n each of the first two columns. If you vote In more than· To vote lor the candidate of your choice, you 
one political party's section, yoor Political Party Ballot will be rejected; however, aH other votes on ��������';:_oval ( • )  next to the name 
the No Party and Measures Balots \\ill still be coonted. f----...:..._----------------------1 To vote for a person whose name is not printed ��� �lo����������=� �� �;:e( = ) �� ���Jf:fa

�� candidate of your choice, you must darken the oval ( • ) next to the name of 

����
e �� ;,rnk��� ��:���;d���� �������s

e 
n����O�t�:�!����=� the oval ( • ) 

I REPUBLICAN 

.un�ed States Senator 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Rick Berg 
C> Duane Sand 
C> 

C> Brian P Kalk 
C> Kevin Cramer 
C> 

State Senator 
'District 18 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> David Waterman 
C> 

·State Representative · 
District 18 

Vote for no more than TWO names' 

C> Dane J Ferguson 
C> 
C> 

Governor and Lt. Governor 
Vote for no more than ONE set of names 

C> Jack Dalrymple 
& Drew Wrigley 

.State AudHor · 
; - Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Robert R (Bob) Peterson 
C> 

State Treasurer 
Vote for no more than ONE, name 

Kelly Schmidt 

' . ' Insurance Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

Adam Hamm 

Public Service Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Randy Christmann 
C> 

• 

Un�ed States Senator 
' Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Heidi He�kamp 
C> 

Representative ln .Congress 
Vote for no m,ore than ONE name 

C> Pam Gulleson 
C> 

State Senator 
District 18 

Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Connie Triplett 
C> 

State Representative 
l01strict'18 · 

Vote fo_r no more than TWO names 

C> Marie Strinden 
C> Eliot Glasshelm 
C> 
C> 

C> Ryan M Taylor 
& Ellen Chaffee 

State Auditor 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Scot Kelsh 
C> 

'State Treasurer 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Ross Mushlk 
C> 

Insurance Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE narrie 

C> Tom Potter 
C> 

public Service Commissioner 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Brad Crabtree 
C> 

NOTICE: You may only vote in one political party's section. 
Official Ballot 

GRAND FORKS COUNTY 
0006·01 

June 12, 2012 

Bible Baptist Church 

All ballots, other than those used 
to vote absentee, must first be 

initialed by appropriate election 
officials in  order to be counted. 

GFS 

person's name on the blank line. 

.Superintendent of Public Instruction 
Vote for no more than ·ONE name 

C> Max Laird 
C> Kirsten Baesler 
C> Tracy Potter 
C> 

Justice of the Supreme Court 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Daniel J Crothers 
C> 

Ju.dge of the District Court 
Northeast Central Judicial District 

Judgeship No. 2 
Vote for no more than ONE name 

C> Karen K Braaten 
C> 

County Commissioner · 
Vote for no

. 
more than TWO names 

C> John M Schmisek 
C> Cory J Solem 
C> Cynthia L Pic 
C> 

C> 

Director, Garrison Diversion 
. 

Vote for �o0���:rh�cJNe name 
C> Kenneth Vein 
C> 

_____ Initials 

Typ:Ol Seq:0006 Sp1:01 

OE .. cbon $y5t•ms & So�rt. ln.e. 1981. 2002 
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+ PRIMARY ELECTION, JUNE 1 2, 2012 

School Board Member 
Grand Forks School District 

Vote for no more than FOUR names 

c:::> Jay Smith 
c:::> Vicki Ericson 
c:::> Eric Burin 
c:::> Kelly Hogness 
c:::> Roland Riemers 
c:::> Margaret Brack 
�' Cory Solem 
c:::> Roger Pohlman 
c:::> Eric Lunn 
c:::> 
c:::> 
c:::> 
c:::> 

This balol contains tour measures. Const�utional 
Measure No. 1 was approved by the 2011 
Legislalive Assembly. Constitutional Measures No. 
2 and No. 3 were placed on the ballot by initiative 
pet�ion and Measure No.4 by a reterendt.m petition. 
Tllese measures are being submitted kl the voters 
ol North Dakota tor Vleir approval or rejection. Vote 

��:.rk:r�i�ll��v!�� � e�;:��:�t:a� 
measure. 

ConstituUonal Measure No. 1 
(House Concurrent Resolution No. 3047, 2011 

Session Laws, Chapter 519) 
This constitulional moasUfe would amend and 
reenact section 6 of Ar1ide IV ol the Noc1h Dakota 
Consbtutioo. This measure would prohibit the 
appointment of a member of the Legislative Assembly 
to a state offiCe lor which !he compensatron was 
increased in an amount grealer than any general 
legiSlative increase provided lo lull-lime stale 
employees during the membe(S lerm of office. 

YES · means you approve the measure 
as summarized above. 

NO • rated the measure as 

Initiated Constitutional Measure No. 2 

This l'litiated consti1ulional measure would ameod 
sections 1, 4, 14, 15, and 16 ol Al1icle X of the North 
Dakota Constitution and repeal sections 5. 6, 7, 9, 
and 10 of that same a11icle, eHminating property 
taxes, poll laKes, and acreage taKes, eflecltve 
January 1 ,  2012. The measure would J&quire the 
legislative Assembly to reptace lost revenue to cities, 
counties, townships, school districts, and other 
poli1ical subdivisions with allocations ol various state·level taxes and other revenues, without 
restrictions on how these revenues may be spenl by 
lhe poli1icatsutxiYisions. 

YES • means you approve the measure 
as summarized above. 
NO • the measure as 

Initiated Constitutional Measure No. 3 
This ini1iated constllulional measure would add a new 
sedion to Article I of the North Dakota Coostitution 
stating, 'Goverrtnent may not borden a person's or 
religious organization's religious �berty. The right to 
act or refuse to act 1'1 a manner motivated by a 
sincemly held religious belief may no1 be burdened 
unless the government proves � has a compeling 
governmental interest in infringing the specific act or 
refusatto act and has used the least restrictive means 
1o further that interest. A burden llcludes indirect 
burdeos such as withhokling benefits, assessing 
penalties, or an exclusion from programs or access to 
ladfities.' 

YES • means you approve the measure 
as stated above. 
NO • means you rejed the measure as 
stated above. 

Referendum Measure No.4 
This referendum measure concerns Senate 8�12370 
as passed by the l&9sia!Ne Assembly in the 
November 2011 special session (Session laws, 
Chapter 580). Senate em 2370 repealed section 
15-10.46 of the Nol1h Dakota Century Code. which 
required lhe University of North Dakota to use the 
Fighling SiooKnickname andlogo. 

YES • means you approve Senate Bill 
2370, the eHect of which would allow the 
Univers� of North Oakola to discontinue 
the Fighting SIOUX nickname and logo. 

NO 

School District Measure 1 

Shall Grand FoOls Pub6c School District No. 1 ,  
County of Grand Forks, Slate of North Dakota, 
publish a record of !he proceedings of the school 
board in lhe official newspaper ol lhe school district 
lor the succeeding two years? 

YES · Means you approve the measure 
as summarized above. 
NO • reject lhe measure as 
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1 3 . 8257.030 1 0 

S ixty-third 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

I ntroduced by 

Senators Dever, Schaible 

SECON D ENGROSSMENT 

REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2369 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 1 6. 1 -03 of the North Dakota 

2 Century Code. relating to political party organization: 1Q. amend and reenact sections 

3 16. 1 -03-01 . 1 6. 1 -03-02. 16. 1 -03-03. 16. 1 -03-05. 1 6 . 1 -03-07. 1 6 . 1 -03-08. 16. 1 -03- 1 1 .  

4 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 4 . 1 6 . 1 -03-1 7. 1 6 . 1 -04-0 1 .  1 6 . 1 -06-04 . 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -22 . 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -30, and  1 6 . 1 -1 2-02 of 

5 the N orth Dakota Century Code,  relating to pol it ical party organization. voting precincts. and 

6 primary election ballot access and eligibility for minor political parties; and  to repeal sections 

7 1 6.1 -03-1 2  a nd 1 6.1 -03- 1 9  of the North Dakota Century Code. relat ing to politica l party 

8 Q.Iggn ization . 

9 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

' "' � �· 

1 0 · ·S ECTION 1 .  A new �ection to ch�pter 1 ?··1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code is· created 

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  1 chapter 16-. 1 -1 1, unless the organizatio�: 
1 6  I 1 .  Organ ized according 'to all r�guire�ents of this chapter: 

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

- - . ...- - ,_ . . . ' 

2.. Had printed on the ballot.pt the last preceding g�neral elecflon the names of a set o�. 

vice president. a candidate for governor. a candidate for attorney general. or a 
candidate for st:cretsJry of state and those candidates for presidential electors. 

governor, attorney generaL or secretary of state received at least five percent of the 

total vote cast for presidential electors. the office of governor. attorney general. or 

secretary of state within this state at that election and organized according to all 

reqwrements ot th1s chapter: or 

Page No. 1 1 3.8257.030 1 0 



Sixty-third 
Legislative Assembly 

1 _ _J........:...:. Filed a petition with the secretary of state signed � number of electors requirru:L 

2 under section 16 .. 1 �11 �30 to qualify to endorse candidates or to have candidates 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

special election ballot. . 

SECTION. 2. AMENDMENT • . Section 1 6. 1 -03-01 0f the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows: · · 

·1 6�1 -03...()1 .  Precinct caucus to elect precinct committe.emen - Time and manner of 

8 holding - Caucus call - Notice. 
i 

9 1 .  Each legislative distrlcl.party shal l  organize in .conformat:lce with the state legislative 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

.'• 
•' 

On or before May fifteenth following the last prec�ding general e l�ction, a party 
' 

---=-:.- ·' ' .. 
caucus must be held by ·every election. 

precinct' at a site within  or �easonably clos� to ' .. • 't ' • < * • •. . . � •' •.• ' ' 
' ' 

the precinct in the manner provided in sections 1 6. 1 -03-01 tbrough j 6 . 1 -03:..03. 

1 5  .2-:-3. The legislative district chairman of.each Ji)arty shall issue the callset the date and time 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

·, 

executive committee may issue the call for the precinct caucus. The call .m ust contain � . . 

th.e fol lowing: 

a. 

b: 

d. 

e. 

Name of pa,rty. 

Date of caucus.  

Place of caucus. 

Hours of caU(j:CJS. 

A statement ofthe business to be cohducted, including ttie electiorl' of preCinct ' 

The . name of the district chairman or; if there js not a district cli1..9lrllli!.Oi4llit · 

member of the ·state party executive committee issu'ing the call. · 

Page No. 2 1 3.8257.0301 0  



Sixty-third 
Legislative Assembly 

.. 
1 · ,  ' dr�qlation within each ;precinct in the districl. The: notices must cpntain that infor"1alion 

2 set forth in subsection �.3. The district chairman may include the i nformation required 

3 . 
4 publishing purposes.· 

· 

5 S ECTION a.. AME.NDMENT. S.e.ction 1 6. 1 -03-02 .of the North Dakota Century Code is · 
. ..,_ ' ' . � ' . 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 , 1 6.1 .,03..02 .. Who rn,ay panicip�te i n  and vote .at caucus .. ' 
8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

1 6. 1 -01 -,04 m·ay
.
v.ote'or be eleCted as committeemen � r  officer-s

:
·at the precinct · 

· caucus. 

-
gen;ral electi�n or inte�d to �o·ete o� affiflate with the party and vote 

.
with the party at 

I ' . 
the next gbneral electron may vote at the precinpt caucu's. 

In case the right of a persof'tan individual to part.icipate at the caucus is challenged, �he 

. · question of tne persofi·sindi�iduai\s right to participate m��t be decided 'b� � vote �t 
. 

' � � 

No personAn:individua! may not vote or participate at mo�e thafl o�e precinct caucus 

in :any one year. 

22 amend�d and reenacted as follows: 

23 Political parties entitled to elect 

24 comrnitt��en. 

25 '1. .  Each. precinct caucus shall elect a chairman, .commitlee�en as provided in subse.etlon 
26 a, and other o#icers as may be provided by party rules. The caucus may also dis�ss 
27 party policies, candidates, and any other business as prescribed by party rules. 

2. No6 political organization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at its precinct 

29 caucus unlessif: 
30 

31  

a.  The organization .nominated and had printed on the ballot at the last preceding 

general election the names of a set of presidential electors pledged to the 
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election of the party's ca1:1didates for president and vice. president or a car:ldidate 
'· ' '· 

for governor, attorney general ,  or secretary 
.of state; and 

The candidates pre:>yided for: in subdivision a received .at least five percent of the 
' . ' , ' . ;.. \ I ! ' . 

total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, attorney general ,  or . . 

. secretary of state· within this state at that ·election. ' ' . ·, ' . . .  
&-2.,_ . Each political party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise q

'
ual ifying ur:tder 

subsection �1. is entitled to elect Ol"!e pre:cinct com·mitteeman for e�ch twoJ1undr:ed 
I O{j 

fifty votes, or majority of a fraction thereof,· cast for :the party's presid�ntial electors , 

governor, attorney general ,  e:>r,secnetary of state in -tt:le precinct in. the .last general' 
. . 

· election. Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct . committeeman for each party 

· which qualifies under subsection Q-1. Each pr:ednqt cornmitteemaR 'must be .an elector: 

of the precinct in which the committeeman resides and must be elected for a two-year "' ' . • 'I ' ' . . 
term. 

If a P-Ol itical organization desires to organize under this chapter but has not qualified as 

each precinct in the district. 

S ECTION S. AMENDMENT. Sectior.� 1 6  .. 1 -0.3-0S . o'f the 
.
North Dako�a Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03..05. Vacancies in office of precinct committeeman .; Fil l ing. 

':- vacancy in  �he offic
·
e of precinc:t committeem�n, which occurs after the organization of the 

d istrict co
.
mmittee, �;naY be filled by ap�.ointme�t from tl:le pr�cinct by the

' 
district 

'
executive 

committee of the party. Notice of the appointmemt must be given to the county auditor. 
. � S ECTION 6. AM

.
EN�MENT. Section 1 6. 1  �03-07 of the North Dakota Century Code i; 

amended and reenacted as follows: · 

� 1' ' ' ·  t 
· 1 6.1 ::.03..07. Meeting of district committee - Organization. 

1 .  Ill every odd-numbered year, the district committee.of each JDarty shal l  meet within 
" ' ' ' . t v 

., . '., ' 

fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in. section 1 6. 1 -03-0 1 . The day, 
. . 

· hour, a1:1d site must be set by the existing district committee chai rman . .::J=AeAroL 
\ 't ' ' ' \ ' ' . � 

incumbent members of the legislative assembly, the precinct committeemen of a party, 

selected as pr:ov.iqed by. t�is c��pt�r, .�.an.Q any other personsin�i:vidual
· 
provided for 

' b • ·: 
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4, 

the district committe.e of tne pa"y. The·distri�t committee of a pa·rty must be organized 
. · .··• . -

, · .  -·· 
' 

to coincide with the ge�-graphical boundary· l ines of state le_gislative districts. Each 

member .of any committee pr9vided for jn this c.haP.ter mt:��t be a gualified elector� 
,· • • ' • ' : 0 ' ' M 

eofflmittee for tt:le balance of tt:le terA'l,)\'t'l.iehever oeeurs_ firstvacancy may be fi l led· as . . . ' . ' 

provided by fhe d istrict party bylaws. 

The byla;ws of the ' Stat� committee or state party may not inc lude any requirement 

providing directives cir prQcedures fQr the method Qf the organization Qf dfstrict 
committ�es n or m�ti the §t?Jte committee QC state party take SlQy action or impQse any._ 
requirement regardmg d istrict party orgamzation whtch is not consistent with this 

ph;apter, 
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1 S.ECJION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
' ' 

2 amenqed and ree·nact�d as :follows: 

3 1 6.1 -()3-08. State committee - Membe·rship. 
' . ,· i.--·. ' ' 't ' ·� ' ·tfi' ' 

I\ .. •., ' 
4 The state comm'ittee of each pC;lrtY consists of the chair

.
man of each of tt:le district 

5 

6 committee. 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

'l' 

SEC:riON 8. AMEND'MENT. Section 1 6, 1.-03-.1 1  of the North Dakota Century Code )s. · 
I · , ' , j � ' 1, •· ' ' J, J r \ ' I "' ' 

arn,ended and reenacted as follows: · 
· " 

1 6  committee after their election. Within thirty days following the state committee's organization,  

1 7  the newly elect�d chairman shall n�tify .the: ·Secr:etary Of St"t� of the mamas Of the party.:officers 

1 8  selected .  These officers, with any other persons provided for by the party's bylaws and as the 
1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 amended and reenacted as follows.: 
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·conv�ntion. · 

· offices of pr�sidential electors. · · 

Elect the required number of delegates and alternates to the national party 

1 6  secretary of the convention· shall issue certificates of endorsement as. provJded in . 
\ •' : ' 1 • ' •• • 

. 
,. \: ' ;; - ��- • ' ' • . � 

1 7  section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -06 or certificates of election: :-rlhe. names of the caneHdatesmtalifled . � . 

1 8  electors nominated for presidential electors 'Nith the surname of the presidential 
·- . ' . . ' . ' ' tl 

1 9  candidate the party wishes t0 place on the gen·eral election bal lot must be certified by 

20 the chairman and secretary of the convention to the secretary of state by four p:m�. on 

2 1  the siXtieth day
. 
bef�re the gene�al election to be placed upon th� gene.ral 

'
election · · 

22 · ballot as provided in section 1 6. 1 -06-07. 1 .  :l', • •  
23 S ECTION 1' 0. AMI;NDI\IIENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-1 7 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

24 amended and reenacted as foiiQws: 

25 1 6� 1 -03-1 '7. Political party reorganization after appertienme.ntredistrictin;g. 
26 If apportionrrlDntredistrictlng -of the legislative assembly becomes effective after the 

27 organization -of political parties as provided in this chapter and before the primary or the general 

28 election ,  the secretary of state shall establish a timetable for the reorganization of1he parties as 
29 rapidly as possible before the ensuing election. 'Nhen the timetable is established, the secretary 

...... 
30 of state shall notify all the county auditors of the timetable and of the details of the legislative 
3 1  apportionment as it affects each county. The secretary of state or county auditor may not 
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•. I 

A description and a map of the new legislative districts and the precincts as 

1 1  =R=te political parties, in the newly established precincts and districts, shall tAen-proceed to 

1 2  

1 3  timetable established by the secretary of stateto ass'u[e compliance with primary election fi l ing 

1 4  deadl ines.  

1 5  S ECTION ·1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6>. 1 .,04-01 of the. North Dakot� Centt:Jry Code is � .._ 'I 

1 6  amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 7  1 6.1 -04.;c)1 . Precincts - Duties and resp�nsibil ities of the board of county · · 

1 8  commissioners or the ·governing body of the city. 

1 9  _1 ._The board of county commissioners of each county: 

20 4:-_---:.J!,. Shall divide the county into precincts and establish the precinct boundaries, 

2 1  

22 

23  

24 

25  

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

. .  except
' 
that' within the boundaries of any incorporated city, the gqverning body of ' . . . 

the city shall d ivide the city into precincts arid establish their boundaries pursuant 

to title 40. Any rium.ber of townships or parts of townships may be joinep into a 
\, "j . ' ' . t\ ' ' \l;J· 

single precinct provided that no pre·cinet may encompass more than one 

, legislative �i.strict. 

May.alter the number and size of precincts within the county by combining or 
' \ � O , •; M. O ' \ .l o O 

dividing precincts. However, the governing 
·
body 0f any incorporated city has the 

authority to alter th� number and size of precincts located within its boundaries. 

The �oard of county commissioners may relinquislil the juri_sdiction prqvided 
' ' . ' if  ,, ' '  . • ·• 

u nder subsection 1subdivislon a,over all or a�y portion of a ·township or 

tow�ships under its juri�dictior.� to a city for th� purpose of e�tablishing <:,! voting 
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precinct 
.
if a majority of the governing body of the city agrees to assume such

. 

. . ' r: .,. ' '� •t ,·. • ' • • .1" • • • , ,;,; o,;' ' ' \, • 

jurisdiction. The governing body of a ci�y, .bY majority vote, may return jurisdiction 

gra�ted ner:ein to the county and the county
: 
sh.all acc�pt that Jurisdrcti,�h. . ) . ' . ' ' .. . ' 

7 amended and reenacted as follows: 

8 1 6.1 -06-04. Form and qual ity of ballots generally. 

9 All official bal lots prepared under this title must : 

1 0 1 .  Be printed on uniform qual ity and color of paper in an ink color su itable to make the 

1 1  

1 2  

ballot clearly legible and compatible with the electronic voti ng  system requ i rements 

necessary to tabulate the votes. 

1 3  2 .  Be of  sufficient length to  contain  the names of  a l l  candidates to be voted for at  that 

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

election. 

3. Have the language "Vote for no more than ____ name (or names)" placed 

immediately under the name of each office. 

1 7  4 .  Have printed thereon "To vote for the candidate of  your  choice, you m ust darken the 

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

oval oppositenext to the name of tflethat candidate. To vote for a person whose name 

is not printed on the ballot, you must darken the oval next to the blank l ine provided 

and write that person's name ffion the blank space provided for that purpose and 

darl(en the oval opposite the space prm1idedline." 

22 5.  Leave sufficient space for each office to write a name, or n ames,  as the case may be, 

23 in l ieu of those printed on the bal lot .  

24 6 .  Immediately preceding and on the same l ine as the name of  each cand idate m ust be 

25 

26 

printed an oval in which the voter is to mark the voter's choice by darkening the oval 

next to the name of the candidate chosen. 

27 7 .  Provide twe text boxes ffiat the bottom right hand corner of the first side of the bal lot .  

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

The fifst text box at the bottom of the first column i s  to conta i n  the words "All ballots, 
other than those used to vote absentee, must first be initialed by appropriate election 
officials in order to be countedOfficial Bal lot. the name of the county, the name or 

number of the precinct. and the date of the election . "  The second text box is to  contain 
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the words "Official BallotAII ballots. other than those used to vote absentee. must first 

be in it ialed by appropriate election officials in order to be counted", the name of the 

county, the name or number of the precinct, the date of the election, and. The text box 

at the bottom of the third column is to conta in the word "init ials" preceding preceded by 

a blank l ine where the judge or inspector shal l in it ial the ballot. 

All ballots, other than 
those used to vote absentee, 
must first be initialed by 
appropriate election officials 
in order to be counted 

Official Ballot 

County 
Precinct 

(Date of the Election) 

Initials 
1 1  Any precinct that uses an electronic counting machine may require the use of a particu lar 

1 2  writing instrument to mark the ballot so the ballots may be properly counted. 

1 3  The ballot must conta in the names of al l candidates , the contents of measures as required 

1 4  by section 1 6 . 1 -06-09, and the statements of questions to be submitted to the voters. The ballot 

1 5  must be arranged in  a manner and form approximating as far as possible the requirements of 

1 6  this section. 

1 7  SECTION 1 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 - 1 1 -22 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 8  amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 9  1 6.1 -1 1 -22. Primary election ballot - Form - Voters to vote for candidates of only one 

20 political party. 

2 1  At the primary election there may be only one ballot for a l l  parties o r  principles. The ballot 

22 must be in  the fol lowing form : 

23 1 .  The bal lot must be entitled the "consolidated primary election ballot". 

24 2. Each pol it ical party or principle having candidates at the primary election must have a 

25 separate columnsection on the ballot. 

26 3. At the head of each column must be printed the name of the political party or principle 

27 which it represents. 

28 4.  In each column belowSpanning the columns conta in ing the political party bal lot and 

29 

30 

3 1  

prior to the party names or principle t#letitles must be printed : "¥ettln  a Pol itical Party 

Primary Election, you may only vote for the candidates of eruy one political party at--tfte­

primary election. This ballot contains the number of pol itical parties or principles and a 
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description of where the political parties or principles are to be found in  the columns 

below. If you cast votesvote in more than one party column and vote for candidates of 

more than one political partypolitical party's section , your political party ballotPolitical 

Party Ballot wi l l  be rejected: however, al l  votes on the No Party and Measure Ballots 

5 wi l l  sti l l  be counted . "  

6 5.  Immediately below the warning against voting for candidates of more than one pol itical 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

party must be printed : "To vote for the candidate of your choice, you must darken the 

oval opposite next to the name of tftethat candidate. To vote for a person whose name 

is not printed on the ballot, you must darken the oval next to the blank l ine provided 

and write that person's name ffion the blank space provided for that purpose and 
darken the oval opposite the space providedline." 

1 2  6. The offices specified i n  section 1 6. 1 -1 1 -26 must be arranged in  each columnsection 

1 3  

1 4  

with the name of each office i n  the center of each pol itical party columnsection at the 

head of the names of all the aspirants for the office. 

1 5  7 .  Immediately under the name of each office must be printed : "Vote for no more than 

1 6  _____ name (or names) . "  

1 7  8 .  Immediately preceding and on the same l ine as the name of each aspirant must be 

1 8  

1 9  

printed an oval in which the voter is to mark the voter's choice by darkening the oval 

next to the name of the candidate chosen. 

20 9. The pol itical party or principle which cast the largest vote for g overnor  at the most 

2 1  recent primary election at which the office of governor was voted upon must have the 

22 left hand columnfirst sect ion, and the pol itical party or principle casting the next largest 

23 vote must have the next columnsecond section, and so on .  

24 The judges and the inspector of elections shall inform each elector at the primary, before vot ing, 

25 that if the voter votes for candidates of more than one political party the voter's pol itical party 

26 ballot wi l l  be rejected. 

27 SECTION 1 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -30 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

28 amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 1 6. 1 -1 1 -30. Separate eolumnsection on primary election ballot requ i red for each 

2 political party. 

3 Any party that had printed on the ballot at the last preceding presidential election the names 

4 of a set of presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's cand idates for president 

5 and v ice president or a candidate for governor and those candidates for presidential electors or 

6 governor received at least five percent of the total vote cast for presidential  electors or the office 

7 of governor with in th is state at that election; any party that had printed on the bal lot at the last 

8 preceding nonpresidential election a candidate for attorney general or secretary of state, and 

9 the cand idate received at least five percent of the total vote cast for the office the candidate was 

1 0  seeking at the election ; or any party that has organized accord ing to all the requ i rements of 

1 1  chapter 1 6. 1 -03 must be provided with a separate columnsection on primary election ballots. 

1 2  Any other pol itical organization is entitled to endorse candidates or have candidates petit ion 

1 3  to be included on the primary bal lot in a consolidated column or on a specialseparate section of 

1 4  the consolidated primary election bal lot, if a petition s igned by at least seven thousand qual ified 

1 5  electors of this state is filed with the secretary of state before four p.m. of the sixtieth day before 

1 6  a primary or special election, naming the political organization,  stating the platform principles of 

1 7  the party, and requesting the names of its candidates to be included on the state's primary bal lot 

1 8  in a consolidated column. lfseparate section. Political organizations that are granted ballot 

1 9  access u nder this section are allowed ballot access only for those offices for which the 

20 organ ization has identified candidates. Regardless of the means by which the petition is mailed, 

2 1  ttdelivered, the original  must be in the possession of the secretary of state before four p .m. on 

22 the s ixtieth day prior to a primary or special election. Candidates of that party are entitled to the 

23 same r ights and  privi leges as  those of  other parties. Petitions circulated accord ing to this 

24 section must be fi led with the secretary of state in accordance with section 1 -0 1 -50. 

25 A pol itica l organization that had printed on  the ballot a t  the last preceding presidential 

26 election the names of a set of presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's 

27 candidates for president and vice president or a candidate for governor and those candidates 

28 for presidential electors or  governor received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 

29 presidential electors or the office of governor within this state at that election, and any pol itical 

30 organization that has printed on the ballot at the last preceding nonpresidential election a 

3 1  candidate for attorney general or secretary of state, and the candidate received at least five 
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1 percent of the total vote cast for the office the candidate was seeking at the election are entitled 

2 to organize according to the requirements of chapter 1 6 . 1 -03. 

3 SECTION 1 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -1 2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

4 amended and reenacted as follows: 

5 1 6.1 -1 2-02. Certificates of nomination by petition - Form and contents. 

6 Certificates of nomination for nominees for an office to be fi lled at a general or special 

7 elect ion,  except for an office appearing on the no-party bal lot, may be made as provided by th is 

8 sect ion.  Except for nominees for president of the United States, names of nominees so 

9 nominated must appear on the bal lot as independent nominations. The names of nominees for 

1 0  president of the United States may appear on the ballot with a designation, not to exceed five 

1 1  words ,  that names the organization or pol itical party to which the presidential candidate 

1 2  affi l iates. The designation may not falsely i ndicate an affi l iation with o r  the support of any 

1 3  political party organized in accordance with this title or i nclude any s ubstantive word or phrase 

1 4  that is profane or that is already included in or resembles the name of a pol itical party entitled to 

1 5  a separate column under section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -30. Except for candidates for the office of president of 

1 6  the Un ited States, each certificate of nomination by petition must meet the specifications for 

1 7  nominating petitions set forth in  section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 - 1 6. A pol itical party or  organ ization desir ing to 

1 8  submit to the secretary of state the name of a qual ified candidate for the office of the president 

1 9  of the United States may begin gathering the signatures for the certificate of nomination on the 

20 first day of  January of  a presidential election year and shall submit the petition to the secretary 

2 1  of state before four p .m.  o n  the sixtieth day before the general election .  The signatures o n  the 

22 petit ion must be in the following number: 

23 1 .  Except as provided in subsection 3, if the nomination is for an  office to be fi l led by the 

24 

25 

qual ified electors of the entire state, there must be no fewer than one thousand 

s ignatures . 

26 2. If the nomination is for an office to be fi l led by the qual ified electors of a d istrict less 

27 

28 

29 

than the entire state, the number of s ignatures must be at least two percent of the 

res ident population of the d istrict as determined by the most recent federal decenn ia l  

census, but in  no case may more than three hundred signatures be requ i red . 

30 3 .  If the nomination is for the office of president, there must be no fewer than four  

3 1  thousand signatures and the petition must conta in the names of the presidential and 
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1 vice presidentia l  candidates along with the names of the North Dakota presidential 

2 electors selected from the qualified electors of North Dakota. 

3 4. If the petition is  for the office of governor or lieutenant governor, i t  must contain the 

4 

5 

6 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Kasper 

April 2, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO. 2369 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "to" insert "create and enact a new section to chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to political party organization ; to" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" insert " 16 . 1 -03-0 1 , 1 6. 1 -03-02, 1 6 . 1 -03-03, 1 6 . 1 -03-05, 
1 6. 1 -03-07, 1 6. 1 -03-08, 1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 ,  1 6 . 1 -03-1 4, 1 6. 1 -03- 1 7 ,  1 6 . 1 -04-01 , "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  after "to" insert "pol itical party organization ,  voting precin cts , and" 

Page 1 , l ine 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, replace "el igibi l ity for minor political parties" with " ;  and to repeal sections 
1 6. 1 -0 3- 1 2  and 1 6 . 1 -03-1 9 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to pol itical party 
organization" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 1 6 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Orga nizations allowed to nominate statewide and legislative candidates. 

A pol it ical organization may not endorse candidates or h ave candidates petition 
for president. vice president. Congress, statewide office, or legis lative office as set forth 
in chapter 1 6 . 1 -1 1 , un less the organization: 

1.,. Organized according to al l  requirements of this chapter; 

2 .  Had printed on the ballot at the last preceding general election the names 
of a set of presidential electors pledged to the elect ion of the party's 
candidate for president and vice president. a candidate for governor. a 
candidate for attorney general, or a candidate for secretary of state and 
those candidates for presidential electors, governor, attorney generaL or 
secretary of state received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 
presidential electors. the office of governor, attorney general, or secretary 
of state with in this state at that election and organized accord ing to al l 
requirements of this chapter; or 

� Fi led a petition with the secretary of state signed by the number of electors 
required under section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -30 to qualify to endo rse candidates or to 
have candidates petition to be included on the primary election ballot in a 
consol idated column or  on a specia l  election bal lot. 

SECTION 2. AM ENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 
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1 6 . 1 -03-01 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and 
manner of holding - Caucus call - Notice. 

1 .  Each legislative d istrict party shal l organize i n  conformance with the state 
legis lative d istrict boundaries as established by the legislative assembly 
and as set forth under chapter 54-03. 

b On or before May fifteenth following the last preceding general election, a 
party caucus must be held by every elect ion precinct at a site with in or 
reasonably close to the precinct in the manner provided in sections 
1 6 . 1 -03-01 through 1 6 . 1 -03-03. 

2-:-3. The legislative district chairman of each party shal l  issue the callset the 
date and time for the precinct caucus at least twenty days before the time 
set for holding the caucus and the. If there is not a d istrict cha irman in a 
legislative d istrict, the state party executive committee may issue the call 
for the precinct caucus. The call must contai n  the fol lowing:  

a .  Name of party. 

b. Precinctlegislative district and precinct n umber or name. 

c.  Date of caucus. 

d .  Place of  caucus. 

e .  Hours of  caucus . 

f. A statement of the business to be conducted, includ ing the election of 
precinct committeemen and such other personsindividuals as may be 
provided by state law and d istrict party fl::Hesbylaws. 

g .  The name of the district chairman or, if there is not a d istrict chairman, 
the member of the state party executive committee issu ing the cal l .  

&4. The d istrict chairman or, if there is not a d istrict chairman, the state party 
executive committee shall provide ten days' publ ished notice in the official 
newspaper in circulation within each precinct in  the district. The notices 
m ust contain that information set forth in subsection ��. The district 
chairman may include the information required by this sect ion for al l  
precincts in  the d istrict may be included i n  one notice for publ ishing 
purposes. 

SECTIO N  3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-02. Who may participate in and vote at caucus. 

1 .  Only those persons individuals who are q ua lified electors pursuant tounder 
section 1 6. 1 -0 1 -04 may vote or be elected as committeemen or officers at 
the precinct caucus. 

2. Only those personsindividuals who either voted or affi l iated with the party 
at the last general election or intend to vote or affi l iate with the party and 
vote with the party at the next general election may vote at the precinct 
caucus. 
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3. In  case the right of a personan individual to participate at the caucus is 
challenged , the question of the person'sindividual 's right to participate must 
be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. A personAn individual  so 
challenged may not vote on the question of the person'sindividual's right to 
participate in the caucus, and a two-thirds vote of the whole caucus is 
required to exclude a personan individual from participation.  

4. No personAn individual may not vote or participate at more than one 
precinct caucus in any one year. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6.1 -03-03. Caucus business and elections Political parties entitled to 
elect committeemen. 

1 .  Each precinct caucus shall elect a chairman, committeemen as provided in 
subsection 3, and other officers as may be provided by party rules. The 
caucus may also discuss party policies, candidates, and any other 
business as prescribed by party rules. 

&. Ne� pol itical organization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at its 
precinct caucus unlessjf: 
a .  The organization nominated and had printed on the bal lot at  the last 

preceding general election the names of a set of presidentia l  electors 
pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and vice 
president or a candidate for governor, attorney general, or secretary of 
state; and 

b. The candidates provided for in subdivision a received at least five 
percent of the total vote cast for presidentia l  electors or for governor, 
attorney genera l ,  or secretary of state with in  this state at that election . 

&2. Each pol itical party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise 
qual ifyi ng under subsection �1. is entitled to elect one precinct 
committeeman for each two hundred fifty votes, or m ajority of a fraction 
thereof, cast for the party's presidential electors, governor, attorney 
general, or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general election.  
Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct committeeman for each 
party which qual ifies under subsection �1. Each precinct com mitteeman 
must be an elector of the precinct in which the committeeman resides and 
must be elected for a two-year term . 

� If a pol itical organization desires to organize under th is chapter but has not 
qualified as provided in subsection 1. the organizat ion may elect one 
precinct committeeman for each precinct in the d istrict .  

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows : 

1 6.1 -03-05. Vacancies in  office of preci nct committeeman - F i l l ing .  

A vacancy in the office of  precinct committeeman, which occurs after the 
organ ization of the d istrict committee, ffitl-Stmay be fi l led by appointment from the 
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precinct by the district executive committee of the party. Notiae of the appointment 

must be given to the aounty auditor. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-07. Meeting of district committee - Organization. 

1 .  In  every odd-numbered year, the district committee of each party shal l 
meet within fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for i n  section 

1 6 . 1 -03-0 1 . The day, hour, and site must be set by the existing district 
committee chairman . TheAny incumbent members of the legislative 
assembly, the precinct committeemen of a party, selected as provided by 
this chapter, witRand any other personsindividual provided for by the 
district committee's bylaws and as the distriat aommittee designates, 
constitute the district committee of the party. The district committee of a 
party must be organized to coincide with the geographical boundary l ines 

of state legislative districts. Each member of any committee provided for in 
this chapter m ust be a qua lified elector and must retain the offiae the 
member was eleated to until a suaaessor is ahosen . 

2.  The distriot aommittee shall organize by: 

a- Seleating a ahairman, viae ahairman, searetary, and treasurer ahosen 
by-precinct committeemen and the incumbent members of the 
legis lative assembly from the district shal l  select the officers of the 
d istrict committee. The officers selected. as provided by the district 
party bylaws. need not be precinct committeemen;  however, al l  the 
officers must be voting members of the d istrict committee. The district 
committee shal l forward to the state committee the name and contact 
information of the district committee chairman .  

9:- Adopting rules and modes of proaedure not in aonfliat with lmu. 

&. Filling any vaaanaies in the offiae of preainat aommitteeman pursuant 
to seation 16.1 03 05. 

&.- SeleatingThe district committee may appoint an executive committee 
aonsisting of five or more persons ahosen from the distriat aommittee. 
The ahairman, viae ahairman, treasurer, and searetary of the distriat 
aommittee must be members and the offiaers of the exeautive 
aommitteeconsistent with the bylaws of the district committee. That 
party's nominees for and members of the legislative assembly may 
also beshal l  serve as members of the executive committee. 

�3. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the viae ahairman shall hold the 
offiae until the next regular eleation for the offiae or until a new ahairman is 
seleated by the distriat aommittee for the balanae of the term, whiahever 
oaaurs firstvacancy may be fi l led as provided by the d istrict party bylaws. 

4. The bylaws of the state committee or state party may not include any 
requirement providing directives or procedures for the method of the 
organization of district committees nor may the state committee or state 
party take any action or impose any requirement regarding district party 
organization which is not consistent with this chapter. 
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SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. 

The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the 
district committees of the party and any personindividual provided for in the bylaws of 
the state committee. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 1 .  State committee - Meetings - Organization Vacancies. 

The state committee shal l meet on or before Ju ly first of each odd-numbered 
year. The committee shal l  organize by selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, 
and treasurerofficers as provided for by the state committee bylaws and by adopting 
ru les and modes of procedure, i ncluding rules and procedures regarding the selection 
of state convention delegates. The party's bylaws must be filed with the secretary of 
state. The officers elected need not be members of the committee, but they shall 
beoome voting members of the committee after their eleotion. Within th irty days 
following the state committee's organization , the newly elected chairman shal l notify 
the secretary of state of the names of the party officers selected. These officers, with 
any other persons provided for by the party's bylaws and as the state committee 
designates, constitute the executive committee of the state committee. If the office of 
chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman holds the office until the next regular 
election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the state committee for the 
balance of the term, whichever occurs first. A vacancy in an office of the state 
committee, other than ohairman and a party district chairman, must be filled upon a 
majority vote of the state committee. The chairman of the state committee may 
temporarily fill any vacanoy existing on the state oommittee until the state committee 
oonvenes to fill the vacancy. The secretary of state must be notified of any changes in 
membership of the state's committee officers. 

SECTION 9. AM ENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03- 14  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 4. When state party convention held and duties of stateState party 
convention . 

.1. The state party conventions must be held in each presidential election year 
at a place and time designated by the party state committee shal l set the 
place and time of the state party convention to be held in each general 
election year. The state party convention provided for in this chapter 
sfl.a#Subject to party rules and bylaws, the state party convention may: 

4:- a .  Nominate the legal number of candidatesqual ified electors for its party 
for the offices of presidential electors. 

2-:- !:1. Elect the requ i red number of delegates and a lternates to the national 
party conventio n  as provided by the party's bylaws or national party 
R:Hes. 

&.. Conduct other business as shall come before the convention. 
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c. Endorse candidates as provided under subsection 2. 

� The candidate or candidates for endorsement or election must be declared 
endorsed or elected pursuant tounder the rules of the party involved , and 
the chairman and secretary of the convention shal l  issue certificates of 
endorsement as provided in section 1 6. 1 -1 1 -06 or certificates of election. 
The names of the candidatesqualified electors nominated for presidentia l  
electors 'lt'ith the surname of the presidential candidate the party wishes to 
place on the general election bal lot must be certified by the chairman and 
secretary of the convention to the secretary of state by four p .m .  on the 
sixtieth day before the general election to be placed upon the general 
election bal lot as provided in section 1 6. 1 -06-07 . 1 .  

SECTION 1 0. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-1 7 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 7. Pol itical party reorganization after apportionmentredistricting. 

If apportionmentredistricting of the legislative assembly becomes effective after 
the organ ization of political parties as provided in this chapter and before the primary or 
the general election, the secretary of state shall establish a timetable for the 
reorganization of the parties as rapidly as possible before the ensuing election. When 
the timetable is established, the secretary of state shall notify all the county auditors of 
the timetable and of the details of the legislative apportionment as it affects each 
county. The secretary of state or county auditor may not require reorganization of 
precincts in which boundaries are unchanged after apportionment by the board of 
county commissioners or the governing body of the city pursuant to chapter 16.1 04. 
Each county auditor shall publish a notice in the official county newspaper containing: 

-1-:- A statement that legislative apportionment has occurred. 

2-,- A description and a map of the new legislative districts and the precincts as 
established by the governing bodies of the counties and cities in the 
county, pursuant to section 16.1 04 01. 

� The date, time, and places of the precinct caucuses and district committee 
meetings determined by the secretary of state and the county auditor to be 
necessary according to the new districts and precincts established. 

TRe political parties , in the newly establ ished precincts and d istricts, shal l tJ::leA. 
proceed to reorgan ize as closely as possible in conformance with th is chapter aflG-.i.A 
conformance with the timetable established by the secretary of stateto assure 
compl iance with primary elect ion fi l ing deadl ines . 

SECTION 1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -04-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is a mended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6 . 1 -04-0 1 . Precincts - Duties and responsibil ities of the board of county 
commissioners or the governing body of the city. 

1., The board of county commissioners of each county: 

-1-:- §.:. Shal l  divide the county into precincts and establ ish the precinct 
boundaries, except that with in the boundaries of any incorporated city, 
the govern ing body of the city shal l  d ivide the city into precincts and 
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establish their boundaries pursuant to title 40 . Any number of 
townships or parts of townships may be joined into a single precinct 
provided that no precinct may encompass more than one legislative 
district. 

2-:- b. May alter the number and size of precincts within the county by 
combining or d ividing precincts. However, the g overn ing body of any 
incorporated city has the authority to alter the number and size of 
precincts located within its boundaries. The board of county 
commissioners may rel inquish the jurisdiction provided under 
subsection 1 subdivision a over al l  or  any portion of a township or 
townships under its jurisdiction to a city for the purpose of establishing 
a voting precinct if a majority of the governing body of the city agrees 
to assume such jurisdiction. The g overning body of a city, by majority 
vote, may return jurisdiction granted herein to the county and the 
county shal l  accept that jurisdiction .  

2. No precinct may have a population of more than two thousand five 
hundred. as determined by the last federal decennial census." 

Page 6 ,  after l ine 1 0 , insert: 

"SECTION 1 6. REPEAL. Sections 1 6. 1 -03-1 2 and 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 9 of the North 
Dakota Century Code are repealed . "  

Renumber accordingly 
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FORWARD 

This  pamphlet i s  a compilation of laws found in the North Dakota Century Code relating to 
pol itical party organization in the state of North Dakota. It is a reference source for cand idates, 
pol itical parties, and district political committees If you have questions regarding this pamphlet, 
ple ase contact the Elections Division of the Secretary of State's office by call ing 701 -328-4 1 46 ,  
sending an email to soselect@nd.gov, o r  writing to  Secretary of State , Elections Unit ,  600 E 
Boulevard Avenue Dept 1 08, B ismarck NO 58505-0500 

DISCLAIMER 

The following excerpts of North Dakota law are from the North 'Dakota Century Code (NDCC) and 
pertain to elections, election procedures, and political party organization. Although every attempt 
has been made for accuracy, the reprint of these laws does not carry the same authority as the 
actual NDCC and should not be equated with the official NDCC. Th is compilation is  only 
intended as a helpful resource and reference for consolidated elect ion and political party 
organization related'laws. For official and legal purposes , the official NDCC should be used . 

I n  addition , the fol lowing excerpts of North Dakota law do not contain the material found in the 
legal notes following the various sections contained in the NDCC. The se notes found in the 
NDCC may contain temporary provisions and effective dates along with t he valuable summaries 
of applicablE?' court rul ings. 
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N DCC CHAPTER 1 6. 1 -03 
PARTY COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION 

1 6 . 1 -03-0 1 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and 
manner of holding - Caucus call - Notice. 

1 .  O n  or before May fifteenth following the lasr preceding general elect ion,  a party caucus must be 
held by every election precinct at a site within or reasonably close to the precinct in the manner 
provided in sections 16 . 1 -03-01 through 1 6. 1 -03-03. 

2. The legislative d istrict chairman of each party shal l issue the call for the precinct caucus at least 
twenty days before the time set for holding the caucus and the ca ll must contain the following: 
a. Name of party. 
b. Precinct number or name. 
c. Date of caucus. 
d .  P lace of caucus. 
e. Hours of caucus. 
f. A statement of the business to be conducted, including the election of p recinct committeemen 

and such other persons as may be provided by state law and party rules. 
g. The name of the d istrict chairman issuing the cal l .  

3 .  The d istrict chairman shall provide ten days' published notice in the official newspaper in 
circulation within each precinct in the district. The notices must contain that information set forth 
in subsection 2. The d istrict chairman may include the information requ ired by this section for all 
precincts in the d istrict in  one notice for publishing purposes. 

1 6 . 1 -03-02. Who may participate in and vote at caucus. 
1 .  O n ly those persons who are qual ified electors pursuant to section 1 6 . 1 -0 1 -04 may vote or be 

elected as committeemen or officers at the precinct caucus. 

2. On ly those persons who either voted or affi liated with the party at the last general election or 
intend to vote or affi liate with the party at the next general election may vote at the p recinct 
caucus. 

3 .  In case the right of a person to participate at the caucus is challenged, the question of the 
person's right to participate must be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. A person so 
cha llenged may not vote on the question of the person's right to participate in the caucus , and a 
two-th i rds vote of the whole caucus is requ i red to exclude a person from participation. 

4. No person may vote or participate at more than one precinct caucus in any one year. 

1 6 . 1 -03-03. Caucus bus iness and elections - Political parties entitled to elect 
committeemen.  

1 .  Each p recinct caucus shall elect a chairman, committeemen as provided in subsection 3 ,  and 
other officers as may be provided by party rules. The caucus may also d iscuss party policies, 
candidates , and any other business as prescribed by party rules. 

2. No political organization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at its p recinct caucus unless: 
a. The organization nominated and had printed on the bal lot at the last preced ing general 

election the names of a set of presidential electors pledged to the e lection of the party's 
candidates for president and vice president or a candidate for governor ,  attorney general, or 
secretary of state; and 

b.  The candidates provided for in subd ivision a received at least five percent of the total vote 
cast for presidential electors or for governor, attorney general, or secretary of state within this 
state at that election . 
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3.  Each political party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise qual ify ing u nder subsection 2 ,  
is entitled to elect one precinct committeeman for each two hundred fifty votes, or fraction thereof, 
cast for the party's presidential electors, governor, attorney general ,  or s ecretary of state in the 
precinct in the last general election. Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct 
committeeman for each party which qualifies under subsection 2. Each precinct committeeman 
must be an elector of the precinct in which the committeeman resides and must be e lected for a 
two-year tenm. 

1 6 . 1 -03-05. Vacancies i n  office of precinct committeeman - F i l l ing.  A vacancy in the office of 
precinct committeeman ,  which occurs after the organization of the d istrict committee, must be filled by 
appointment from the precinct by the district executive committee of the party. Notice of the appointment 
must be given to the county auditor. 

1 6 . 1 -03-07. Meeting of d istrict committee - Organ ization .  
1 .  I n  every odd-numbered year, the district committee of each party shall meet within fifteen days 

after the precinct caucus provided for in section 1 6. 1 -03-01 . The day, hour, and site must be set 
by the existing district committee chainman. The precinct committeemen of a party, selected as 
provided by this chapter, with any other persons provided for_ by the d istrict committee's bylaws 
and as the d istrict committee designates, constitute the d istrict committee of the party. The district 
committee of a party must be organized to coincide with the geographical boundary l ines of state 
leg islative districts. Each member of any committee provided for i n  this chapter must be a 
qualified elector and must retain the office the member was elected to unti l a 

·
successor is 

chosen .  The d istrict committee shall organize by: 
a. Selecting a chainman, vice chairman, secretary, and treasurer chosen by the district 

committee. The officers selected need not be precinct committeemen; however, a l l  the officers 
must be voting members of the d istrict committee. 

b. Adopting  rules and modes of procedure not in conflict with law. 
c. Fi l l ing any vacancies in the office of precinct committeeman pursuant to section 1 6 . 1 -0 3-05. 
d. Selecting an executive committee consisting of five or more persons chosen from the d istrict 

committee. The chainman, vice chairman, treasurer, and secretary of the district committee 
must be members and the officers of the executive committee. That party's nominees for and 
members of the legislative assembly may also be members of the executive committee. 

2 .  I f  the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman shall hold the office until the next 
regular election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the district committee for the 
balance of the term, whichever occurs first. 

1 6 . 1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. The state committee of each party consists of the 
chairman of each of the district committees of the party and any person provided for i n  the bylaws of the 
state committee. 

1 6 . 1 -03-1 1 .  State committee · Meetings · Organ ization - Vacancies. The state committee 
shall meet on or before July first of each odd-numbered year. The committee shall organize by selecting a 
chairman, vice chainman, secretary, and treasurer and by adopting rules and modes of procedure. The 
party's bylaws must be filed with the secretary of state. The officers elected need not be members of the 
committee, but they shall become voting members of the committee after their election . Within thirty days 
following the state committee's organization, the newly elected chairman shal l  notify the secretary of state 
of the names of the party officers selected. These officers, with any other persons provided for by the 
party's bylaws and as the state committee designates, constitute the executive committee of the state 
committee. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman holds the  office until the next 
regular election for the office or unti l a new chairman is selected by the state committee for the balance of 
the term, whichever occurs first. A vacancy in an office of the state committee, other  than chairman and a 
party d istrict chairman, must be fi l led upon a majority vote of the state committee. The chairman of the 
state committee may temporarily fi l l  any vacancy existing on the state committee unt i l  the state committee 
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convenes to fill the vacancy. The secretary of state must be notified of any changes in membership of the 
state's committee officers. 

1 6 . 1 �03-1 2.  Meeting of d istrict committee to elect delegates to state party convention -
Optional precinct caucus - Proxies. Prior to the sixtieth day before the primary election in each election 
year and upon the cal l  of the chairman , the district committee of each state legislative d istrict shall meet 
at a place designated by the chairman to elect delegates to a state party convention to be held as 
provided in this chapter. If  the bylaws of the state legislative district so provide, p recinct committeemen 
may cal l  a precinct caucus prior 'to the .d istrict meeting ·to elect add itional ·delegates to attend the d istrict 
meeting. Delegates to the state convention must be elected as provided by the state party's bylaws. 
Delegates to the state convention must be electors of their district. 

1 6 . 1 -03-1 4. When state party convention held and d uties of state pa rty convention. The 
state party conventions must be held in each presidential election year at a ·place and time designated by 
the party state committee. The state party convention provided for in this chapter shall :  

1 .  Nominate the legal number of candidates for its party for the offices of pres idential electors . 

2. Elect the required number of delegates and alternates to the nationa l party convention as 
provided by the party's bylaws or national party rules. 

3.  Conduct other business as shall come before the convention. 

The candidate or candidates for endorsement or election must be declared endorsed or e lected 
pursuant to the rules of the party invGived,  and the chairman and secretary of ' the convention shall issue 
certificates of endorsement as provided in section '1 6:1 �1 1 -06 or certificates of election. The names of the 
candidates nominated for presidential ·electors with the surname of the presidential candidate the party 
wishes to p lace on the general election ,ballot · must · be certified · by the chairman and secretary of the 
convention 'to :the secretary •of state � by four •·p!m. ·on the •sixtieth day · before the· general election to be 
placed upon the ·general election ballot 'as provided in section 16 . 1 -06-07 . 1 .  

1 6 . 1 -03-1 7. Political party reorganization after apportionment. If apportionment of the 
legislative assembly becomes effective after the organization of political parties as provided in  this 
chapter and ·before the · primary or the general election, the secretary of state shal l  establ ish a timetable 
for the reorganization of the parties as rapidly as possible before the ensuing election. When the 
timetable i s  establ ished, the secretary of state shall notify al l  the county auditors of the timetable and of 
the details of the legislative apportionment as it affects each county. The secretary of state or county 
auditor m a y  not requ ire reorganization of precincts in which boundaries are unchanged after 
apportionment by the board of county commissioners or the governing body of the city pursuant to 
chapter 1 6 . 1 -04. Each county auditor shall publish in the official county newspaper, a notice conta in ing :  

1 .  A statement that legislative apportionment has occurred. 

2. A d escription and a map of the new legislative d istricts and the precincts as established by the 
governing bodies of the counties and cities in the county, pursuant to section 1 6. 1 -04-01 . 

3. The date, time, and places of the precinct caucuses and district committee meetings determined 
by the secretary of state and the county auditor to be necessary accord ing  to the new d istricts 
and precincts established. 

The political parties, in the newly established precincts and districts, shal l  then proceed to 
reorganize as closely as possible in conformance with this chapter and in conforma nce with the timetable 
established by the secretary of state. 

1 6 . 1 -03-1 9 .  Organ izations al lowed to nominate statewide and leg is lative cand idates. A 
political organization may not endorse cand idates or have candidates petition for president, vice 
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president, Congress, statewide office, or leg islative office as set forth in chapter 1 6. 1 -1 1 ,  unless the 
organization: 

1 .  Had printed on the ballot at the last preceding general e lection the names of a set of pres idential 
electors p ledged to the election of the party's candidate for president and vice president, a 
candidate for governor, a candidate for attorney general, or a candidate for secretary of state and 
those candidates for presidential electors, governor, attorney general ,  or secretary of state 
received at least five percent of the total vote cast for presidential electors, the office of g overnor, 
attorney general, or secretary of state within this state at that election; and 

2 .  Organized accord ing to  all requirements of this chapter; or 

3 .  Filed a petition with the secretary of state as  set forth i n  section 1 6. 1 -1 1 -30. 

N DCC CHAPTER 1 6. 1 -05 

ELECTION OFFICERS 
Related.Excerpts 

1 6 . 1 -05-01 . Election officers. At each primary, general, and special statewide or leg islative 
d istrict election ,  and at county elections, each polling place must have an election board in attendance. 
The election board must consist of an election inspector and at least two election judges . Counties 
uti l izing poll ing places containing more than one precinct may choose to use one election board to 
supervise a ll precincts even if the precincts are within different legislative districts so  long as each d istrict 
chairman of each qual ified political party is g iven the opportunity to have represe ntation on the e lection 
board if desired.  

1 .  The election i nspector must be selected in the following manner: 
a. Except as provided in subdivision b, in a l l  precincts established by the governing body of an  

incorporated city pursuant to  chapter 1 6. 1 -04, the governing body sha l l  appoint the e lection 
inspectors for those precincts and fill al l  vacancies occurring in those offices. 

b. In  all multiprecinct polli ng locations containing both rural and city p recincts, the county 
auditor, with the approyal of the majority of the board of county commissioners, shal l a ppoint 
the election inspectors and fi l l  al l  vacancies occurring in those offices. The selection must be 
made on the basis of the inspector's knowledge of the election procedu re.  

c. The election inspector shall serve until a successor is named. If an i n spector fails to appear 
for any training session without excuse, the office is deemed vacant and the auditor shall 
appoint an individual to fi l l  the vacancy. 

All appointments required to be made under th is section must be made at least forty days 
preceding an election. 

2 .  The election j udges must be appointed in the following manner: 
a. Except as provided in subdivision b: 

( 1 )  The election j udges for each polling place must be appointed in writing by the d istrict 
chairs representing the two parties that cast the largest number of votes in the state at 
the last general election. In polling places in which over one thousand votes are cast i n  
any  election, t he  county auditor may request each d istrict chair to appoint an addit ional 
election judge. 

(2) The district party chair shal l notify the county auditor of the counties in which the 
precincts are located of the appointment of the election judges at least forty days before 
the primary, general ,  or special election. If this notice is not received within  the time 
specified in  this section, the county auditor shal l  appoint the judges . If the county aud itor 
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has exhausted al l  practicable means to select judges from within the boundaries of the 
precincts within the poll ing p lace and vacancies still remain,  the county aud itor  may 
select election judges who reside outside of the voting precinct but who res ide within the 
poll ing place's legislative districts. If vacancies still remain ,  the county auditor may select 
election j udges who reside outside of the leg islative districts but who res ide with in the 
county. 

b. For special elections involving on ly no-party offices, the election official respon sible for the 
administration of the election with the approval of the majority of the members of the 
applicable govern ing body shall appoint the election judges for each polling location.  

3 .  If at any time before or during an election ,  i t  appears to an election inspector, by the affid avit of 
two or more qual ified electors of the precinct, that any election j udge is d isqualified under this 
chapter, the inspector shall remove that j udge at once and shall fil l the vacancy by appointing a 
qualified individual of the same political party as that of the j udge removed. If the d isq ualified 
judge had taken the oath of office as prescribed in this chapter, the inspector shal l  p lace the oath 
or affidavit before the state's attorney of the county. 

4 .  The election official responsible for the administration o f  the election, with the approval o f  the 
majority of the members of the appl icable governing body, shall appoint the poll clerks ·for each 
pol l ing place. However, no ·fewer than two poll clerks must be appointed for each pol l ing place. 
Poll clerks must be appointed based on their knowledge of election matters, attention to detai l ,  
and on ·any necessary technical knowledge. 

1 6 .1 -05-06. Challenging right to vote - Identification or Affidavit required - Pena l ty for 
false swea ring - Optional po l l  checkers. 

1 .  Three poll challengers appointed by the d istrict chairman of each political party rep resented on 
the election board are entitled to be in attendance at each poll ing place. I n d ividua l  poll 
challengers may be replaced .at any time during the hours of vot ing,  but no more than three poll 
challengers from each political ·party are entitled to' be in attendance at each pol l ing place at any 
one time. 

2 .  Any member of the election board may challenge the right of an ind ividual to vote if the e lection 
board member has knowledge or has reason to believe the individual is not a qual ified elector. A 
pol l  challenger may request members of the election board to challenge the right of a n  ind ividual 
to vote if the poll challenger has knowledge or has reason to bel ieve the individual i s  not a 
qualified elector of the precinct. A challenge may be based upon any one of the following :  
a .  The individual offering to vote does not  meet the age or citizenship requirements. 
b. The i ndividual offering to vote has never voted in the precinct before, the name of the 

individ ual offering to vote does not appear in the pollbook generated from the central voter 
file, and the individual fails to provide reasonable evidence of residency in the precinct .  

c. Except as provided in section 1 6. 1 -01 -05, the individual offering to vote physically resides 
outside of the precinct. 

d. The ind ividual offering to vote does not meet the residency requirements provided in section 
16 . 1 -0 1 -04 . 

e. The ind ividual offering to vote fails or refuses to provide an appropriate form of ident ification 
as requested under subsection 3 .  

3 .  I f  after an election board member has requested that the individual offering to  vote p rovide an 
appropriate form of  identification to  address any of  the voting  el igibi lity concerns l isted in  
subsection 2 and the identification is not provided or  does not adequately confirm the el ig ib ility of 
the challenged individual ,  the challenged individual may not vote unless the challenged ind ividual 
executes an affidavit, acknowledged before an election board member, that the chal lenged 
ind ividual is a legally qualified elector of the precinct. 

4 .  The  affidavit must include: 
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a. The name of the affiant. 
b. The address of the affiant. 
c. The birth date of the affiant. 
d. The contact telephone number of the affiant. 
e. The address of the affiant at the time the affiant last voted.  
f. The previous last name of the affiant if it was d ifferent when the affiant last voted. 
g. The identification number and state of any state-issued identification regardless of the state in 

which the identification was issued, if avai lable. 
h. A recitation of the qualifications for voting as set forth in section 1 6. 1 -0 1 -04 and the rules for 

determining residence. 
i. Notice of the penalty for making a false affidavit and that the county auditor is required to 

verify the affidavit. 

j. A notice indicating that the affidavit is not an open record, but that i nformation identify ing who 
voted after executing an affidavit is an open record as part of the pol lbook, except for any 
individual l isted as secured active in the central voter file under section 1 6. 1 -02-1 3 .  

k .  A place for the affiant to  s ign  and swear to  the affiant's q ualifications as  a voter. 

5.  Written notice of the penalty for making a false affidavit and that the county auditor shal l  verify the 
affidavits must be prominently d isplayed at the poll ing place in a form prescribed by the secretary 
of state. An  i ndividual who falsely swears in order to vote is gui lty of a class A misdemeanor  and 
must be punished pursuant to chapter 1 6. 1 -0 1 . 

6. The d istrict chairman of each political party represented on the election board may appoint pol l  
checkers to a polling place, provided the poll checkers do not interfere with the election process 
or with the members of the election board in the performance of their d uties. Poll chal lengers 
must be qualified electors of the district in which they are assigned . 

7. No poll challenger or checker may be a member of the election board. 

8. The district chairman shall notify the county auditor of each county contained in the legislative 
district one day before the day of the election of the names of ind ividua ls whom the district 
chairman has appointed to serve as poll challengers and poll checkers in the precincts in the 
legislative district. 

N DCC CHAPTER 1 6. 1 -1 1 

Nominations for Office - Primary Election 
Related Excerpts 

1 6 . 1 -1 1 -05.1 . Participation i n  endorsements for nomination. No person may participate 
directly or indirectly in  the endorsement for nomination of more than one person for each office to be 
fi l led, except a person may sign a petition for placement of a candidate's name on t h e  primary ballot: 

1 .  For more than one person for each office for an office not under party des ignation. 

2. For more than one person for each office for an office under party designation only if all the 
candidates for whom the person signs a petition for an office are running under the same party 
designation. 

Except for persons allowed to seek nomination to more than one office p u rsuant to section 1 6 . 1 -
1 2-03, no person may accept endorsement for nomination by certificate or petit ion to more than one 
office. No political party is entitled to endorse for nomination by certificate more than one set of 
nominees. 
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1 6 . 1 -1 1 -06.  State cand idate's petition or pol itical pa rty certificate of endorsement req uired 
to get name on bal lot - Conte nts - Fi l in g . 

1 .  Every candidate for United States senator, United States representative, a state office except 
the office of state senator or state representative,

· 
and judges of the supreme and d istrict courts shal l  

present to the secretary of state, between the first date candidates may begin  circu lating nominating 
petitions according to this chapter and before four p.m. of the sixtieth day before any primary e lection ,  
either: 

a .  The certificate of endorsement signed by the state chairman of any legally recognized 
political party containing the candidate's name, post-office address, and telephone 
number, the title of the office to which the candidate aspires, and the party which the 
candidate represents; or 

b. The nominating petition containing the following: 
(1) The candidate's name, post-office address, and telephone number, and the title of 

the office to which the candida'te aspires, the appropriate d istrict judgeship number if 
applicable, and whether the petition is intended for nomination for an unexpired term 
of office if applicable. 

(2) The name cif ·the party the candidate represents if the petition is for an office under 
party designation. 

(3) The signatures of qualified electors, the number of which must be determined as 
follows: 

(a) If the office is under party designation, the signatures of three percent of the total 
vote cast for the cand idates of the party with which the candidate affi liates for the 
same position at the last general election. However, no more than three hundred 
signatures may be required. 

(b) If there was no cand idate of a party for a position at the preceding general 
election, at least three hundred signatures. 

(c) If the office is under the no-party d esignation, .at least three hundred signatures. 

(4) The mai l ing address and the date of signing for each signer. 

(2) If the petition or certificate of endorsement is for the office of governor or lieutenant governor, the 
petition or certificate must contain the names and other information required of candidates for 
both those offices. If the petition or certificate of endorsement is mailed, it must be in the 
possession of the secretary of state before four p.m. of the sixtieth day before the p rimary 
election. 

1 6. 1 -1 1 -09. Form of certificate of endorsement. A certificate of endorsement fi led with the 
proper officer as provided in this chapter must be in substantially the fol lowing form: 

CERTI FICATE OF E N DORSEMENT 

I, ---::,..,.,.---- ' do certify that I am the state (d istrict) chairman of the pol itical 
party of the legislative d istrict (if appropriate) of the state of North Dakota and that 
-

--.,..--,
--

-,-
(insert name of endorsee), residing at , was du ly endorsed for 

nominat ion to the office of on the day of , by the 
political party of the leg islative district (if appropriate) ,  d uly 

conven ed and organized in accordance with the bylaws of the political party a nd 
the laws of this state, and do hereby request name be printed upon the ballot as a 
candidate for nomination to the office of at the forthcoming primary election to be 
held on of this year. 

Dated this _____ day of ___ _ 

(signature of state or d istrict chairman) 
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1 6 . 1 -1 1 -1 0. A pplicant's n ame placed upon bal lot - Affidavit to accompany petition .  Upon 
receipt by the secretary of state of the petition or certificate of endorsement provid ed for in section 1 6 . 1 -
1 1 -06 accompanied by the following affidavit, the secretary of state shall place the a p pl icant's name upon 
the primary election bal lot in the columns of the applicant's party as hereinafter p rovided. The affidavit 
must be substantially as follows: 

State of North Dakota ) 
) ss. 

County of --------' 

I ,  , being sworn, say that I reside in the county of and state of 
North Dakota; that I am a candidate for nomination to the office of to be chosen at 
the primary election to be held on , , and I request that my name be p rinted 
upon the primary election bal lot as provided by law, as a candidate of the party for 
said office. I am requesting that my name be l isted on the bal lot as I have identified my ballot name 
below. I understand that n icknames are al lowed as part of my bal lot name, b ut titles and campaign 
slogans are not permissible. I have reviewed the requirements to hold office and  I certify that I am 
qualified to serve if elected. 

Bal lot name requested 

Candidate' s  signature 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on ______ , __ . 

Notary Public  

NOTARY SEAL My Commission Expires _____ _ 

1 6 . 1 -1 1 -1 1 .  County and legislative d istrict candidates' petitions - Fi l i n g - Contents. Every 
candidate for a county or legislative district office shall present, between the first d ate candidates may 
begin circulating nominating petitions according to this chapter and before four p . m. of the sixtieth day 
before any primary election, to the county auditor of the county in which the candidate resides eithe r: 

1 .  A certificate of endorsement signed by the district chairman of any leg ally recognized p olitical 
party containing the candidate's name, post-office address, and telephone n umber, the title of the 
office to which the candidate aspires, and the party that the candidate represents; or 

2. A petition containing the following: 
a. The candidate's name, post-office address, and telephone number, t h e  title of the office to 

which the candidate aspires, the appropriate d istrict number if applicab le, and whether the 
petition is intended for nomination for an unexpired term of office if appl icable. 

b. The name of the party the candidate represents, only if it is a petit ion for an office that is 
under party designation .  

c .  The signatures of qualified electors, the number of which must be determined as follows: 
(1 ) If the office is a county office, the signatures of not less than two percent and not more 

than five percent of the total vote cast for the office at the most recent general election at 
which the office was voted upon. 

(2) If the office is a county office and multiple candidates were elected to the office at the 
preceding general election at which the office was voted upon, the s ignatures of not less 
than two percent and not more than five percent of the votes cast for all cand idates 
divided by the number of cand idates that were to be elected to that office. 

201 1 -20 1 3  Political Party Organ ization and Related Statutes page 1 1  



(3) If the office is a county office and no candidate was elected or no votes were ·cast for the 
office at any general election, the number of signers equal to the percentage as provided 
in paragraph 1 appl ied to the total average vote cast for the offices of sheriff and county 
auditor at the most recent general election at which those officers were elected in the 
petitioner's county. This average must be determined by dividing by two the total vote 
cast for those offices . 

(4) If the office is a legislative office, the signatures of at least one percent of the total 
resident population of the legislative district as determined by the most recent federal 
decennial census. 

(5) In  no case may more than three hundred signatures be required. 
d. The mai l ing address and date of signing for each signer. 

If the petition or certificate of endorsement is mailed, it must be in the possession of the county 
auditor before four p .m. on the sixtieth day before the primary election. 

1 6 . 1 -1 1 -1 8 . Party committees to fi l l  vacancy occurring i n  nomination for party office. 
1 .  If a vacancy occurs in any party certificate of endorsement at the primary election lor any state or 

legislative district office, the proper state or district executive committee of the political party may 
fi l l  the vacancy by fil ing another certificate of endorsement with the proper officer as provided i n  
sections 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -06 and 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -1 1 .  

2 .  If no party endorsement has been made by certificate and a vacancy occurs in a s late of 
ca ndidates .seeking .party nomination by petition at the primary election, the proper state or d istrict 
executive committee may fi l l  the vacancy by filing a certificate of endorsement with the p roper 
officer as provided in sections 1 6. 1 -1 1 -06 and 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -1 1 .  

3. If party endorsements by certificate have been made for any state or district office and a vacancy 
occurs in the slate of persons seeking nomination at the primary election because of the 
unavai labil ity of the person who is seeking nomination by petition, that vacancy may not be filled 
except by petition. 

4. If a vacancy occurs in a slate of statewide candidates after the candidates have been nominated 
at the ,primary election , the proper state .executive committee may fill any vacancy by fi l ing a 
certificate of nomination with the secreta()! of state. The chairman and secretary of the committee 
sha ll .make and file with the secretary of state a certificate setting forth the cause of the vacancy, 
the name of the person .for whom the new norninee is to be substituted , the fact that the 
committee was authorized to fill vacancies, and any further information as may be required to be 
g iven in an original certificate of nomination. When s uch a certificate is fi led, the secretary of state 
sha l l  certify the new nomination and the name of the person who has been nominated to fil l  the 
vacancy in place of the orig inal nominee to the various auditors. If the secretary of state a l ready 
has forwarded the certificate , the secretary of state forthwith shall certify to the auditors the name 
and address of the new nominee, the office the new nominee . is nominated for, the party or 
po litical p rinciple the new nominee represents, and the name of the person for whom the new 
nominee is substituting . Failure to publish the name of a new nominee does not invalidate the 
e lection. 

5. If  a vacancy occurs in a slate of leg islative candidates after the candidates have been nominated 
at the primary election, the proper district executive committee may fill the vacancy by fi l ing a 
certificate of nomination with the county auditor of the new nominee's cou nty of residence. The 
chairman and secretary of the committee shall make and file with the county auditor of the new 
n ominee's county of residence a certificate setting forth the cause of the vacancy, the name of 
the person for whom the new nominee is to be substituted, the fact that the committee was 
authorized to fill vacancies, and any further information as may be requ ired to be g iven in an 
or ig inal certificate of nomination. When the certificate is fi led, the county auditor of the new 
n ominee's county of residence shall certify the new nomination to the various auditors affected by 
the change  and to the secretary of state by forwarding to them the name of the person who has 
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been nominated to fill the vacancy in place of the original nominee. The certification must include 
the name and address of the new nominee, the office the new nominee is nominated for, the 
party or pol itical principle the new nominee represents, and the name of the person for whom the 
new nominee is substituting. Fai lure to publish the name of a new nominee does not invalidate 
the election. 

6. A vacancy in a nomination following a primary election may not be fi l led according to subsections 
4 or 5 unless the nominated candidate: 
a. Dies; 
b. Would be unable to serve, if elected, as a result of a debil itating i l lness; 
c. Ceases to be a resident of the state or an individual nominated for leg is lative office will not be 

a resident of the legislative d istrict at the time of the election; or 
d. Ceases to be qual ified to serve, if elected, as otherwise provided by law. 

Vacancies to be fi l led according to the provisions of this section may be fi l led not later than sixty 
days prior to the election. 

1 6. 1 -1 1 -30. Sepa rate column on primary election ballot requ ired for each political 
party. Any party that had printed on the ballot at the last preceding presidential e lection the names of a 
set of presidential e lectors pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and vice 
president or a candidate for governor and those candidates for presidential electors or governor received 
at least five percent of the total vote cast for presidential e lectors or the office of governor within this state 
at that election; any party that had printed on the ballot at the last preced ing nonpresidential election a 
candidate for attorney general or secretary of state, and the candidate received at l east five percent of the 
total vote cast for the office the candidate was seeking at the election; or any party that has organized 
according to all the requ irements of chapter 1 6. 1 -03 must be provided with a separate column on p rimary 
election ba l lots. 

Any other political organization is entitled to endorse candidates or have cand idates petition to be 
included on the primary ballot in a consol idated column or on a special election bal lot, if a petition s igned 
by at least seven thousand qual ified electors of this state is filed with the secretary of state before 
four p.m. of the sixtieth day before a primary or special election, naming the politica l  organization, stating 
the platform principles of the party , and requesting the names of its candidates to be included on the 
state's primary ballot in  a consolidated column. If the petition is mailed, it m ust be in the possession of the 
secretary of  state before four p .m. on the sixtieth day prior to a primary or special e lection. Candidates of 
that party are entitled to the same rights and privileges as those of other parties .  Petitions circulated 
according to this section must be filed with the secretary of state in accordance with section 1 -01 -50. 

A political organization that had printed on the ballot at the last preceding presidential election the names 
of a set of presidential e lectors pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and vice 
president or a candidate for governor and those candidates for presidential electors or governor received 
at least five percent of the total vote cast for presidential electors or the office of governor within this state 
at that election are entitled to organize according to the requ irements of chapter 1 6 . 1 -03. 

N OCC CHAPTER 1 6. 1 -1 3  

General Elections 
Related Excerpts 

1 6 . 1 -1 3-09. Resignation of members of legislative assembly after c ertificate of election. 
Any person who receives a certificate of election as a member of the legislative a ssembly may resign 
such office althoug h  the person may not have entered upon the execution of the d uties thereof nor taken 
the requisite oath of office. 

1 6- 1 -1 3-1 0. Vacancy existing in office of member of legislative assem bly. 
1 .  If a vacancy in the office of a member of the legislative assembly occurs, the county auditor of the 
county in which the former member resides or resided shal l  notify the chairman of the legislative council 
of the vacancy. The county auditor need not notify the chairman of the legis lative council of the 
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resignation of a member of the legislative assembly when ·the resignation was made under section 44-02-
02 . Upon receiving notification of a vacancy, ·the chairman of the legislative council shal l notify the d istrict 
committee of the political party that the former member represented in the district in which the vacancy 
exists. The district committee shal l hold a meeting within twenty-one days after receiving the notification 
and select an ind ividual to fill the vacancy. If the former member was elected as an independent 
candidate or if the d istrict committee does not make an appointment within twenty-one days after 
receiving the notice from the chairman of the legislative counci l ,  the chairman of the legislative council 
shall appoint a resident of the d istrict to fill the vacancy. Except as provided in subsection 2, if eight 
hundred twenty-eight days or more remain until the expiration of the term of office for that office, the 
individual appointed to fi l l  the vacancy shall serve until a successor is elected at and qualified following 
the next general election or special election called by the governor according to subsection 2 to serve for 
the remainder of the term of office for that office. 

2. The qua l ified electors of a legislative district in which a vacancy in the legislative assembly occurs may 
petition for a specia l  election to be called by the governor to fill the vacancy. The petition must include the 
signatures of qualified electors equal in number to four percent of the resident population of the legislative 
d istrict as determined by the last federal decennial census and must be presented to the secretary of 
state withi n  thirty Clays following an appointment :being made according ·to subsection 1 .  l f the secretary of 
state determines ' the petition contains · the required number of signatures of qual ified electors of the 
affected legislative d istrict, the secretary of state shall notify the governor that a special election is 
required to be called to fil l the vacancy. Upon receiving such notice, the governor s'hal l issue a writ of 
election d irected to the ·county auditor of each affected county commanding the county auditor to hold a 
special .election · to ' fil l 'the 1vacancy at a ·time ·designated by the governor. A special election •under this 
section m u st conform to 'the appl icable election deadlines 'f o u nd in this title and may be called to coincide 
with a reg u larly scheduled primary or general election provided the special election is  called by the 
fifteenth ·day before the deadl ine for candidates to ·file for office before a regularly scheduled primary or 
general e lection. A special election under this section may not be scheduled to occur during the time from 
a general election through eighty days following the adjournment of the next ensuing regular sess ion of 
the· legislative assembly. 

3.  The secretary cif ·state must be notified of an appointment made by a district icommittee or the chairman 
of the legislative council according to this section. Upon notificat ion , the secretary of state shall issue the 
appointee a certificate of appointment and an oath of office for the appointee ·to complete and file with the 
secretary of ·state. 

1 6 . 1 -1 3-1 2 .  N otice of special election. A notice of a special election and the copy of the 
sample bal lot must be issued and published in substantially the form and manner prescribed by section 
1 6. 1 -1 3-05 .  

1 6 . 1 -1 3-1 3.  Canvassing a nd returning votes cast at  elections to fi l l  vacancies. Votes cast 
at special elections must be canvassed and returned as provided fpr primary and general elections, and 
the county aud itor within eight days shall forward to ·the secretary of state the abstracts of the same. 

1 6 . 1 -1 3-1 4. Special  e lection to fill vacancies - Party committee to call convention to 
nominate - Individual  nominations. If a special election is called to fill a vacancy in any office for which 
a party nomination may be made, the proper party committee shal l call a convention to make a party 
nomination for such office, and the precinct committeemen of the district must be d uly convened and shall 
elect the required number of delegates to such convention. I ndividual nominations for special elections 
must be made in accordance with the provisions of chapter 1 6. 1 -1 2. 

1 6 . 1 -1 3-1 5. N otice of holding convention for special election - Man ner of g iving. Public 
notice of such a nominating convention must be given at least six days before the holding of the 
convention by publ ication in the official newspaper in the county or counties in which the election wil l  be 
held. Such nomination must be made by delivering to and leaving with the officer charged with d irecting 
the printing of the bal lots upon which the name is to be placed, within the time prescribed in this title, a 
certificate of nomination for each candidate. 
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1 6 . 1 -1 3-1 6. Bas is of representation at convention - How determined. The basis of 
representation of delegates to a convention, unless otherwise provided by l aw, must be fixed and 
determined by the authorized district or state committee of each political party entitled by law to make 
nominations for office by delegate convention. 

1 6 . 1 -1 3-1 7.  Certificate of nomination by convention - Contents - Del ivery. All nominations 
made by a convention as provided in this chapter must be certified. The certificates of nomination must 
be in writing and must contain all of the following: 

1 .  The name of each person nominated, that person's post-office address, and the office for which 
that person is nominated, the legislative district number if applicable, and whether the certificate 
is i ntended for an unexpired term of office. 

2. A designation in not more than five words of the party or principle which the convention 
represents. 

3. The signature, post-office address, and verification of the presiding officer and secretary of the 
convention. 

The certificate as prescribed in this section must be delivered by the secretary or president of the 
convention by registered or certified mail or in person, without charge, to the s ecretary of state or the 
county aud itor, as the case may be. 

1 6 . 1 -1 3-1 8. Two or more organizations fil ing certificates representing same party -
Secretary of state to determine authorized organization - Review of determination. If two or more 
organizations claiming or purporting to represent the same political party shal l  file certificates of 
nomination under the same party designation, or if the certificates indicate that the nominations were 
made by any person or organization representing the same political party , the s ecretary of state, within 
the time prescribed by law for certifying state nominations to the county auditor, s ha ll determine from the 
best avai lable sources of information which organization fi l ing the certificates is  the legally authorized 
representative of the party.  The decision of the secretary of state in determ ining which organization is the 
legally authorized representative of the party is subject to review by the district court in a proper action 
instituted for such purpose. 

Political  Party Organ ization Related Forms 
Forms are available from the Secretary of State's Fax-on-Demand service at (701 )  328-01 20 and 
the Secretary of State's web site at www.nd.gov/sos/electvote/. The Fax-on-Demand service wil l 
fax the forms directly to the requestor's fax machine. Additional inform ation and assistance are 
available by contacting the Elections Unit by phone at (701 ) 328-4146 or (800)352-0867, via 
email to soselect@nd.gov or in writing to Secretary of State, E lections Unit, 600 East Boulevard 
Avenue, Dept. 1 08, B ismarck, NO 58505-0500. 

Petition to Establ ish a Political Party (SFN 1 7700) : To establish a pol itical party for the 
purposes of securing space in a consolidated column on a primary election ballot according to 
North Dakota law, a petition signed by at least 7 ,000 qual ified North Dakota e lectors must be filed 
with the Secretary of State. The petition must include: 

• The name of the political party 
• The platform principles of the political party; and 
• A request that the party's candidates are included on the state's primary election 

ballot in a consolidated column. 

Roster of State Pol itical Party Officers (SFN 51 435) :  The Roster of State Political Party 
Officers (SFN 51 435) is to l ist all officers at the state level. It is to include contact information for 
the state party headquarters. Any changes in the state party officers m ust be submitted to the 
Secretary of State in a timely manner. 
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Kasper, J im M. 

To: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Montplaisir, Michael < MontplaisirM@casscountynd.gov> 
Tuesday, April 23, 2013 9:37 AM 
Kasper, Jim M.; Scha i ble, Donald G.; Dever, Dick D.; Nelson, Carolyn C.; Boehni ng, Randy 
G.; Amerman, Bi l l  D.;  Kasper, J im M.; Carlson, AI H .; Ward ner, Rich P. ;  Klein, Jerry J . ;  
Hogue, David J .; Hol mberg, Ray E. ;  Sitte, Margaret A.; Armstrong, Kel ly 
RE: Senate Bi l l  2369 Conference Committee Report-- REPLY F ROM REP. JIM 
KAS PER--4/23/13 = = REPLY FROM REP. JIM KASPER 
District41 .pdf 

As a cou nty aud itor I have not been briefed on the Secreta ry of State's p lan to basica l ly take over e lections, but at a ny 
rate the state has not purchased this new wonder system a nd we have to deal  with what we have . The counties d o n't 

have the fu nds to buy a l l  new systems. Here is an exa mple of District 41 red rawn as yo u r  proposal suggests, not very 

perty, the cu rrent d istrict is d ivided i nto two precincts, north of 32"ct Avenue is one preci nct a n d  south of 32"ct is the 

other  preci nct. So yes we have the technology to draw the preci nct l i nes. Representative Carlson, is this  a long the l i nes 
of what you wo u ld l i ke done to yo u r  d istrict, it is what ha ppens when you try to set po pulation l i m its o r  n u m ber of 
precincts as a criteria . 

M ichael  M o ntplais ir  CPA 
Cass Cou nty Auditor 
montplais irm@casscountynd .gov 
701-241-5627 

From: Kasper, J im M. [ma ilto:jkasper@nd .gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, Apri l 23,  2013 7 :56 AM 
To: Montplais ir, M ichael; Schaible, Donald;  Dever, Dick; Nelson, Ca rolyn C.; Boe h n i ng, Randy G.;  Bi l l  Amerman; Kasper, 
J i m  M. ;  Carlson, AI H .; Ward ne r, Rich; Klein, Jerry; Hogue, David; Holmberg, Ray; Sitte, M a rgaret; Armst rong, Ke l ly 
Subject: FW: Senate B i l l 2369 Conference Comm ittee Report--RE PLY FROM REP.  J I M  KASP E R--4/23/B== R E P LY FROM 
R E P .  J IM KASPER 

From : Kasper, Jim M. 

Sent: Monday, Apri l 22, 2013 6 :41 PM 
To: Kasper, Jim M. 

Subject: RE: Senate Bill  2369 Conference Committee Report--REPLY FROM REP. JIM KASPER--4/23/ 1 3 = = REPLY FROM 

REP. JIM KASPER 

M r. Montplais ir: (CAP ITAL LEITERS FOR E M PHASIS O N LY) 

Thank you fo r the explanation of what Legislation has been proposed in yo u r  recent e m a i l .  I wi l l  d iscuss the points you 
made i n  it i n  this  e m a i l .  

O n e  o f  t h e  issues that SB 2 3 6 9  addresses is t o  s imply set forth t h e  population threshold for preci ncts. SB 2 3 6 9  has 
oth ing to do with  the n u m be r  of  pol l ing places, bal lots rotation, etc. I n  yo ur emai l ,  you i m ply that  if a District has  a 
i n i m u m  of 6 preci ncts, you wi l l  have trouble fi nd ing disa b i l ity accessible po l l i ng p laces, po l l  workers, etc. SB 2 369 
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a l lows the Cou nty Auditor to TOTALLY DETE R M I N E  THE N U M BE R  OF POLLI NG PLACES--P E R I O D . So, yo u r  concerns a bout 

n u m be r  of pol l ing p laces, fin d i ng workers, etc. a re not legit imate. 

ET ME R E ITE RATE---YOU WOULD NOT HAVE TO CHANGE A S I NG LE POLLI NG PLACE THAT CASS CO U NTY O R  ANY 
O U NTY C U R R E NTLY HAS---LOCATION OR N U M BE R-- IF  SB 2 369 PASSES. SB 2369 HAS NOTH I NG WHATSO EVE R TO DO 

W ITH THE N U M BE R  O F  POLL ING P LACES OR TH E LOCATION O F  POLLI NG P LACES. 

NOR DOES SB 2369 HAVE ANYTH I N G  WHATSO EVER TO DO W ITH ROTATION ON TH E BALLOT. Current law determ ines 

rotatio n o n  the bal lot---NOT SB 2369.  

Regard ing bal lot styles and n u mber of bal lots. In  visiting with J im Si l rum, the Dep uty Secretary of State, J i m  i nfo rms me 
that the Secretary of State's office wi l l  most l i kely be im plementing a whole new computerized voting system i n  2016.  

This softwa re currently exists, so it is not specu latio n .  It wi l l  a l low a Voter to come to the po l l ing p lace--prese nt p roper 
ide ntification and have the pol l  worker/j udge enter the Voter i nfo rmation into the co m pute r---AN D  THE CO M P UT E R  
W I LL P R I NT THE CO R R ECT BALLOT F O R  THE VOTER--CO RRECT PRECI NCT AND BALLOT ROTATION I NCLUDED.  

So, i n  a few yea rs, ALL of  yo u r  concerns a bout n u m ber of  bal lots, ba l lot style and e lection costs wi l l  be addressed when 
the Secretary of State i n it iates the new CO M PUTE RIZED voting system here i n  North Dakota . What a bea utifu l t h i ng 

technology is. 

Additio n a l ly, the Secreta ry of State has vo l u nteered to work with and assist a ny cou nty a u d itor to u pd ate preci nct l i n es if 
t hey desire the assistance. The software that we used for re-districting is very m uch a ble to d eterm ine the a m o u n t  of 

population i n  a ny a rea of any d istrict. So, a ny assistance needed here wil l  be ava i lab le .  

I a m  t h ri l led to learn that yo u a re not contem plating going to a n  a l l - m a i l  system of voting i n  Cass Cou nty. 
( U nfortunate ly, curre nt law a l lows cou nty comm issioners the ab i l ity to req u i re that a cou nty go to a l l  m a i l  ba l loting).  

u r  statement that "we strive to give out voters as much access to the pol ls as they need" aga i n  HAS NOTH I NG 
HATSO EVE R TO DO W ITH SB 2369. If you a re ha ppy with yo ur current method of voti ng YO U CAN K E E P  IT 100%. S B  

2 3 6 9  D O E S  N O T  CHAN G E  THIS.  

What is very i nteresting to me is that of the 20 Districts i n  North Da kota who have less t h a n  6 precincts---9 of them -­

a l m ost 50%, are in Cass Cou nty. It seems that most of the other North Da kota cou nty a ud itors recogn ize the va l u e  of 
m u ltiple preci ncts. It is interesting that yo u have determ i ned that the fol lowing Districts in Cass Cou nty have the 
fol lowing n u m be r  of Precincts: 

1 .  District 1 1 .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2--- Precincts 
2 .  District 13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3 --- Precincts 
3 .  D istrict 16 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3---P recincts 
4.  D istrict 2 1 .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2---P recincts 
5. District 22 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8---Precincts 
6. District 27 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3---Preci ncts 
7 .  District 4 1 .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2--- Preci ncts 
8. District 44 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2---Precincts 
9. District 45 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3---Preci ncts 
10. District 46 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3---Precincts 

Nort h  Da kota has long been a state that val ues the voice, participation and rights of the peo ple.  This is critica l ly 
i m porta nt, at the grass roots level .  I n  order for voters to meet and o rgan ize with their  neighbors, as part of o u r  pol itica l 
process, we m ust have local preci ncts of a s imi lar  size to ensure equal  representation, state-wide, a n d  to a l low for this 

ical,  loca l i nvolvement.  That's what precincts were created for, i n  the first p lace, but now i n  some a reas, the 
c inct po p u lations a re so large that a ny such loca l orga n ization wo uld be u nwieldy if not, effectively, i m possi ble.  
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Because North Da kota does not have voter registration, a smal l  increase in the n u m ber of preci ncts in a District is a most 

helpful tool to ALL PO LITICAL PARTI ES and to faci l itate the loca l i nvolvem ent of our state's cit izens a n d  voters. 

tremendous a mo u nt of effo rt has gone i nto SB 2 369 with a nu mber of Legislators a n d  others i nvolved . It took 10 
mended u pd ates to get to the fi n ished amendment. It has had many eyes and suggestions to get to the fi n a l  versio n .  S B  

2 369 is a tota l c l e a n  u p  a nd la nguage sim plification o f  North Da kota 's pol itica l party o rga n ization a n d  other extre m e ly 
i m portant amend ments that the Secreta ry of State bel ieves a re need . I n  fact, J im Si lrum stated i n  conference 

com m ittee last Friday that he felt SB 2369 is the most im portant piece of Legislation this session to acco m pl ish the clean 

u p  the Secreta ry of State feels is needed i n  North Da kota election law. 

I wi l l  do a l i i possibly ca n to see to it that the N D  Legislature passes SB 2 369 before we adjo u rn . It wo u l d  be great if you 
decided to do so a s  we l l .  

R e p .  J i m  Kaspe r 

Rep. J i m  Kasper 

ND H ouse of Representatives 

District 46 
1 128 Westrac Drive 

Fargo, ND 58 103 
Office Phone: 701-232-6250 
Cell Phone: 701-799-9000 
State E m a i l :  

B u s .  E m a i l :  

jkasper@nd .gov 

jmkasper@amg-nd .com 
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Sixty-third 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Senators Dever, Schaible 

� #! 
SECOND ENGROSSMENT 

REENGROSSE D  SENATE BILL NO. 2369 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 16.1-03 of the North Dakota 
2 Century Code, relating to political party organization; to amend and reenact sections 

3 1 6. 1 -03-01. 1 6 . 1 -03-02. 1 6 . 1 -03-03, 1 6.1 -03-05. 1 6. 1 -03-07. 1 6. 1 -03-08. 16. 1 -03- 1 1 ,  

4 1 6. 1 -03- 1 4, 1 6. 1 -03- 1 7. 16. 1 -04-01,  1 6 . 1 -06-04, 1 6. 1 -1 1 -22, 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -30, and 1 6 . 1 - 1 2-02 of 

5 the North Dakota Century Code, relating to _political party organization. voting precincts, arui 
6 primary election ballot access and eligibility for minor political parties; and to repeal se�tkill.§_ 

7 1 6. 1 -03- 1 2  and 16. 1 -03-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to political rutfll_ 
8 organ ization. 

9 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEG ISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA :  

1 0  SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 16 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

1 1  and enacted as follows: 

1 2  Organizations allowed to nominate statewide and legislative candidates. 

1 3  A pol itical organization may not endorse candidates or have candidates petition for 

1 4  president vice president Congress, statewide office, or legislative office as set forth in 

1 5  chapter 16,1-11,  unless the organization. 

1 6  1 .  Organized according to all requirements of this chapter; 

1 7  2. Had printed on the ballot at the last preceding general election the names of a set of 

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's candidate for president and 

vice president. a candidate for governor. a candidate for attorney general, or a 

candidate for secretary of state and those candidates for presidential electors. 

governor, attorney general, or secretary of state received at least five percent of the 

total vote cast for presidential electors. the office of governor, attorney general. or 

secretary of state with in this state at that election and organrzed according to all 

requirements of this chapter: or 
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1 3. Filed a petition with the secretary of state signed by the number of electors required 

2 under section 1 6.1 - 1 1 -30 to qualify to endorse candidates or to have candigates 

3 petition to be included on the primary election ballot in a consolidated column or on a 

4 special election ballot. 

5 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 1 6. 1 -03-01 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and manner of 

8 holding - Caucus call - Notice. 

9 1 .  Each legislative d istrict party shall organize tn conformance with the state legislative 

1 0 district boundaries as established by the legislative assembly and as set forth under 

1 1  chapter 54-03. 

1 2  2 .  On o r  before May fifteenth following the last preceding general election, a party 

1 3  

1 4  

caucus must be held by every election precinct at a site within or reasonably close to 

the precinct in the manner provided in sections 16 . 1 -03-01 through 1 6. 1 -03-03. 

1 5  2:-3... The leg islative d istrict chairman of each party shall issue the eallset the date and time . 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

for the precinct caucus at least P.*t'enty days before the time set for holding the caucus 

and the. If there is not a district chairman in a legislative district, the state party 
executive committee may issue the call for the precinct caucus. The call must contain 

the following: 

a.  Name of party. 

b.  Preeinctlegislative d istrict ang precinct number or name. 

c.  Date of caucus. 

d .  Place of caucus. 

e. Hours of caucus. 

f. A statement of the business to be conducted, including the election of precinct 

committeemen and such other oersonsindividuals as may be provided by state 

law and i tric arty fttlesbylaws. 

g .  The name of the district chairman or. if there is not a district chairman. the 

member of the state party executive committee issuing the call . 

30 &.4. The d istrict chairman or. if there is not a district chairman. the state party executive 

31  committee shall provide ten days' published notice in the official newspaper in 

Page No. 2 1 3 .8257.030 1 2  



Sixty-third 
Leg islative Assembly 

1 circulation within each precinct in the district. The notices must contain that information 

2 set forth in subsection �.3.. The district chairman may include the information required 

3 by this section for al l  precincts in the district may be included in one notice for 

4 publishing purposes. 

5 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 1 6.1 -03-02. Who may participate in and vote at caucus. 

8 1 .  Only those personsindividuals who are qualified electors pursuant tol.l.OQer section 

9 

1 0  

1 6 . 1 -01 -04 may vote or be elected as committeemen or officers at the precinct 

caucus. 

1 1  2 .  Only those personsindividuals who either voted or affiliated with the party at the last 

1 2  

1 3  

general election or intend to 'fete or affiliate with the party and vote with the party at 

the next general election may vote at the precinct caucus. 

1 4  3. I n  case the right of a personan individual to participate at the caucus is challenged ,  the 

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

question of the person'sindividual's right to participate must be decided by a vote of 

the whole caucus. A personAn individual so challenged may not vote on the question 

of the person'sindividual's right to participate in the caucus, and a two-th irds vote of 

the whole caucus is required to exclude a personan individual from participation .  

1 9  4. Ne-personAn individual may .!lQLvote or participate at more than one precinct caucus 

20 in any one year. 

2 1  SECTION 4 .  AMENDMENT. Section 16 . 1 -03-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

22 amended and reenacted as follows: 

23 1 6. 1 -03-03. Caueus business and elections Pol itical parties e ntitled to elect 

24 comm itteemen. 

25 1 .  Each prec1net caucus shall elect a chairman, committeemen as provided 1n 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

subsection 3, and other officers as may be provided by party rules. The caucus may 

also discuss party poliCies. candidates, and any other business as prescribed by party 

2. ��o8 political organization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at its precinct 

caucus �if: 
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4 

5 

6 
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a .  The organization nominated and had printed on  the bal lot a t  the  last preceding 

general election the names of a set of presidential electors pledged to the 

election of the party's candidates for president and vice president or  a candidate 

for governor, attorney general, or secretary of state; and 

b. The candidates provided for in subdivision a received at least five percent of the 

total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, attorney genera l ,  or 

7 secretary of state within this state at that election. 

8 &2... Each political party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise qualifying under 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

subsection �1. i s  entitled to elect one precinct committeeman for each two hundred 

fifty votes, or majority of a fraction thereof, cast for the party's presidential electors, 

governor, attorney genera l ,  or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general 

election .  Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct committeeman for each party 

which qualifies under subsection �1. Each precinct committeeman must be an elector 

of the precinct in which the committeeman resides and must be elected for a two-year  

term. 

3. If a oolitical organ ization desires to organize under this chapter but has not qualified as 
1 7  provided in subsection 1. the organization may elect one precinct committeeman for 
1 8  each precinct in the district. 
1 9  SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

20 amended and reenacted as follows: 

2 1  1 6. 1 -03-05. Vacancies i n  office of precinct committeeman - Fi l l ing. 

22 A vacancy in the office of precinct committeeman ,  which occurs after the organization of the 

23 district committee, mustmay be filled by appointment from the precinct by the district executive 

24 committee of the party. Notice of the appointment must be given to the county auditor. 

25 SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

26 amended and reenacted as follows: 

27 1 6.1 -03-07. Meeting of district committee - Organization. 

28 1 .  I n  every odd-numbered year, the district committee of each party shal l  meet within 

29 fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in section 1 6. 1 -03-0 1 . The day, 

30 ' hour, and site must be set by the existing district committee chairman .  +MAny 

31  incumbent members of the legislative assembly from the party. the precinct 
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20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 
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committeemen of a party, selected as provided by this chapter, wtt!=tsm.Q. any other 

personsindividual provided for by the district committee's bylaws and as the district 

comm1ttee designates, constitute the district committee of the party. The d istrict 

committee of a party must be organized to coincide with the geographical boundary 

lines of state legislative d istricts. Each member of any committee provided for in  this 

chapter must be a qualified elector and must retain the office the member \vas elcetefr. 
to until a successor is chosen. 

2. The d1stnct committee shall organize by: 
a. Selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, and treasurer chosen byprecinct 

committeemen and the party's incumbent members of the legislative assembly 

from the district shall select the officers of the d istrict committee. The officers 

selected. as provided by the district party bylaws. need not be precinct 

committeemen; however, all the officers must be voting members of the district 

committee. The district committee shall forward to the state com mittee the name 

and contact information of the district committee chairman. 

b. 1\dopting rules and modes of procedure not 1n conflict with la'lt'. 

e. Filling any vacancies in the office of precinct committeeman pursuant to sect1on 
16.1 03 05. 

d. SelectingTbe district committee may appoint an executive committee consisting 

of five or more persons chosen from the district comm1ttee. The chairman. v1ee 

chairman. treasurer. and secretary of the district eomm1ttee must be members 
and the officers of the executive committee consistent with the bylaws of the 

district committee. That party's nominees for and members of the legislative 

assembly may also besbal l  serve as members of the executive committee. 

25 �.3.. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the v1ee chairman shall hold the office until 

26 

27 

28 

the next regular election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the district 
committee for the balance of the term, 'Nhlehever occurs firstvacancy may be filled as 

provided by the district party bylaws. 

29 4. The bylaws of the state committee or state party may not include any requirement 

30 

3 1  

providing directives o r  procedures for the method of the organization of d istrict 

committees nor may the state committee or state party take any action or 1mpose any 
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1 requirement regarding district party organization which is not consistent with this 

2 chapter. 

3 SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

4 amended and reenacted as follows: 

5 1 6.1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. 

6 The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the district 

7 committees of the party and any personindiv1dual provided for in the bylaws of the state 

8 committee. 

9 SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 1  of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 0 amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 1  1 6. 1 -03-1 1 .  State committee - Meetings - Organization Vacancies. 
1 2  The state committee shall meet on or before July first of each odd-numbered year. The 

1 3  committee shal l  organize by selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, and 
1 4  treasurerofficers as provided for by the state committee bylaws and by adopting rules and 

1 5  modes of procedure. including rules and procedures regarding the selection of state convention 

1 6  delegates. The party's bylmvs must be filed with the secretary of state. The officers elected 

1 7  need not be members of the committee, but they shall become 'o'Oting members of the 

1 8  committee after their election. Within thirty days following the state committee's organization ,  

1 9  the newly elected chairman shall notify the secretary of state of the names of the party officers 

20 ' selected. These officers, with any other persons provided for by the party's bylaws and as the 

2 1  state committee designates, constitute the executive committee of the state committee. If the 

22 office of chairman becomes •·acant, the vice chairman holds the office until the next regular 

23 election for the office or until a new chairman 1s selected by the state committee for the balance 

24 of the term, whiche'ler occurs first. A vacancy in an office of the state committee, other than 

25 chairman and a party district chairman, must be filled upon a majority vote of the state 

26 committee. The chairman of the state committee may temporarily fill any vacancy existing on 

27 ' the state committee until the state committee convenes to fill the 'o'acancy. The secretary of 
28 state must be notified of any changes in membership of the state's committee officers. 

29 SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-1 4  of the North Dakota Century Code is 

30 amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 1 6.1 -03-14. When state party eon-.·ention held and d�:�ties of state� party 

2 convention. 

3 _1 ._The state party conventions must be held in each pres1dent1al election year at a-plaee-

4 and time designated by the party state committee shall set the place and time of the 

5 state party convention to be held in each general election year. The state party 

6 convention prov1ded for tn this chapter shaiiSub1ect to party rules and bylaws. the state 

7 party convention may: 

8 

9 

+___a. Nominate the legal number of candidatcsgualified electors for its party for the 

offices of presidential electors. 

1 0  �___b., Elect the required number of delegates and alternates to the national party 

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

convention as provided by the party's bylaws or national party rules. 
3. Conduct other business as shall come before the convention. 

c. Endorse candidates as provided under subsection 2. 

2 .  The candidate o r  candidates for endorsement o r  election must b e  declared endorsed 

1 5  or elected pursuant tounder the rules of the party Involved, and the chairman and 

1 6  secretary of the convention shall issue certificates of endorsement as provided in  

1 7  section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -06 or certificates of election. The names of the eandidatesgualified 

1 8  electors nominated for presidential electors with the surname of the presidential 

1 9  candidate the party wishes to place on the general election ballot must be certified by 

20 the chairman and secretary of the convention to the secretary of state by four p.m. on 

2 1  the sixtieth day before the general election to be placed upon the general election 

22 ballot as provided in  section 1 6. 1 -06-07. 1 .  

23 SECTION 1 0. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-1 7 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

24 amended and reenacted as follows: 

25 1 6. 1 -03-1 7. Political party reorganization after apportionmentredistricting. 

26 If apportionmentredistricting of the legislative assembly becomes effective after the 

27 organization of politica l parties as provided in this chapter and before the primary or the general 

28 elect ion ,  the secretary of state shall establish a timetable for the reorgantzation of the part1es as 

29 rapidly as possible before the ensutng election. When the timetable 1s established, the secretary 

30 of state shall notify all the county auditors of the timetable and of the details of the legislatl¥e 

31  apportionment as 1t affects each county. The secretary of state or county auditor may not 
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1 require reorganization of precincts in which boundaries are unchanged after apportionment by 

2 the board of county corn missioners or the governing body of the city pursuant to chapter 

3 16.1 04. Each county auditor shall publish a notice in the official county newspaper containing· 

4 

5 

6 

7 

1. A statement that legislative apportionment has occurred. 
2. A description and a map of the ne•N legislative distncts and the precincts as 

established by the governing bodies of the count1es and c1ties 1n the county, pursuant 

to section 16.1 04 01. 
8 3. The date, time, and places of the prec1net caucuses and district comm1ttee meetings 

9 determined by the secretary of state and the county auditor to be necessary according 
1 0 to the new districts and precincts established. 
1 1  TAo political parties, in the newly established precincts and districts, shall #terrproceed to 

1 2  reorganize as closely as possible in conformance with this chapter and in conformance ·with the 

1 3  timetable established by the secretary of stateto assure compliance with primary election fil ing 

1 4  deadlines. 

1 5  SECTION 1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -04-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 6  amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 7  1 6. 1 -04-01 . Precincts - Duties and responsibil ities of the board of county 

1 8  commissioners or the governing body of the city. 

1 9  _1 ._The board of county commissioners of each county: 

20 t__...a. Shal l  divide the county into precincts and establish the precinct boundaries, 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

except that with in the boundaries of any i ncorporated city, the governing body of 

the city shall divide the city into precincts and establish their boundaries pursuant 

to title 40. Any number of townships or parts of townships may be joined into a 

single precinct provided that no precinct may encompass more than one 

legislative d istrict. 

26 2-:-___12, May alter the number and size of precincts within the county by combining or 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

dividing precincts. However, the governing body o f  a n y  incorporated city h a s  the 

authority to alter the number and size of precincts located with in  its boundaries. 

The board of county commissioners may relinquish the jurisdiction provided 

under subsection 1subdivision a over all or any portion of a township or 

townships under its jurisdiction to a city for the purpose of establishing a voting 
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precinct if a majority of the governing body of the city agrees to assume such 

jurisdiction .  The governing body of a city, by majority vote, may return jurisdiction 

granted herein to the county and the county shall accept that jurisdiction .  

2 .  Notwithstanding any other provision of law. each legislative district must be divided 

5 into at least five precincts that are as close to equal in population as is practicable. In 

6 any legislative district that comprises more than one county. the boards of county 
7 commissioners of the counties within that legislative district shall cooperate to ensure 
8 that the legislative district is composed of at least five precincts. 
9 SECTION 1 2. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -06-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 0  amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 1  1 6. 1 -0G-04. Form and qual ity of ballots generally. 

1 2  All officia l bal lots prepared under this title must: 

1 3  1 .  Be printed on uniform quality and color of paper in an ink color suitable to make the 

1 4  

1 5  

ballot clearly legible and compatible with the electronic voting system requirements 

necessary to tabulate the votes. 

1 6  2 .  Be of  sufficient length to  contain the names of  a l l  candidates to  be voted for at  that 

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

election .  

3 .  Have the language 'Vote for no more than ____ name (or names)" placed 

immediately under the name of each office. 

20 4 .  Have printed thereon "To vote for the candidate of your choice, you must darken the 

2 1  

22 

23 

oval oppositenext to the name of tflethat candidate. To vote for a person whose name 

is not printed on the ballot, you must darken the oval next to the blank line provided 

and write that person's name ffion the blank space provided for that purpose and 
24 darken the oval opposite the space providedline." 

25 5.  Leave sufficient space for each office to write a name, or  names, as the case may be, 

26 in lieu of those printed on the ballot. 

27 6. Immediately preceding and on the same l ine as the name of each candidate must be 

28 

29 

printed an oval in which the voter is to mark the voter's choice by darkening the oval 

next to the name of the candidate chosen . 

30 7. Provide tw& text boxes ffiat the bottom right hand corner of the first side of the ballot. 

31  The fH:st text box at the bottom of the first column is to contain the words "All ballots, 
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other than those used to vote absentee, must first be initialed by appropriate election 
officials in order to be countedOfficial Bal lot. the name of the county. the name or 

number of the precinct, and the date of the election." The second text box is to conta in 

the words "Official BallotAII bal lots, other than those used to vote absentee, must first 

be in itia led by appropriate election officials in order to be counted", the name of the 

county, the name or number of the precinct, the date of the election, and. The text box 

at the bottom of the third column is to conta in the word "initials" preceding preceded by 

a blank l ine where the judge or inspector shal l in itial the ballot. 

All ballots, other than 

those used to vote absentee, 

must first be initialed by 
appropriate election officials 
in order to be counted 

Official Ballot 

County 
Precinct 

(Date of the E:lection) 

Initials 
1 4  Any precinct that uses an electronic counting machine may require the use of a particular 

1 5  writing instrument to mark the ballot so the ballots may be properly counted. 

1 6  The ballot must contain  the names of al l  candidates, the contents of measures as requ ired 

1 7  by section 1 6 . 1 -06-09 ,  and_ til� �t§!t�me11ts of_ questions to be submitted 
_
t�he v�ters. The ballot 

1 8  must be arranged in a manner and form approximating as far as possible the requirements of 

1 9  this section. 

20 SECTION 1 3. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -22 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

2 1  amended and reenacted a s  follows: 

22 1 6. 1 -1 1 -22. Primary election ballot - Form - Voters to vote for candidates of only one 

23 political party. 

24 At the primary election there may be only one ballot for al l  parties or principles. The ballot 

25 must be in  the following form: 

26 1 .  The ballot must be entitled the "consolidated primary election ballot". 

27 2 .  Each political party o r  principle having candidates a t  the primary election must have a 

28 separate columnsection on the bal lot. 

29 3. At the head of each column must be printed the name of the political party or principle 

30 which it represents. 
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1 4.  In each column belowSpanning the columns contain ing the pol itical party ballot and 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

prior to the party names or principle titletitles must be printed : "¥ettl n  a Pol itical Party 

Primary Election. you may only vote for the candidates of 6fHy one pol itical party at--tAe-­
primary election. This bal lot contains the number of political parties or principles and a 

description of where the political parties or principles are to be found in  the columns 

below. If you cast votesvote in more than one party column and vote for candidates of 

more than one political partypol itical party's section , your political party ballotPolitical 

Party Ballot wi l l  be rejected: however, al l  votes on the No Party and Measure Ballots 

wil l  sti l l  be counted ."  

1 0  5.  Immediately below the warning against voting for candidates of more than one pol itical 

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

party must be printed : "To vote for the candidate of your  choice,  you must darken the 

oval oppositenext to the name of tflethat candidate. To vote for a person whose name 

is not printed on the bal lot, you must darken the oval next to the blank l ine provided 

and write that person's name ifton the b lank space provided for that purpose and 
darlmn the oval opposite the space providedline." 

1 6  6. The offices specified in  section 1 6 . 1 - 1 1 -26 must be arranged in  each columnsection 

1 7  

1 8  

with the name of each office in the center of each pol itical party columnsection at the 

head of the names of all the aspirants for the office. 

1 9  7.  Immediately under the name of each office must be printed: "Vote for  no more than 

20 _____ name (or name�). "  

21 8.  Immediately preceding and on the same l ine as the name of each aspi rant must be 

22 

23 

printed an oval in which the voter is to mark the voter's choice by darkening the oval 

next to the name of the candidate chosen . 

24 9. The pol itical party or principle which cast the largest vote for governor at the most 

25 recent primary election at which the office of governor was voted upon must have the 

26 left hand columnfirst section, and the political party or principle casting the next largest 

27 vote must have the next columnsecond section, and so on. 

28 The judges and the inspector of elections shall inform each elector at the primary, before voting ,  

29 that i f  the voter votes for candidates of more than one political party the voter's political party 

30 bal lot will be rejected. 
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1 SECTION 1 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -30 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

2 amended and reenacted as follows: 

3 1 6.1 -1 1 -30. Separate eolumnsection on primary election bal lot required for each 

4 political party. 

5 Any party that had printed on the ballot at the last preceding presidential election the names 

6 of a set of presidentia l  electors pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president 

7 and vice president or a candidate for governor and those candidates for presidential electors or 

8 governor received at least five percent of the tota l vote cast for presidential electors or the office 

9 of governor with in this state at that election; any party that had printed on the bal lot at the last 

1 0 preceding non presidential election a candidate for attorney general or secretary of state, and 

1 1  the candidate received at least five percent of the total vote cast for the office the candidate was 

1 2  seeking at the election ;  or any party that has organized accord ing to al l  the requirements of 

1 3  chapter 1 6. 1 -03 must be provided with a separate columnsection on primary election bal lots. 

1 4  Any other political organization is entitled to endorse candidates or have candidates petition 

1 5  to be included on the primary bal lot in a consolidated column or on a specialseparate section of 

1 6  the consol idated primary election bal lot, if a petition signed by at least seven thousand qualified 

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

-

electors of this state is filed with the secretary of state before four p .m.  of the sixtieth day before 
--- -- --- - -- ----- - -- - ---- - -

a primary or special election,  naming the political organization,  stating the platform principles of 

the party, and requesting the names of its candidates to be included on the state's primary ballot 

in a consolidated column. lfseparate section. Political organizations that are granted ballot 

access under this section are allowed bal lot access only for those offices for which the 

organization has identified candidates. Regardless of the means by which the petition is mailed, 

itdelivered. the original must be in the possession of the secretary of state before four p.m. on 

the sixtieth day prior to a primary or  special election.  Candidates of that party are entitled to the 

same rights and privileges as those of other parties. Petitions circulated according to this 

section must be filed with the secretary of state in accordance with section 1 -01 -50. 

A political organization that had printed on the bal lot at the last preceding presidential 

election the names of a set of presidential electors pledged to the election of the party's 

candidates for president and vice president or a candidate for governor and those candidates 

for presidential electors or governor received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 

presidential electors or the office of governor within this state at that election, and any pol itical 
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1 organization that has printed on the ba llot at the last preced ing nonpresidential election a 

2 cand idate for attorney general or secretary of state. and the candidate received at least five 

3 percent of the total vote cast for the office the candidate was seeking at the election are entitled 

4 to organize according to the requirements of chapter 1 6 . 1 -03. 

5 SECTION 1 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 - 1 2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 1 6. 1 -1 2-02. Certificates of nomination by petition - Form and contents. 

8 Certificates of nomination for nominees for an office to be filled at a general or special 

9 election ,  except for an office appearing on the no-party ballot, may be made as provided by this 

1 0  section .  Except for nominees for president of the United States, names of nominees so 

1 1  nominated must appear on the bal lot as independent nominations. The names of nominees for 

1 2  president of the United States may appear on the ballot with a designation , not to exceed five 

1 3  words ,  that names the organization or political party to which the presidential candidate 

1 4  affi l iates. The designation may not falsely ind icate an affi l iation with or the support of any 

1 5  political party organized in accordance with this title or include any substantive word or phrase 

1 6  that is profane or that is already included in or resembles the name of a political party entitled to 

1 7  a separate column under section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 -30. Except for candidates for the office of president of 

1 8  the United States, each certificate of nomination by petition must meet the specifications for 

1 9  nominating petitions set forth in section 1 6. 1 - 1 1 - 1 6 . A political party or organization desiring to 

20 submit to the secretary of state the name of a qual ified candidate for the office of the president 

2 1  of the United States may beg in gathering the signatures for the certificate of nomination o n  the 

22 first day of January of a presidential election year and shall submit the petition to the secretary 

23 of state before four p .m.  on the sixtieth day before the general election .  The signatures on the 

24 petition must be in the following number: 

25 1 .  Except as provided in subsection 3, if the nomination is for an office to be filled by the 

26 

27 

qual ified electors of the entire state, there must be no fewer than one thousand 

signatures. 

28 2 .  I f  the nomination i s  for a n  office to be filled by the qualified electors of a district less 

29 

30 

3 1  

than the entire state, the number of signatures must be at least two percent o f  the 

resident population of the d istrict as determined by the most recent federal decennial  

census, but in  no case may more than three hundred signatures be requ ired . 
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1 3.  I f  the nomination is for the office of president, there must be no fewer than four 

2 

3 

4 

thousand signatures and the petition must contain the names of the presidential and 

vice presidential candidates a long with the names of the North Dakota presidential 

electors selected from the qual ified electors of North Dakota. 

5 4 .  I f  the petition is for the office of governor or  lieutenant governor, i t  must contain the 

6 names and other required information of candidates for both those offices. 

7 , SECTION 1 6. REPEAL. Sections 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 2  and 1 6. 1 -03- 1 9  of the North Dakota Century 

8 Code are repealed. 
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Prepared by the Leg islat ive Council staff for 
Representative Kasper 

April 24, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO. 2369 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 242- 1 248 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 285- 1 291 of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bi l l  
No. 2369 be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "to" i nsert "create and enact a new section to chapter 1 6. 1 -03 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to political party organization; to" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "sections" insert " 1 6 . 1 -03-0 1 , 1 6 . 1 -03-02, 1 6. 1 -03-03, 1 6. 1 -03-05, 
1 6. 1 -03-07, 1 6. 1 -03-08, 1 6. 1 -03-1 1 ,  1 6. 1 -03- 14, 1 6 . 1 -03-1 7 ,  1 6 . 1 -04-01 , "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, after "to" insert "pol itical party organization ,  voting precincts ,  and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, replace "el ig ibi lity for minor political parties" with " ;  and to repeal sections 
1 6 . 1 -03- 1 2  and 1 6 . 1 -03-1 9 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to political party 
organization" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 1 6. 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Organizations al lowed to nominate statewide and legislative candidates. 

A political organization may not endorse candidates or have candidates petition 
for president, v ice president, Congress, statewide office. or legislative office as set forth 
in chapter 1 6. 1 - 1 1 .  unless the organization:  

.1. Organized according to all requirements of this chapter: 

2. Had printed on the ballot at the last preceding general election the names 
of a set of presidential electors pledged to the electio n  of the party's 
candidate for president and vice president, a candidate for governor. a 
candidate for attorney general. or a candidate for secretary of state and 
those candidates for presidential electors. governor. attorney general, or 
secretary of state received at least five percent of the total vote cast for 
presidential electors. the office of governor. attorney general, or secretary 
of state within this state at that election and organ ized according to all 
requirements of this chapter: or 

3. Fi led a petition with the secretary of state signed by the number of electors 
required under section 1 6. 1 -1 1 -30 to qual ify to endorse candidates or to 
have candidates petition to be included on the primary election ballot in a 
consol idated column or on a special election bal lot .  

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-0 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 
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1 6. 1 -03-01 . Precinct caucus to elect precinct committeemen - Time and 
manner of holding - Caucus call  - N otice. 

1 .  Each legislative district party shal l  organ ize in conformance with the state 
legislative district boundaries as establ ished by the legislative assembly 
and as set forth under chapter 54-03.  

2 .  On or  before May fifteenth fol lowing the last preceding general election, a 
party caucus must be held by every election precinct at a site within or 
reasonably close to the precinct in the manner provided in sections 
1 6 . 1 -03-01 through 1 6 . 1 -03-03. 

2:-� The legislative district chairman of each party shal l  issue the callset the 
date and time for the precinct caucus at least twenty days before the time 
set for holding the caucus and the. If there is not a d istrict chairman in a 
legislative district, the state party executive committee may issue the call 
for the precinct caucus. The cal l  must contain the fol lowing: 

a .  Name of party. 

b .  Precinctlegislative d istrict and precinct number or name. 

c. Date of caucus . 

d .  Place of caucus. 

e. Hours of caucus. 

f. A statement of the business to be conducted, including the election of 
precinct committeemen and such other personsindividua ls as may be 
provided by state law and d istrict party rulesbylaws . 

g .  The name of the district chairman or. if there is not a d istrict chairman. 
the member of the state party executive committee issuing the ca l l .  

�. The d istrict chairman or. if there is not a d istrict chairman, the state party 
executive committee shal l provide ten days' published notice in the official 
newspaper in circulation with in each precinct in the d istrict. The notices 
m ust contain that information set forth in subsection 2-�. The ffis.tfi.c.t 
chairman may include the information requ i red by this section for all 
precincts in the district may be i ncluded in one notice for publishing 
purposes. 

SECTION 3. A M ENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-02. Who may participate in  and vote at caucus. 

1 .  Only those personsindividuals who are qual ified e lectors pursuant tounder 
section 1 6 . 1 -0 1 -04 may vote or be elected as committeemen or officers at 
the precinct caucus. 

2. Only those personsindividuals who either voted or affi l iated with the party 
at the last general election or intend to vote or affiliate with the party and 
vote with the party at the next general election may vote at the precinct 
caucus. 
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3.  I n  case the right of a personan individual to participate at the caucus is 
chal lenged, the question of the person'sindividual's right to participate must 
be decided by a vote of the whole caucus. A personAn individual  so 
chal lenged may not vote on the question of the person'sindividual's right to 
participate in the caucus, and a two-thirds vote of the whole caucus is 
required to exclude a personan individual from participation .  

4 .  No personAn individual may not vote or participate at more than one 
precinct caucus in any one year. 

S ECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-03. Causus business and elestions Pol itical parties entitled to 
elect committeemen. 

1 .  Each precinct caucus shall elect a chairman, committeemen as provided in 
subsection 3, and other officers as may be provided by party rules. The 
caucus may also discuss party policies, candidates, and any other 
business as prescribed by party rules. 

� Ne� pol itical organization is entitled to elect a precinct committeeman at its 
precinct caucus unless[: 

a .  The organization nominated and had printed on the ballot at the last 
preceding general  election the names of a set of presidential electors 
pledged to the election of the party's candidates for president and vice 
president or a candidate for governor, attorney general, or secretary of 
state; and 

b. The candidates provided for in subdivision a received at least five 
percent of the total vote cast for presidential electors or for governor, 
attorney general, or secretary of state within this state at that election. 

�2. Each political party in each voting precinct of this state, otherwise 
qualifying under subsection �1. is entitled to elect one precinct 
committeeman for each two h undred fifty votes, or majority of a fraction 
thereof, cast for the party's presidential electors, governor, attorney 
genera l ,  or secretary of state in the precinct in the last general election.  
Each precinct is entitled to at least one precinct committeeman for each 
party which qual ifies under subsection �1. Each precinct committeeman 
must be an elector of the precinct in which the committeeman resides and 
m ust be elected for a two-year term . 

3 .  If a political organization desires to organ ize u nder this chapter but has not 
qual ified as provided in subsection 1 ,  the organization m ay elect one 
precinct committeeman for each precinct in the district. 

S ECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-05. Vacancies i n  office of precinct committeeman - Fi l l ing.  

A vacancy in the office of precinct committeeman,  which occurs after the 
organization of the district committee, A'H:ffitm ay be fi l led by appointment from the 
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precinct by the d istrict executive committee of the party. Notice of the appointment 
must be given to the county auditor. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-07. Meeting of d istrict committee - Organ ization. 

1 .  I n  every odd-numbered year, the district committee of each party shal l 
meet with in fifteen days after the precinct caucus provided for in section 
1 6 . 1 -03-0 1 .  The day, hour, and site must be set by the existing district 
committee chairman. +AeAny incumbent members of the legislative 
assembly from the party, the precinct committeemen of a party, selected as 
provided by this chapter, wi#land any other personsindividual provided for 
by the d istrict committee's bylaws and as the district committee designates, 
constitute the district committee of the party. The district committee of a 
party m ust be organized to coincide with the geographical boundary l ines 
of state legis lative d istricts. Each member of any committee provided for in 
this chapter m ust be a qualified elector and must retain the office the 
member was elected to until a successor is chosen. 

2..:. The district committee shall organize by: 

a:- Selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, and treasurer chosen 
byprecinct committeemen and the party's incu m bent members of the 
legislative assembly from the district shal l select the officers of the 
d istrict committee. The officers selected, as provided by the district 
party bylaws, need not be precinct committeemen; however, al l the 
officers must be voting members of the district committee. The district 
committee shal l  forward to the state committee the name and contact 
information of the district committee chairman .  

9-:- Adopting rules and modes of procedure not in conflict with law. 

&.- Filling any vaoanoies in the office of preoinct committeeman pursuant 
to section 16.1 03 05. 

€f.:. SelectingThe district committee may appoint an executive committee 
consisting of five or more persons chosen from the district committee. 
The chairman, vice chairman, treasurer, and secretary of the district 
oommittee must be members and the officers of the executive 
committeeconsistent with the bylaws of the d istrict committee. That 
party's nominees for and members of the legislative assembly may 
also beshall serve as members of the executive committee. 

2-:-3. If the office of chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman shall hold the 
office until the next regular election for the office or until a new chairman is 
selected by the distriot committee for the balance of the term, whichever 
occurs firstvacancy may be filled as provided by the d istrict party bylaws. 

4. The bylaws of the state committee or state party m ay not include any 
requirement providing d irectives or procedures for the method of the 
organization of  d istrict committees nor  may the state committee or state 
party take any action or impose any requirement regarding d istrict party 
organization which is not consistent with this chapter. 
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SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-08 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-08. State committee - Membership. 

The state committee of each party consists of the chairman of each of the 
district committees of the party and any personindividual provided for in the bylaws of 
the state committee. 

SECTION 8. AM ENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03- 1 1  of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 1 .  State committee - Meetings - Organization Vacancies. 

The state committee shal l  meet on or  before J uly first of each odd-numbered 
year. The committee shal l  organize by selecting a chairman, vice chairman, secretary, 
and treasurerofficers as provided for by the state committee bylaws and by adopting 
rules and modes of procedure, including rules and procedures regarding the selection 
of state convention delegates. The party's bylaws must be filed ·.vith the secretary of 
state. The officers elected need not be members of the committee, but they shall 
become voting members of the committee after their election. Within thirty days 
fol lowing the state committee's organization,  the newly elected chairman shal l  notify 
the secretary of state of the names of the party officers selected. These officers, with 
any other persons provided for by the party's bylmvs and as the state committee 
designates, constitute the executi·.'e committee of the state committee. If the office of 
chairman becomes vacant, the vice chairman holds the office until the next regular 
election for the office or until a new chairman is selected by the state committee for the 
balance of the term, whichever occurs first. A vacancy in an office of the state 
committee, other than chairman and a party district chairman, must be filled upon a 
majority vote of the state committee. The chairman of the state sommittee may 
temporarily fill any vacancy existing on the state committee until the state committee 
convenes to fill the vacansy. The secretary of state must be notified of any changes in 
membership of the state's committee officers. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -03-1 4 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 4. When state party convention held and duties of stateState party 
convention . 

.L The state party conventions must be held in each presidential election year 
at a place and time designated by the party state committee shal l  set the 
place and time of the state party convention to be held in each general 
election year. The state party convention provided for in this chapter 
sflaUSubject to party ru les and bylaws, the state party convention may: 

4-:- a .  Nominate the legal  number of candidatesqualified electors for its party 
for the offices of presidential electors. 

2-:- b. Elect the required number of delegates and alternates to the national 
party convention as provided by the party's bylav1s or national party 
f\ks. 

-3-:- Conduct other business as shall come before the convention. 
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c. Endorse candidates as provided under subsection 2. 

£. The candidate or candidates for endorsement or election m ust be declared 
endorsed or elected pursuant tou nder the ru les of the party involved, and 
the chairman and secretary of the convention shal l  issue certificates of 
endorsement as provided in section 1 6 . 1 -1 1 -06 or certificates of election .  
The names of the oandidatesqual ified electors nominated for presidential 
electors with the surname of the presidential oandidate the party wishes to 
place on the general  election bal lot must be certified by the chairman and 
secretary of the convention to the secretary of state by four  p .m .  on the 
sixtieth day before the general election to be placed upon the general 
election bal lot as provided in section 1 6. 1 -06-07. 1 .  

SECTION 1 0. AMENDMENT. Section 1 6 . 1 -03-1 7 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1 6. 1 -03-1 7. Political party reorganization after apportionmentredistricting. 

If apportionmentredistricting of the legislative assembly becomes effective after 
the organization of poiitical parties as provided in this chapter and before the primary or 
the general election, the seoretary of state shall establish a timetable for the 
reorganization of the parties as rapidly as possible before the ensuing eleotion. When 
the timetable is established, the seoretary of state shall notify all the oounty auditors of 
the timetable and of the details of the legislative apportionment as it affeots eaoh 
oounty. The seoretary of state or oounty auditor may not require reorganization of 
presinots in whish boundaries are unohanged after apportionment by the board of 
oounty oommissioners or the governing body of the oity pursuant to ohapter 16.1 04. 
Eaoh oounty auditor shall publish a notioe in the offioial oounty newspaper containing: 

� A statement that legislative apportionment has ocourred. 

&. A desoription and a map of the new legislative districts and the preoincts as 
established by the governing bodies of the eo unties and oities in the 
oounty, pursuant to scotian 16.1 04 01 .  

& The date, time, and places of the precinot oaucuses and district oommittee 
meetings determined by the secretary of state and the county auditor to be 
neoessary asoording to the new districts and precinots established. 

TRe political parties , in the newly establ ished precincts and districts , shal l theR 
proceed to reorgan ize as closely as possible in conformance with this chapter afl9...ffi 
oonformanoe with the timetable established by the seoretary of stateto assure 
compliance with primary election fi l ing deadl ines. 

SECTION 1 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 6. 1 -04-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 6. 1 -04-01 . Prec incts - Duties and responsibil ities of the board of county 
commissioners or the governing body of the city . 

.1. The board of county commissioners of each cou nty: 

� .9..:. Shal l  d ivide the county into precincts and establ ish the precinct 
boundaries , except that with in  the boundaries of any incorporated city, 
the govern ing body of the city shal l d ivide the city into precincts and 
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establish their boundaries pursuant to title 40. Any number of 
townships or parts of townships may be joined into a s ingle precinct 
provided that no precinct may encompass more than one legislative 
district. 

2-:- b.  May a lter the number and size of precincts within  the county by 
combining or d ividing precincts. However, the governing body of any 
incorporated city has the authority to a lter the number and size of 
precincts located within its boundaries. The board of county 
commissioners may rel inquish the jurisdiction provided u nder 
subsection 1 subdivision a over all or any portion of a township or 
townships under its jurisd iction to a city for the purpose of establishing 
a voting precin'ct if a majority of the governing body of the city agrees 
to assume such jurisdiction .  The governing body of a city, by majority 
vote , may return jurisdiction granted herein to the county and the 
county shal l  accept that jurisd iction. 

2. When establ ishing precincts under subsection 1, a board of county 
commissioners, in cooperation with the county auditor, or  a city governing 
body shal l  consult with and seek input regarding the s ize, number, and 
proposed boundaries of the precincts from representatives of the political 
parties organized within the cou nty. Upon the request of the d istrict 
chairman of a pol itical party, a board of county commissioners, in 
consultation with the county auditor, or the governing body of a city shal l 
consider proposals to change precinct bou ndaries." 

Page 6 ,  after l ine 1 0, insert: 

"SECTION 1 6. REPEAL. Sections 1 6. 1 -03-1 2 and 1 6 . 1 -03- 1 9 of the North 
Dakota Century Code are repealed ."  

Renumber accordingly 
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